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2005 Annual Report

ABOUT HEALTHSPRING

:
HealthSpring, Inc. is one of the largest maﬂnaged care organizations in the United States whose primary focus is the
Medicare Advantage market. The Company currently owns and operates Medicare Advantage and stand-alone
Medicare prescription drug plans in Tennessee, Texas, Alabama, Illinois, and Mississippi. In addition, the
Company uses its infrastructure and provider networks in Tennessee and Alabama to offer commercial health plans
. .« e I

to individuals and employer groups. “

[

|

HealthSpring completed its initial public offering in early February 2006. Its shares of common stock began
trading on the New York Stock Exchange !}on February 3, 2006, under the symbol "HS."

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIN@ HIGHLIGHTS
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In the bar charts above, total revenue and premium revenue in 2003 are presented on a pro forma basis to reflect the consolidation
of a company subsidiary for the entire year. Prior to HApril 1, 2003, this subsidiary was accounted for under the equity method of

accounting. See the Annual Report on Form 10-K z'ncl‘uded herewith under "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations - Comparison of Ye{%ar Ended December 31, 2004 to Year Ended December 31, 2003."
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Chairman’s Letter to Stockholders

Fellow Stockholders:

I extend my sincere welcome to the many new stockholders of HealthSpring. To all of our stockholders, many of
whom date to our formation in September 2000, I am pleased to present this Annual Report for 2005, our first as a
public company:

The past year was one of tremendous change for HealthSpring. We began 2005 as a private, closely held organization
operating under the name of our predecessor, NewQuest, LLC. We completed a recapitalization transaction in
March 2005 with a new private equity partner, GTCR Golder Rauner, LLC. We changed the name of the
Company to HealthSpring in September 2005. And, at year-end, we were poised to commence our initial public
offering, which we accomplished when our common stock began trading on the New York Stock Exchange on
February 3, 2006, under the symbol “HS.”

These changes were the direct result of the hard work and long hours of our employees. None of this would have
been possible, however, without the endorsement and loyalty of the individual members of our Medicare and
commercial health plans and the contributions of our provider networks throughout the Company’s geographic
service areas in Alabama, Illinois, Mississippi, Tennessee, and Texas. Our federal and state government partners
also contributed to our development.

Concurrent with all of these changes, the growth of our business in 2005 and our financial results exceeded our
expectations. At December 31, 2005, our Medicare Advantage plan members exceeded 101,000, reflecting an
increase of more than 58% over the prior year. Moreover, this growth in Medicare membership took place across
all of our geographic markets, each of which remains underpenetrated by Medicare Advantage plans, providing
substantial opportunities for future growth. Largely as a result of the increase in our Medicare membership, our
2005 total revenue rose to $857 million, a 43% increase over 2004. Our continuing efforts to align our interests in
offering high-quality, cost-efficient healthcare with our providers ~ particularly physicians, and our intense focus on
managing medical expenses, allowed us to achieve a Medicare medical loss ratio (the key cost driver in our
business) of 78.4% in 2005, which we believe is substantially better than our managed care competitors. At the
same time, we believe we have helped providers achieve better healthcare outcomes for our members.

The past year was a great period for HealthSpring, and we are thankful for the momentum it has generated in
early 2006. Our initial public offering in February allowed us to pay off all of our indebtedness from the
recapitalization, giving us substantial financial stability and flexibility for taking advantage of growth opportunities,
including acquisitions if the right opportunities present themselves. Although 2006 is not without its challenges,
particularly as we and others in the managed care industry work through the implementation of the new Medicare
Part D prescription drug benefits, I believe HealthSpring is well positioned to continue to be successful with its
Medicare plans and programs and to take the lead in developing innovative and profitable solutions for the
Medicare-eligible population.

I look forward to reporting on HealthSpring's continuing progress in 2006 and beyond.

Welcome to HealthSpring!

VA e

Herbert A. Fritch
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, and President
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K that are not historical fact may be forward-
looking statements within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange
Act”). In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terms including “anticipates,” “believes,”
“could,” “estimates,” “expects,” “i > e 7 e » »
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intends,” “may,” “plans,” “potential,” “predicts,” “projects,” “should,” “will,”
“would,” and similar expressions intended to identify forward-looking statements. We intend such statements to be
covered by the safe harbor provisions for forward-looking statements contained in Section 21E of the Exchange Act.
These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, including those described in
Item 1A. “Risk Factors,” that may cause our actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different
from any future results, performances or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements.
Forward-looking statements reflect our current views with respect to future events and are based on assumptions and
subject to risks and uncertainties. Given these uncertainties, you should not place undue reliance on these forward-
looking statements. We undertake no obligation beyond that required by law to update publicly any forward-
looking statements for any reason, even if new information becomes available or other events occur in the future.
You should read this report and the documents that we reference in this report and have filed as exhibits to this
report completely and with the understanding that our actual future results may be materially different from what we
expect.




1 PART 1
Ttem 1. Business |
Overview

HealthSpring, Inc. (sometimes referred to herein as “HealthSpring,” “company,” “we,” “us,” and “our”) is a

managed care organization with a pr1mar)} focus on Medicare, the federal government- sponsored health insurance
program for retired U.S. citizens aged 65 gnd older, qualifying disabled persons, and persons suffering from end-
stage renal disease. Our concentration on Medlcare and the Medicare Advantage program in particular, provides us
with opportunities to understand the comp‘lexmes of the Medicare program, design competitive products manage
medical costs, and offer high quality healthcare benefits to Medicare beneficiaries in our local service areas. Our
Medicare Advantage and physician manaéement experience allows us to build collaborative and mutually beneficial
relationships with healthcare providers, including comprehensive networks of hospitals and physicians that are
experienced in managing Medicare populations. As of December 31, 2005, we were serving 101,281 Medicare
members in 105 counties in the states of Tennessee Texas, Alabama Iliinois, and Mississippi. We also utilize our
infrastructure and provider networks in Alabama and Tennessee to offer commercial health plans to individuals and
employer groups. U

Our management team has extensive e%&perience managing providers and provider networks. Through our
relationships with providers, in which we create mutually beneficial incentives to efficiently manage medical
expenses, we have achieved medical loss 1ﬂatlos or MLRs, that we believe are below industry averages. We have

also implemented comprehensive disease management and utilization management programs, primarily designed to
treat our members and promote the we]lneuss of the chronically ill, which generally are the least healthy of our

membership and often account for a significant portion of the costs of Medicare managed care populations.

We were incorporated in October 2004 in connection with the leveraged recapitalization of our predecessor,
NewQuest, LLC, by us and certain investrnent funds affiliated with GTCR Golder Rauner II, L.L.C., which we
collectively refer to herein as “GTCR” or the “GTCR Funds,” together with management, our existing
equityholders, lenders, and other investors! (See Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations - The\Recapitalization”) We commenced operations in September 2000 when
our predecessor purchased an interest in an“ unprofitable health maintenance organization, or HMO, operating in the
Nashville, Tennessee area. 1\

On February 8, 2006, we completed ouhr initial public offering, or IPO. We sold 10.6 million shares and selling
stockholders sold 11.02 million shares of common stock at a price of $19.50 per share. The aggregate net proceeds
from the shares of common stock sold by Us were approximately $193.3 million, which we used, together with cash

on hand, to pay outstanding indebtedness and offering expenses.

Our corporate headquarters are located at 44 Vantage Way, Suite 300, Nashville, Tennessee 37228, and our

telephone number is (615) 291-7000. Our c‘::orporate website address is www.myhealthspring.com. Information
contained on our website i3 not mcorporate‘d by reference into this report and we do not intend the information on or
linked to our website to constitute part of this report. We make available our annual reports on Form 10-K,

quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reﬂorts on Form 8-K, and any amendments to those reports on our website,
free of charge, to individuals interested in acquiring such reports. The reports can be accessed at our website as soon
as reasonably practicable after they are elec]“‘tronieally filed with, or furnished to, the Securities and Exchange
Commission, or SEC. The public may read and copy these materials at the SEC’s public reference room located at
100 F. Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549 or on their website at http://www.sec.gov. Questions regarding the
operation of the pubhc reference room may‘ be dn’ected to the SEC at 1-800-732-0330. References to
“HealthSpring,” “company,” “we,” “our,” and “us” refer to HealthSpring, Inc. together with our subsidiaries and our

i
predecessor entities, unless the context suggests otherw1se




The Medicare Program and Medicare Managed Care

Medicare is the health insurance program for retired United States citizens aged 65 and older, qualifying disabled
persons, and persons suffering from end-stage renal disease. Medicare is funded by the federal government and
administered by The Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services, or CMS. The Medicare program, created in 1965,
offers both hospital insurance, known as Medicare Part A, and medical insurance, known as Medicare Part B. In
general, Medicare Part A covers hospital care and some nursing home, hospice, and home care. Although there is no
monthly premium for Medicare Part A, beneficiaries are responsible for significant deductibles and co-payments.
All United States citizens eligible for Medicare are automatically enrolled in Medicare Part A when they turn 65.
Enrollment in Medicare Part B is voluntary. In general, Medicare Part B covers outpatient hospital care, physician
services, laboratory services, durable medical equipment, and some other preventive tests and services. Beneficiaries
that enroll in Medicare Part B pay a monthly premium that is usually withheld from their Social Security checks.
Medicare Part B generally pays 80% of the cost of services and beneficiaries pay the remaining 20% after the
beneficiary has satisfied a deductible. To fill the gaps in traditional fee-for-service Medicare coverage, individuals
have the option to purchase Medicare supplement products, commonly known as “Medigap,” to cover deductibles,
copayments, and colnsurance.

Initially, Medicare was offered only on a fee-for-service basis. Under the Medicare fee-for-service payment
system, an individual can choose any licensed physician and use the services of any hospital, healthcare provider, or
facility certified by Medicare, CMS reimburses providers if Medicare covers the service and CMS considers it
“medically necessary.” There is currently no fee-for-service coverage for certain preventive services, including
annual physicals and wellness visits, eyeglasses, hearing aids, dentures, and most dental services.

As an alternative to the traditional fee-for-service Medicare program, in geographic areas where a managed care
plan has contracted with CMS pursuant to the Medicare Advantage program, Medicare beneficiaries may choose to
receive benefits from a managed care plan. The current Medicare managed care program was established in 1997
when Congress created a Medicare Part C, formerly known as Medicare+Choice and now known as Medicare
Advantage. Pursuant to Medicare Part C, Medicare Advantage plans contract with CMS to provide benefits at least
comparable to those offered under the traditional fee-for-service Medicare program in exchange for a fixed monthly
premium payment per member per month, or PMPM, from CMS. The monthly premium varies based on the county
in which the member resides, as adjusted to reflect the member’s demographics and the plans’ risk scores as more
fully described below. Individuals who elect to participate in the Medicare Advantage program often receive greater
benefits than traditional fee-for-service Medicare beneficiaries such as additional preventive services and dental and
vision benefits. Medicare Advantage plans typically have lower deductibles and co-payments than traditional fee-
for-service Medicare, and plan members do not need to purchase supplemental Medigap policies. In exchange for
these enhanced benefits, members are generally required to use only the services and provider network provided by
the Medicare Advantage plan. Most Medicare Advantage plans have no additional premiums. In some geographic
areas, however, and for plans with open access to providers, members may be required to pay a monthly premium.

Prior to 1997, CMS reimbursed health plans participating in the Medicare program primarily on the basis of the
demographic data of the plans’ members. One of CMS’s primary directives in establishing the Medicare Advantage
program was to make it more attractive to managed care plans to enroll members with higher intensity illnesses. To
accomplish this, CMS implemented a risk adjustment payment system for Medicare health plans in 1997 pursuant to
the Balanced Budget Act of 1997. This payment system was further modified pursuant to the Medicare, Medicaid,
and SCHIP Benefits Improvement and Protection Act of 2000. CMS is phasing-in this risk adjustment payment
methodology with a model that bases a portion of the total CMS reimbursement payments on various clinical and
demographic factors including hospital inpatient diagnoses, additional diagnosis data from ambulatory treatment
settings, hospital outpatient department and physician visits, gender, age, and Medicaid eligibility. CMS requires
that all managed care companies capture, collect, and submit the necessary diagnosis code information to CMS
twice a year for reconciliation with CMS’s internal database. Under this system, the risk adjusted portion of the total
CMS payment to the Medicare Advantage plans will equal the local rate set forth in the traditional demographic rate
book, adjusted to reflect the plan’s average gender, age, and disability demographics. During 2003, risk adjusted
payments accounted for only 10% of Medicare health plan payments, with the remaining 90% being reimbursed in
accordance with the traditional demographic rate book. The portion of risk adjusted payments was increased to 30%
in 2004, 50%, in 2005, and 75% in 2006, and will increase to 100% in 2007.
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The 2003 Medicare Modernization Act

Overview. In December 2003 Congress passed the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and
Modernization Act, which is known as th? Medicare Modernization Act, or MMA. The MMA increased the
amounts payable to Medicare Advantage blans such as ours and expanded Medicare beneficiary healthcare options,

including adding a Medicare Part D presc”rlptlon drug benefit beginning in 2006, as further described below.

One of the goals of the MMA was to r;;educe the costs of the Medicare program by increasing participation in the
Medicare Advantage program. Beginning|in 2004, the MMA adjusted Medicare Advantage statutory payment rates
to 100% of Medicare’s expected cost per })eneﬁmary under the traditional fee-for-service program. Generally, this
adjustment resulted in an increase in payn[lents per member to Medicare Advantage plans. Medicare Advantage
plans are required to use these increased payments to improve the healthcare benefits that are offered, to reduce
premiums, or to strengthen provider netw%)rks We believe the reforms proposed by the MMA, including in
particular the increased reimbursement rates to Medicare Advantage plans, have allowed and will continue to allow
Medicare Advantage plans to offer more %omprehenswe and attractive benefits, including better preventive care and
dental and vision benefits, while also reddcing out-of-pocket expenses for beneficiaries. As a result of these reforms,
we expect enrollment in Medicare’s managed care programs to increase in the coming years.

\\

Prescription Drug Benefit. As part of the MMA, effective January 1, 2006, every Medicare recipient is able to
select a prescription drug plan through Medicare Part D. Medicare Part D replaced the transitional prescription drug
discount program and replaced Medicaid ;‘)rescrlptlon drug coverage for beneficiaries eligible for participation under
both the Medicare and Medicaid programs, or dual-eligibles. The Medicare Part D prescription drug benefit is
largely subsidized by the federal govemm‘ent and is additionally supported by risk-sharing with the federal
government through risk corridors de&gne‘:d to limit the profits or losses of the drug plans and reinsurance for
catastrophic drug costs. The government sjbbs:dy is based on the national weighted average monthly bid for this
coverage, adjusted for member demograpﬂlcs and risk factor payments. The beneficiary is responsible for the
difference between the government sub51dy and his or her plan’s bid, together with the amount of his or her plan’s
supplemental premium (before rebate allo‘catlons) subject to the co-pays, deductibles, and late enrollment penalties,
if applicable, described below. Addltlonaleub51d1es are provided for dual-eligible beneficiaries and specified low-

income beneficiaries.
w\

The Medicare Part D benefits are avallable to Medicare Advantage plan enrollees as well as Medicare fee-for-
service enrollees. Medicare Advantage plan enrollees who elect to participate may pay a monthly premium for this
Medicare Part D prescription drug beneﬁt“ or MA-PD, while fee-for-service beneficiaries will be able to purchase a
stand-alone prescription drug plan, or PDP‘ from a list of CMS-approved PDPs availabie in their area. Our Medicare
Advantage members were automatically eﬁlrolled in our MA-PD plans as of January 1, 2006 unless they chose
another provider’s prescription drug coverage or one of our other plan options w1thout drug coverage. Any Medicare
Advantage member enrolling in a stand-alone PDP, however, is automatically disenrolled from the Medicare
Advantage plan altogether, thereby resuml‘ng traditional fee-for-service Medicare. In addition, certain dual-eligible
beneficiaries are automatically enrolled with approved PDPs in their region. Under the standard Part D drug
coverage for 2006, beneficiaries enrolled A\ a stand-alone PDP pay a $250 deductible, co-insurance payments equal
to 25% of the drug costs between 3250 and the initial annual coverage limit of $2,250, and all drug costs between
$2,250 and $5,100, which is commonly re ferred to as the Part D “doughnut hole.” After the beneficiary has incurred
$3,600 in out-of-pocket drug expenses, the MMA provides stop loss coverage that will cover approximately 95% of
the beneficiaries’ remaining out-of-pocket|drug costs for that year. MA-PDs are not required to mirror these limits,
but are required to provide, at a minimum,|coverage that is actuarially equivalent to the standard drug coverage
delineated in the MMA. The deductible, co-pay, and coverage amounts will be adjusted by CMS on an annual basis.
As additional incentive to enroll in a Part ID prescription drug plan, CMS will impose a cumulative penalty added to
a beneficiary’s monthly Part D plan premium in an amount equal to 1% of the applicable premium for each month
between the date of a beneficiary’s enrollment deadline and the beneficiary’s actual enrollment. This penalty amount
will be passed through the plan to the govei‘rnment Each Medicare Advantage plan is required to offer a Part D drug
prescription plan as part of its benefits. We‘ currently offer MA-PD benefits and stand-alone PDPs in each of our

markets. ‘

Dual-Eligible Beneficiaries. A “‘dual- fhglble” beneficiary is a person who is eligible for both Medicare,
because of age or other qualifying status, aFd Medicaid, because of economic status. Health plans that serve dual-
eligible beneficiaries receive a higher premium from CMS for dual-eligible members. CMS pays an additional

premium for a dually-eligible beneficiary based upon the estimated incremental cost CMS incurs, on average, to



care for dual-eligible beneficiaries. By managing utilization and implementing disease management programs, many
Medicare Advantage plans can profitably care for dually-eligible members. The MMA provides subsidies and
reduced or eliminated deductibles for certain low-income beneficiaries, including dual-eligible individuals. Pursuant
to the MMA, as of January 1, 2006 dual-eligible individuals receive their drug coverage from the Medicare program
rather than the Medicaid program. Companies offering stand-alone PDPs with bids at or below the regional
weighted average bid resulting from the annual bidding process received a pro-rata allocation and auto-enrollment of
the dual-eligible beneficiaries within their applicable region.

2006 Bidding Process. Although Medicare Advantage plans will continue to be paid on a capitated, or PMPM
basis, as of January !, 2006 CMS implemented a new rate calculation system for Medicare Advantage plans. The
new system is based on a competitive bidding process that allows the federal government to share in any cost
savings achieved by Medicare Advantage plans. In general, the statutory payment rate for each county, which is
primarily based on CMS’s estimated per beneficiary fee-for-service expenses, was relabeled as the “benchmark”
amount, and local Medicare Advantage plans will annually submit bids that reflect the costs they expect to incur in
providing the base Medicare Part A and Part B benefits in their applicable service areas. If the bid is less than the
benchmark for that year, Medicare will pay the plan its bid amount, risk adjusted based on its risk scores, plus a
rebate equal to 75% of the amount by which the benchmark exceeds the bid, resulting in an annual adjustment in
reimbursement rates. Plans will be required to use the rebate to provide beneficiaries with extra benefits, reduced
cost sharing, or reduced premiums, including premiums for MA-PD and other supplemental benefits. CMS will have
the right to audit the use of these proceeds. The remaining 25% of the excess amount will be retained in the statutory
Medicare trust fund. If a Medicare Advantage plan’s bid is greater than the benchmark, the plan will be required to
charge a premium to enrollees equal to the difference between the bid amount and the benchmark, which is expected
to make such plans less competitive. For 2006, the county benchmarks equals the 2005 rates increased by 4.8%,
which is the national growth rate in fee-for-service expenditures.

Annual Enrollment and Lock-in. Prior to the MMA, Medicare beneficiaries were permitted to enroll in a
Medicare managed care plan or change plans at any point during the year. As of January 1, 2006, Medicare
beneficiaries have defined enrollment periods, similar to commercial plans, in which they can select a Medicare
Advantage plan, stand-alone PDP, or traditional fee-for-service Medicare. The initial enrollment period for 2006
began November 15, 2005 and continues through May 15, 2006 for a MA-PD or stand-alone PDP. In addition,
beneficiaries will have an open election period from January 1, 2006 through June 30, 2006 in which they can make
or change an equivalent election. Thereafter, the annual enroliment period for a PDP will be from November 15
through December 31 of each year, and enrollment in Medicare Advantage plans will occur from November 15
through March 31 of the subsequent year. Enrollment on or prior to December 31 will be effective as of January 1 of
the following year and enrollment on or after January 1 and within the enrollment period will be effective as of the
first day of the month following the date on which the enrollment occurred. After these defined enrollment periods
end, generally only seniors turning 65 during the year, Medicare beneficiaries who permanently relocate to another
service area, dual-eligible beneficiaries and others who qualify for special needs plans, and employer group retirees
will be permitted to enroll in or change health plans during that plan year. Eligible beneficiaries who fail to timely
enroll in a Part D plan will be subject to the penalties described above under “—Prescription Drug Benefit” if they
later decide to enroll in a Part D plan.

Products and Services

We offer Medicare Advantage health plans, including MA-PD plans and stand-alone PDPs, in each of our
markets. Our Medicare Advantage plans cover Medicare eligible members with benefits that are at least comparable
to those offered under traditional Medicare fee-for-service plans. Through our plans, we have the flexibility to offer
benefits not covered under traditional fee-for-service Medicare. Our plans are designed to be attractive to seniors
and offer a broad range of benefits that vary across our markets and service areas but may include, for example,
mental health benefits, dental, vision and hearing benefits, transportation services, preventive health services such as
health and fitness programs, routine physicals, various health screenings, immunizations, chiropractic services, and
mammograms. Most of our MA-PD members pay no monthly premium in addition to the premium we receive from
Medicare but are subject in some cases to co-payments and deductibles, depending upon the market and benefit. Our
members are required to use a primary care physician within our network of providers, except in limited cases,
including emergencies, and generally must receive referrals from their primary care physician in order to see a
specialist or other ancillary provider. In addition to our typical Medicare Advantage benefits, we offer a “special
needs” zero premium, zero co-payment plan to dual-eligible individuals in each of our markets.




|
The amount of premiums we receive {or each Medicare member is established by contract, although it varies

according to various demographic factorsn, including the member’s geographic location, age, and gender, and is
further adjusted based on our plans’ average risk scores. During the month of December 2005, our Medicare
premiums across our service areas rangec% from an average of $650.13 to $781.31 PMPM. In addition to the
premiums payable to us, our contracts wi‘t‘h CMS regulate, among other matters, benefits provided, quality assurance
procedures, and marketing and advertising for our Medicare products.
i
In addition to our Medicare products, ‘\!we offer commercial managed care products and services in certain of our
markets. Our commercial plans cover individuals and employer groups with medical coverage and benefits that
differ from plan to plan for a set monthly ipremium. Our commercial products include:
I
|
+ commercial HMO plans in Alabama and Tennessee;

+ PPO network rental, which allows“third party administrators to use our provider network for an access fee, in

Tennessee; ‘

+ exclusive provider organization, ot EPO, products for self-insured employers in Tennessee that provide
access to our provider networks at}\\negotiated rates; and

* administrative services only, or ASHO, products for self-insured employers in Tennessee.

We also offer management services to ind\‘ependent physician associations in our Alabama, Tennessee, and Texas

markets, including claims processing, provider relations, credentialing, reporting and other general business office
services.

Our Health Plans \\

We operate in each of our five markets} through HMO subsidiaries. Each of the HMO subsidiaries is regulated by
- the department of insurance, and in some cases the department of health, in its respective state. In addition, we own

and operate management company subsidivaries that provide administrative and management services to the HMO
subsidiaries in exchange for a percentage (Pf the HMO subsidiaries’ income pursuant to management agreements and
administrative services agreements. Those|services include:

|
!
* negotiation, monitoring, and quality assurance of contracts with third party healthcare providers;

ﬂ

» medical management, credentialing, marketing, and product promotion;

« support services and administration‘;
I
. . i

»  personnel recruiting and retention; |
!

» financial services; and




The following table summarizes our Medicare Advantage and commercial plan membership as of the dates
indicated:

December 31,

2005 2004 2003
Medicare Advantage Membership
TENNESSEE ..oveeeiviecieeie et 42,509 29,862 25,772
TEXAS 11veeietiie et e 29,706 21,221 15,637
Alabama......ccoveeeeiiie e 24,531 12,709 6,490
THIAOIS(1) covvereiecccieceis e et 4,166 — —
MisSISSIPPI(2) cvvreirire i 369 — —
TOtaAl coioeiiive e 101.281 63,792 47.8
Commercial Membership(3)
TENNESSEE ..oocvvvveeiiieeeeeiee e 29.859 32,139 32,668
Alabama......ccooeoeeiiieii 11,910 16,241 21,612
TOAL vttt 41,769 48,380 54,280

(1) We commenced operations in [llinois in December 2004.

(2) We commenced enrollment efforts in Mississippi in July 2005.

(3) Does not include members of commercial PPOs owned and operated by unrelated third parties that pay us a
fee for access to our contracted provider network.

Tennessee

We began operations in Tennessee in September 2000 when we purchased a 50% interest in an unprofitable
HMO in the Nashville, Tennessee area that offered commercial and Medicare products. When we purchased the
plan, it had approximately 8,000 Medicare Advantage members in five counties and 22,000 commercial members in
27 counties. We purchased an additional 35% interest in the HMO in 2003 and purchased the remaining 15% in
March 2005. As of December 31, 2005, our Tennessee HMO, known as HealthSpring of Tennessee, had
approximately 72,400 members in 27 counties, including approximately 42,500 Medicare Advantage members, and
29,900 commercial members. In addition, through Signature Health Alliance, our wholly-owned PPO network
subsidiary, we provided repricing and access to our provider networks for approximately 83,100 members as of
December 31, 2005 throughout the 20-county area of Middle Tennessee.

As of December 31, 2008, there were approximately 944,300 Medicare beneficiaries in the State of Tennessee,
including approximately 437,300 Medicare beneficiaries in the counties in which we currently operate. Our
Tennessee market is primarily divided into three major service areas including Middle Tennessee, the three-county
greater Memphis area, and the four-county greater Chattanooga area. As of December 31, 2005, approximately
10.9% of the Medicare beneficiaries in these service areas participated in a Medicare Advantage plan, compared to
10.1% of Medicare beneficiaries on a statewide basis.

We believe there are currently four competing Medicare Advantage plans in our service areas in Tennessee and
that we held the leading market position as of December 31, 2005, based on membership, in these areas. Qur
principal competitors in these service areas are UnitedHealth Group, Humana, Inc., Sterling Life Insurance
Company, and Cariten Healthcare.

Texas

We began operations in Texas in November 2000 as an independent physician association management
company. We began operating an HMO in Texas in November 2002 when we acquired approximately 7,800
Medicare lives from a managed care plan in state receivership. As of December 31, 2003, our Texas HMO, known
as Texas HealthSpring, had approximately 29,700 Medicare Advantage members in 20 counties in Southeast Texas,
Northeast Texas, and the Rio Grande Valley.

As of December 31, 2005, there were approximately 2.6 million Medicare beneficiaries in the State of Texas,
including approximately 701,000 Medicare beneficiaries in the counties in which we currently operate. Our Texas
market is primarily divided into three major service areas including, the 14-county greater Houston area, a four-
county Northeast Texas area, and a two-county Rio Grande Valley area. As of December 31, 2005, approximately
8.9% of the Medicare beneficiaries in these major service areas participated in a Medicare Advantage plan,
compared to 8.7% of the Medicare beneficiaries on a statewide basis.




We believe there are currently four competing Medicare Advantage plans in our service areas in Texas and that
we held the leading market position as of December 31, 2005, based on membership. Our principal competitors in
these service areas are Humana, Inc., XL Health, Universal American Financial Corp., doing business as SelectCare
of Texas, and UnitedHealth Group, doing business as EverCare.

Alabama

We began operations in Alabama in November 2002 when we purchased an HMO with approximately 23,000
commercial members and approximately;2,800 Medicare members in two counties. As of December 31, 2005,
HealthSpring of Alabama served over 36,400 members, including approximately 24,500 Medicare Advantage
members and 11,900 commercial members, in 42 counties.

We recently decided to discontinue offering commercial benefits to individuals and small group employers in
Alabama effective June 1, 2006. Prior to June 1, 2006, small employer groups currently enrolled in our commercial
plans may elect to continue participating in our plans through June 30, 2007. As of December 31, 2005, there were
1,417 commercial members participatingiin our individual and small employer group plans in Alabama. Pursuant to
Alabama law, as a result of our decision to exit the individual and small group commercial markets, we may not re-
enter the individual and small group employer commercial markets in Alabama until November 30, 2010.

As of December 31, 2005, there were approximately 774,000 Medicare beneficiaries in the State of Alabama,
including approximately 551,000 Medicate beneficiaries in the 42 counties in which we currently operate. As we
generally operate statewide, we do not have distinct primary service areas in Alabama. As of December 31, 2005,
approximately 13.5% of the Medicare beneficiaries in the counties in which we operate participated in a Medicare
Advantage plan, compared to 9.7% of the Medicare beneficiaries statewide. We believe there are currently two
competing Medicare Advantage plans in our service areas in the State of Alabama, and that our market position as
of December 31, 2005, based on membership, was second. Our principal competitors in these service areas are
UnitedHealth Group and Viva Health, a member of the University of Alabama at Birmingham Health System.

Hlinois !

We began operations in Illinois in December 2004 and, as of December 31, 2005, our Medicare Advantage plan
in Hlinois, known as HealthSpring of lllinois, served approximately 4,100 beneficiaries in eight counties in the
Chicago area. HealthSpring of Illinois is one of four managed care companies currently offering competing
Medicare Advantage plans that operate in the greater Chicago metropolitan area, and we believe our primary
competitor is Humana, Inc.

As of December 31, 2005, there were approximately 1.7 million Medicare beneficiaries in the State of Illinois,
including over one million Medicare bené‘;ﬁciaries in the eight counties in which we currently operate. As of
December 31, 2005, approximately 43,000, or 4.2%, of the Medicare beneficiaries in the counties in which we
operate participated in a Medicare Advantage plan, compared to 5.0% of the Medicare beneficiaries statewide. Prior
to the impact of the budget restrictions and other changes to the Medicare program following the BBA, there were
approximately 150,000 Medicare beneﬁmarles in the Chicago metropolitan area enrolled in Medicare managed care
plans.

Mississippi

We commenced our enrollment efforts in July 2005 for our Medicare Advantage plan, known as HealthSpring of
Mississippi, in two counties in northern Mississippi located near Memphis, Tennessee. We entered these service
areas consistent with our growth strategy to leverage existing operations to expand to new service areas located near
or contiguous to our existing service areas. We are licensed and intend to expand our operations in our Mississippi
market to include six counties in southernMississippi located near Mobile, Alabama. Those expansion efforts were
temporarily delayed as a result of Hurricane Katrina, and have recently been resumed.

As of December 31, 2005, there were approximately 468,000 Medicare beneficiaries in the State of Mississippi,
including approximately 88,000 Medicare'beneficiaries in our service areas in Mississippi. Currently, we believe
there are two other managed care companies offering competing Medicare Advantage plans in the State of
Mississippi: Tenet Healthcare Corporation and Humana, Inc.




We generally pay our providers under one of three payment methods:

» fee-for-service, based on a negotiated fixed-fee schedule where we are fully responsible for managing
institutional and professional risk;

» capitation, based on a PMPM payment, where physicians generally assume the professional risk, oron a
case-rate or per diem basis where a hospital or health system generally assumes the institutional or
professional risk, or both; and

» risk-sharing arrangements, typically with a physician group, where we advance, on a PMPM basis, amounts
designed to cover the anticipated professional risk and then adjust payments, on a monthly basis, between us
and the physician group based on actual experience measured against pre-determined sharing ratios.

Under any of these payment methods, we may also supplement provider payments with incentive arrangements
based, in general, on the quality of healthcare delivery. For example, as an incentive to encourage our providers to
deliver high quality care for their patients and assist us with our quality assurance and medical management
programs, we often seek to implement incentive arrangements whereby we compensate our providers for “quality
performance,” including increased fee-for-service rates for specified preventive health services and additional
payments for providing specified encounter data on a timely basis. We also seek to implement financial incentives
relating to other operational matters where appropriate.

In some cases, particularly with respect to contracts between hospitals or health care systems and our
commercial health plans, we may be at risk for medical expenses above and beyond a negotiated amount (a so-called
“stop loss™ provision), which amount is typically calculated by reference to a percentage of billed charges, in some
cases back to the first dollar of medical expense. When our members receive services for which we are responsible
from a provider with whom we have not contracted, such as in the case of emergency room services from non-
contracted hospitals, we generally attempt to negotiate a rate with that provider or obtain a discount through a
network repricing vendor. In some cases, we may be obligated to pay the full rate billed by the provider. In the case
of a Medicare patient who is admitted to a non-contracting hospital, we are only obligated to pay the amount that the
hospital would have received from CMS under traditional fee-for-service Medicare.

We believe our incentive and risk-sharing arrangements with physicians help to align their interests with us and
our members and improve both clinical and financial outcomes. We will continue to seek to implement these
arrangements where possible in our existing and new service areas.

Sales and Marketing Programs

As of December 31, 2005, our sales force consisted of approximately 700 independent agents and 80 internal
licensed sales employees (including in-house telemarketing personnel). Our independent agents are compensated on
a commission basis. Medicare Advantage enrollment is generally a decision made individually by the member.
Accordingly, our sales agents and representatives focus their efforts on in-person contacts with potential enrollees.
In addition to traditional marketing methods including direct mail, telemarketing, radio, internet and other mass
media, and cooperative advertising with participating hospitals and medical groups to generate leads, we also
conduct community outreach programs in churches and community centers and in coordination with government
agencies. We regularly participate in local community health fairs and events, and seek to become involved with
local senior citizen organizations to promote our products and the benefits of preventive care. Our sales and
marketing programs are tailored to each of our local service areas and are designed with the goal of educating,
attracting, and retaining members and providers. In addition, we seek to create ethnically and culturally competent
marketing programs where appropriate that reflect the diversity of the areas that we serve.

Our marketing and sales activities are heavily regulated by CMS and other governmental agencies. For example,
CMS has oversight over all, and in some cases has imposed advance approval requirements with respect to,
marketing materials used by our Medicare Advantage plans, and our sales activities are limited to activities such as
conveying information regarding the benefits of preventive care, describing the operations of managed care plans,
and providing information about eligibility requirements. The activities of our third-party brokers and agents are
also heavily regulated.
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We believe there are currently four cémpeting Medicare Advantage plans in our service areas in Texas and that
we held the leading market position as of, December 31, 2003, based on membership. Our principal competitors in
these service areas are Humana, Inc., XL,Health, Universal American Financial Corp., doing business as SelectCare
of Texas, and UnitedHealth Group, doing business as EverCare.

I
Alabama ‘1

We began operations in Alabama in November 2002 when we purchased an HMO with approximately 23,000
commercial members and approximately|2,800 Medicare members in two counties. As of December 31, 2005,
HealthSpring of Alabama served over 36i400 members, including approximately 24,500 Medicare Advantage
members and 11,900 commercial membe;;rs, in 42 counties.

We recently decided to discontinue oﬁfering commercial benefits to individuals and small group employers in
Alabama effective June 1, 2006. Prior to June 1, 2006, small employer groups currently enrolled in our commercial
plans may elect to continue participating in our plans through June 30, 2007. As of December 31, 2005, there were
1,417 commercial members participating\\in our individual and small employer group plans in Alabama. Pursuant to
Alabama law, as a result of our decision to exit the individual and small group commercial markets, we may not re-
enter the individual and small group employer commercial markets in Alabama until November 30, 2010.

As of December 31, 2005, there were f\approximately 774,000 Medicare beneficiaries in the State of Alabama,
including approximately 551,000 Medica“‘re beneficiaries in the 42 counties in which we currently operate. As we
generally operate statewide, we do not hal}ve distinct primary service areas in Alabama. As of December 31, 2005,
approximately 13.5% of the Medicare beneficiaries in the counties in which we operate participated in a Medicare
Advantage plan, compared to 9.7% of the| Medicare beneficiaries statewide. We believe there are currently two
competing Medicare Advantage plans in our service areas in the State of Alabama, and that our market position as

I . o T .
of December 31, 2005, based on membership, was second. Our principal competitors in these service areas are

UnitedHealth Group and Viva Health, a n,”lember of the University of Alabama at Birmingham Health System.

Hlinois

We began operations in Illinois in December 2004 and, as of December 31, 2003, our Medicare Advantage plan
in Ilinois, known as HealthSpring of Illinuois, served approximately 4,100 beneficiaries in eight counties in the
Chicago area. HealthSpring of 1llinois is one of four managed care companies currently offering competing
Medicare Advantage plans that operate in‘\ the greater Chicago metropolitan area, and we believe our primary

competitor is Humana, Inc.

|

As of December 31, 2005, there were gpproximately 1.7 million Medicare beneficiaries in the State of Illinois,
including over one million Medicare bene“‘[ﬁciaries in the eight counties in which we currently operate. As of
December 31, 2003, approximately 43,000, or 4.2%, of the Medicare beneficiaries in the counties in which we
operate participated in a Medicare Advant““age plan, compared to 5.0% of the Medicare beneficiaries statewide. Prior
to the impact of the budget restrictions and other changes to the Medicare program following the BBA, there were
approximately 150,000 Medicare beneficiaries in the Chicago metropolitan area enrolled in Medicare managed care

plans.

Mississippi
We commenced our enrollment efforts in July 2005 for our Medicare Advantage plan, known as HealthSpring of
Mississippi, in two counties in northern Mississippi located near Memphis, Tennessee. We entered these service
areas consistent with our growth strategy to leverage existing operations to expand to new service areas located near
or contiguous o our existing service areas. We are licensed and intend to expand our operations in our Mississippi
market to include six counties in southern [Mississippi located near Mobile, Alabama. Those expansion efforts were

temporarily delayed as a result of Hurricane Katrina, and have recently been resumed.

As of December 31, 2005, there were approximately 468,000 Medicare beneficiaries in the State of Mississippi,
including approximately 88,000 Medicare 'beneﬁciaries in our service areas in Mississippi. Currently, we believe
there are two other managed care companies offering competing Medicare Advantage plans in the State of
Mississioni: .|

ississippi: Tenet Healthcare Corporation and Humana, Inc.




Medical Health Services Management and Provider Networks

One of our primary goals is to arrange for high quality healthcare for our members. To achieve our goal of
ensuring high quality, cost-effective healthcare, we have established various quality management programs,
including disease management and utilization management programs.

Our disease management programs are focused on prevention and care and are designed to support the
coordination of healthcare intervention, physician/patient relationships and plans of care, preventive care, and
patient empowerment with the goal of improving the quality of patient care and controlling related costs. Our
disease management programs are focused primarily on high-risk care management and the treatment of our
chronically ill members. These programs are designed to efficiently treat patients with specific high risk or chronic
conditions such as coronary artery disease, congestive heart failure, prenatal and premature infant care, end stage
renal disease, diabetes, asthma related conditions, and certain other conditions. In addition to internal disease
management efforts, we have partnered with outsourced disease management companies to educate members on
chronic medical conditions, help them comply with medication regimens, and counse! members on healthy
lifestyles.

We also have implemented utilization, or case, management programs to provide more efficient and effective use
of healthcare services by our members. Our case management programs are designed to improve outcomes for
members with chronic conditions through standardization, proactive management, coordinating fragmented
healthcare systems to reduce duplication, provide “gate-keeping” services, and improve collaboration with
physicians, We have partners that monitor hospitalization, coordinate care, and ensure timely discharge from the
hospital. In addition, we use internal case management programs and contracts with other third parties to manage
severely and chronically ill patients. We utilize on-site critical care intensivists, hospitalists and concurrent review
nurses, who manage the appropriate times for outpatient care, hospitalization, rehabilitation or home care. We also
offer prenatal case management programs as part of our commercial plans.

We have information technology systems that support our quality improvement and management activities by
allowing us to identify opportunities to improve care and track the outcomes of the services provided to achieve
those improvements. We utilize this information as part of our monthly analytical reviews described above and to
enhance our preventive care and disease and case management programs where appropriate.

Additionally, we internally monitor and evaluate, and seek to enhance, the performance of our providers. Our
related programs include:

+ review of utilization of preventive measures and disease/case management resources and related outcomes;
+ member satisfaction surveys;

+ review of grievances and appeals by members and providers;

+ orientation visits to, and site audits of, select providers;

* ongoing provider and member education programs; and

* medical record audits.

As more fully described below under *“— Provider Arrangements and Payment Methods,” our reimbursement
methods are also designed to encourage providers to utilize preventive care and our other disease and case
management services in an effort to improve clinical outcomes.

We believe strong provider relationships are essential to increasing our membership, improving the quality of
care to our members and making our health plans profitable. We have established comprehensive networks of
providers in each of the areas we serve. We seek providers who have experience in managing the Medicare
population, including through a risk-sharing or other relationship with a Medicare Advantage plan. Our goal is to
create mutually beneficial and collaborative arrangements with our providers. We believe provider incentive
arrangements should not only help us attract providers, but also help align their interests with our objective of
providing high-quality, cost-effective healthcare and ultimately encourage providers to deliver a level of care that
promotes member wellness, reduces avoidable catastrophic outcomes, and improves clinical results.
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The following table shows the approximate number of physicians, specialists, and other providers participating
in our Medicare Advantage networks as o;‘f December 31, 2005:

“ Primary Care Ancillary

Market ! Physicians Specialists  Hospitals  Providers
TENNESSEE w.eeveviiveeeiecriiicee e oo 1,198 3,057 53 353
TEXAS tvveiiiieeiieiiee e ire e b 607 942 44 277
AlabAMA. ... Do 726 2,168 44 315
THENOIS oo Lo 458 1,441 24 306
MISSISSIPPL v eerereeereeseeneaens ;[ .......... 21 17 1 2
X 1) — 3,010 7.625 166 1,253

In our efforts to improve the quality and cost-effectiveness of heathcare for our members, we continue to refine
and develop new methods of medical marﬂagement and physician engagement. Two such initiatives are currently
underway. We have had encouraging preliminary results from the initial pilot of our “pay-for-performance”
initiative, which provides quality and outc‘“omes-based financial incentives to physicians, with a single medical group
in Tennessee. The program, as piloted, includes an in-office resource, usually a nurse, in the physician practice that
is dedicated to serving our members. We ualso provide a dedicated call center resource for disease management
support. We are currently in the process ol{f expanding the program to physician offices in Tennessee, Alabama, and
Texas to determine whether the early results can be replicated across markets.

|

We are also planning to open later in %006 our first clinic dedicated to our Medicare plan members, partnering
with the same medical group in Tennessee that experienced the encouraging pay-for-performance results discussed

above. The clinic will be designed with tﬂ e Medicare member in mind, with amenities designed to minimize any
barrier to patient access such as single floors (no elevators or stairs); adjacent parking or valet service and, in some
cases pick-up and return services; open reception areas; on-site nutritionists, dieticians, and nurse educators; wide
corridors and doors; handicapped-accessible facilities; and electronic medical records. We believe clinics have the
potential to improve member satisfaction, 'service levels, and clinical outcomes and provide for a more satisfying
and cost-efficient manner for the physiciax‘l to deliver care. We also believe clinics will give us an advantage over

. . -
our competitors, creating a more attractw? network for our members.

Generally, we contract for pharmacy s;[ervices through an unrelated pharmacy benefits manager, or PBM, who is
reimbursed at a discount to the “average wholesale price” for the provision of covered outpatient drugs. In addition,

our HMOs are entitled to share in the PBM’S rebates based on pharmacy utilization relating to certain qualifying
medications. We also contract with a third party behavioral health vendor who provides mental health and substance

abuse services for our members. ‘

We strive to be the preferred Medicare Advantage partner for providers in each market we serve. In addition to
risk-sharing and other incentive-based financial arrangements, we seek to promote a provider-friendly relationship
by paying claims promptly, providing periodic performance and efficiency evaluations, providing convenient, web-
based access to eligibility data and other information, and encouraging provider input on plan benefits. We also
empbhasize quality assurance and compliance by periodically reviewing our networks and providers. By fostering a
collaborative, interactive relationship with our providers, we are better able to gathér data relevant to improving the
level of preventive healthcare available under our plans, monitor the utilization of medical treatment and the
accuracy of patient encounter data, risk co}}ding and the risk scores of our plans, and otherwise ensure our contracted
providers are providing high-quality and timely medical care.

|

Provider Arrangements and Payment Nllethods

We attempt to structure our provider a‘rrangements and payment methods in a manner that encourages the
medical provider to deliver high quality medical care to our members. We also attempt to structure our provider
contracts in a way that mitigates some or q‘ll of our medical risk either through capitation or other risk-sharing
arrangements. In general, there are two types of medical risk — professional and institutional. Professional risk
primarily relates to physician and other ouﬁpatiem services. Institutional risk primarily relates to hospitalization and
other inpatient or institutionally-based services.




We generally pay our providers under one of three payment methods:

+ fee-for-service, based on a negotiated fixed-fee schedule where we are fully responsible for managing
institutional and professional risk;

+ capitation, based on a PMPM payment, where physicians generally assume the professional risk, or on a
case-rate or per diem basis where a hospital or health system generally assumes the institutional or
professional risk, or both; and

+ risk-sharing arrangements, typically with a physician group, where we advance, on a PMPM basis, amounts
designed to cover the anticipated professional risk and then adjust payments, on a monthly basis, between us
and the physician group based on actual experience measured against pre-determined sharing ratios.

Under any of these payment methods, we may also supplement provider payments with incentive arrangements
based, in general, on the quality of healthcare delivery. For example, as an incentive to encourage our providers to
deliver high quality care for their patients and assist us with our quality assurance and medical management
programs, we often seek to implement incentive arrangements whereby we compensate our providers for “quality
performance,” including increased fee-for-service rates for specified preventive health services and additional
payments for providing specified encounter data on a timely basis. We also seek to implement financial incentives
relating to other operational matters where appropriate.

In some cases, particularly with respect to contracts between hospitals or health care systems and our
commercial health plans, we may be at risk for medical expenses above and beyond a negotiated amount (a so-called
“stop loss™ provision), which amount is typically calculated by reference to a percentage of billed charges, in some
cases back to the first dollar of medical expense. When our members receive services for which we are responsible
from a provider with whom we have not contracted, such as in the case of emergency room services from non-
contracted hospitals, we generally attempt to negotiate a rate with that provider or obtain a discount through a
network repricing vendor. In some cases, we may be obligated to pay the full rate billed by the provider. In the case
of a Medicare patient who is admitted to a non-contracting hospital, we are only obligated to pay the amount that the
hospital would have received from CMS under traditional fee-for-service Medicare.

We believe our incentive and risk-sharing arrangements with physicians help to align their interests with us and
our members and improve both clinical and financial outcomes. We will continue to seek to implement these
arrangements where possible in our existing and new service areas.

Sales and Marketing Programs

As of December 31, 2005, our sales force consisted of approximately 700 independent agents and 80 internal
licensed sales employees (including in-house telemarketing personnel). Our independent agents are compensated on
a commission basis. Medicare Advantage enrollment is generally a decision made individually by the member.
Accordingly, our sales agents and representatives focus their efforts on in-person contacts with potential enrollees.
In addition to traditional marketing methods including direct mail, telemarketing, radio, internet and other mass
media, and cooperative advertising with participating hospitals and medical groups to generate leads, we also
conduct community outreach programs in churches and community centers and in coordination with government
agencies. We regularly participate in local community health fairs and events, and seek to become involved with
local senior citizen organizations to promote our products and the benefits of preventive care. Our sales and
marketing programs are tailored to each of our local service areas and are designed with the goal of educating,
attracting, and retaining members and providers. In addition, we seek to create ethnically and culturally competent
marketing programs where appropriate that reflect the diversity of the areas that we serve.

Our marketing and sales activities are heavily regulated by CMS and other governmental agencies. For example,
CMS has oversight over all, and in some cases has imposed advance approval requirements with respect to,
marketing materials used by our Medicare Advantage plans, and our sales activities are limited to activities such as
conveying information regarding the benefits of preventive care, describing the operations of managed care plans,
and providing information about eligibility requirements. The activities of our third-party brokers and agents are
also heavily regulated.
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Prior to 2006, Medicare beneficiaries cPuld enroll in or change health plans at any time during the year. As of
January 1, 2006, Medicare beneficiaries have a limited annnal enrollment period during which they can choose

I

between a Medicare Advantage plan and traditional fee-for-service Medicare. After this annual enrollment period

ends, generally only seniors turning 65 during the year, dual-eligible beneficiaries and others who qualify for special
needs plans, Medicare beneficiaries permanently relocating to another service area, and employer group retirees will
be permitted to enroll in or change health ﬂlans The annual enrollment period for 2006 is November 15, 2005
through May 15, 2006 for stand-alone PDPHS and through June 30, 2006 for Medicare Advantage plans. Thereafter,
the annual enrollment period will be from November 15 through December 31 each year for stand-alone PDPs and
through March 31 of the following year fo% Medicare Advantage plans. Although our experience to date with the
prospect of limited enrollment has not resulted in significant changes to our sales and marketing efforts, we have not
fully determined whether the impact of lin‘ﬁted enrollment will adversely affect such efforts or our sales and
marketing personne!l or our business as a whole
v\
Quality Assurance H
|

As part of our quality assurance progra‘m we have implemented processes designed to ensure compliance with
regulatory and accreditation standards. Our quality assurance program also consists of internal programs that
credential providers and programs designed to help ensure we meet the audit standards of federal and state agencies,
including CMS and the state departments OHf insurance, as well as applicable external accreditation standards. For
example, we monitor and educate, in accordance with audit tools developed by CMS, our claims, credentialing,
customer service, enrollment, health servuces providers relations, contracting, and marketing departments with
respect to compliance with applicable laws)\ regulations, and other requirements.

Our providers must satisfy specific crite”:ria, such as licensing, credentialing, patient access, office standards,
after-hours coverage, and other factors. Our participating hospitals must also meet specific criteria, including
accreditation criteria established by CMS. u

|
Competition H
‘\

We operate in an increasingly competmuve environment. Our principal competitors for contracts, members, and
providers vary by local service area and are pr1nc1pa11y national, regional and local commercial managed care
organizations that serve Medicare recipients, including, among others, UnitedHealth Group, Humana, Inc., and
Universal American Financial Corp. In add‘mon the MMA (including Medicare Part D) may cause a number of
commercial managed care organizations, some of which are already in our service areas, to decide to enter the
Medicare Advantage market. Furthermore, }‘the implementation of Medicare Part D prescription drug benefits in
2006 has attracted national and regional pharmaceutical distributors and retailers, pharmacy benefit managers, and
managed care organizations to our markets and provide services and benefits to the Medicare eligible population.
Pursuant to the MMA, a regional Medicare PPO program was implemented as of January 1, 2006. Medicare PPOs
allow their members more flexibility to select physicians than HMO Medicare Advantage plans. The new regional

Medicare PPO plans will compete with local Medicare Advantage HMO plans, including the plans we offer.

We believe the principal factors mﬂuen‘\clng a Medicare recipient’s choice among health plan options are:
[

|
* additional premiums, if any, payable by the beneficiary;

* benefits offered;

+ location and choice of healthcare providers;
\
I

* quality of customer service and administrative efficiency;

* reputation for quality care; \
|

+ financial stability of the plan; and

» accreditation results.
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A number of these competitive elements are partially dependent upon and can be positively affected by financial
resources available to a health plan. We face competition from other managed care companies that have greater
financial and other resources, larger enrollments, broader ranges of products and benefits, broader geographical
coverage, more established reputations in the national market and in our markets, greater market share, larger
contracting scale, and lower costs. Superior benefit design, provider network, and community perception may also
provide a distinct competitive advantage. If a competing plan is able to gain a competitive advantage over us in our
markets, it may negatively impact our enrollment and profitability.

Our Competitive Advantages
We believe the following are our key competitive advantages:

Focus on Medicare Advantage Market. We are focused primarily on Medicare. We believe our focus on
designing and operating Medicare health plans tailored to each of our local service areas enables us to offer superior
Medicare plans and to operate those plans with what we believe to be lower MLRs. Our focus allows us to:

* build relationships with provider networks that deliver the care desired by Medicare beneficiaries in their
local service areas at contractual rates that take into account Medicare reimbursement schedules;

+ direct our sales and marketing efforts primarily to Medicare beneficiaries and their families, customized to
the demographics of the communities in which we operate; and

+ staff each of our service areas with locally-based senior managers who understand the particular dynamics
influencing behavior of local Medicare beneficiaries and providers as well as political and legislative impacts
on our programs.

Leading Presence in Attractive, Underpenetrated Markets. We have a significant market position in our
established service areas and in many of our service areas we are the market leader in terms of the number of
members. Although Medicare Advantage penetration is highly variable across the country as a result of numerous
factors, including infrastructure and provider accessibility, our service areas in particular are underpenetrated,
providing opportunities for increased membership. [n our current service areas the percentage of Medicare eligible
beneficiaries that were enrolled in our or a competitor’s Medicare Advantage plan as of December 31, 2005 ranged
from 0.4% to 13.5% (or 8.1% across all service areas). Medicare Advantage penetration in service areas in other
markets has surpassed 40%. In addition, as of December 31, 2005, our share of Medicare Advantage plan enroliees
(expressed as a percentage of total Medicare Advantage plan enrollees) in our service areas in our Tennessee, Texas,
and Alabama markets was approximately 88%, 47%, and 32%, respectively.

Effective Medical Management. Our medical management efforts are designed primarily for the Medicare
Advantage program. For the combined twelve month period ended December 31, 2005, our Medicare MLR was
78.4%. We believe our ability to predict and manage our medical expenses is the result of the following primary
factors:

*  Analytical Focus — We have institutionalized, throughout our management team, a data-driven analytical
focus on our operations. We intensively review, on a monthly basis, actuarial analyses of claims data, IBNR
claims, medical cost trends and loss ratios, and other relevant data by service area and product. We also
assess provider relations on a monthly basis in reliance upon reports prepared by the senior management
team for each of our markets. The monthly reviews are attended by senior management of the company and
our local markets and allow us to identify and address favorable and adverse trends in a timely manner.

*  Provider Partnerships — Our management team has extensive experience managing providers and provider
networks, including independent physician associations such as Renaissance Physician Organization, or
RPO. We believe this experience provides us a competitive advantage in structuring our provider contracts
and provider relations generally. Our provider networks at December 31, 2005 included over 10,600
physicians and 165 hospitals. We seek providers who have experience in managing the Medicare population.
We attempt to partner with our providers by, among other things, aligning physician interests with our
interests and the interests of our members by way of incentive compensation and risk-sharing arrangements.
These incentive arrangements are designed to encourage our providers to deliver a level of care that promotes
member wellness, reduces avoidable catastrophic outcomes, and improves clinical and financial results.
Additionally, we internally monitor and evaluate the performance of our providers on a periodic basis to
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ensure these relationships are successful in meeting their goals and engage our providers directly when

appropriate to address perfomancé deficiencies individually or within their networks.
I

*  Focus on Promoting Member Wenllness and Managing Medical Care Utilization — We practice a
“gatekeeper™ approach to managin‘y‘g care. Each member selects a primary care physician who coordinates
care for that member and, in conjuhction with the company, monitors and controls the member’s utilization
of the network. Although the priméry care physician is primarily responsible for managing member
utilization and promoting memberweliness, we have also implemented comprehensive health services
quality management programs to h”elp ensure high quality, cost-effective healthcare for our members, and in
particular the chronically ill. We a‘\c!tively manage improvements in beneficiary care through internal and
outsourced disease management prﬁograms for members with chronic medical conditions. We have also
designed case management programs to provide more effective utilization of healthcare services by our
members, including through the employment of on-site critical care intensivists, hospitalists, and concurrent
review nurses who are trained to kti‘aow the appropriate times for outpatient care, hospitalization,
rehabilitation, or home care, and tHrough partnerships with third party case management specialists. We work
closely with our disease and case management partners in a hands-on approach to help ensure the desired
outcomes. Our providers are trained and encouraged to utilize our disease and case management programs in
an effort to improve clinical and ﬁr‘{\‘mancial outcomes.

Scalable Operating Structure. We ha{ye centralized certain functions of our health plans, including claims
payment, actuarial review, health risk assessment, and benefit design for operational efficiencies and to facilitate our
analytical, data-driven approach to operatibns. Other functions, including member services, sales and marketing,
provider relations, medical management, a‘\l‘nd financial reporting and analysis, are customized for each of our local
service areas. We believe this combination of centralized administrative functions and local service area focus,
including localized medical management p‘»‘rograms and on-site personnel at facility locations, gives us an advantage
over competitors who have standardized and centralized many or all of these operating and member services
functions. Additionally, we have designed our centralized and local administrative and information services

functions to be scalable to accommodate O‘Jr growth in existing or new service areas.
Experienced Management Team. Our management team has expertise in the Medicare Advantage segment of
the managed care industry. Our present operations team has focused primarily on the operation of Medicare
managed care plans since 2000. Prior to joining the company, our operations team managed physician networks and
structured risk-sharing relationships amoné healthcare providers. We believe this experience, including operating
and growing Medicare Advantage plans through acquisitions and internal growth, gives us an advantage over our
competitors. We also intend to use our indé::pendent physician association management experience to further develop
our provider relationships, and independen% physician association relationships in particular, through the replication

of existing arrangements we have created v“‘[vith independent physician associations in certain of our markets.

Regulation

Overview i
As a managed healthcare company, our\\operations are and will continue to be subject to substantial federal, state,
and local government regulation which wil% have a broad effect on the operation of our health plans. The laws and
regulations affecting our industry generally\\ give state and federal regulatory authorities broad discretion in their
exercise of supervisory, regulatory and administrative powers. These laws and regulations are intended primarily for
the benefit of the members and providers oi“ the health plans.
|
Our right to obtain payment from Medi%are is subject to compliance with numerous regulations and
requirements, many of which are complex, ‘Fvolving as a result of the MMA and subject to administrative discretion.
Moreover, since we are contracting only with the Medicare program to provide coverage for beneficiaries of our
Medicare Advantage plans, our Medicare revenues are completely dependent upon the reimbursement levels and
coverage determinations in effect from timé“‘ to time in the Medicare Advantage program.
. I
In addition, in order to operate our Medi:\,care Advantage plans, we must obtain and maintain certificates of
authority or license from each state in which we operate. In order to remain certified we generally must demonstrate,
among other things, that we have the financial resources necessary to pay our anticipated medical care expenses and
the infrastructure needed to account for our costs and otherwise meet applicable licensing requirements.
Accordingly, in order to remain qualified fo\‘r the Medicare Advantage program, it may be necessary for our

Medicare Advantage plans to make changes“ from time to time in their operations, personnel, and services. Although
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we intend for our Medicare Advantage plans to maintain certification and to continue to participate in those
reimbursement programs, there can be no assurance that our Medicare Advantage plans will continue to qualify for
participation.

Each of our health plans is also required to report quarterly on its financial performance to the appropriate
regulatory agency in the state in which the health plan is licensed. Each plan also undergoes periodic reviews of our
quality of care and financial status by the applicable state agencies.

Federal Regulation

Medicare. Medicare is a federally sponsored healthcare plan for persons aged 65 and over, qualifying disabled
persons and persons suffering from end-stage renal disease which provides a variety of hospital and medical
insurance benefits. We contract with CMS to provide services to Medicare beneficiaries pursuant to the Medicare
Advantage program. As a result, we are subject to extensive federal regulations, some of which are described in
more detail below, CMS may audit any health plan operating under a Medicare contract to determine the plan’s
compliance with federal regulations and contractual obligations.

A more complete description of Medicare and the MMA is set forth above under “The 2003 Medicare
Modernization Act.” We are currently monitoring the implementation of the MMA to determine how it will impact
our operations throughout 2006 and we will continue to monitor this issue as new regulations are released.

Additionally, the marketing activities of Medicare Advantage plans are strictly regulated by CMS. For example,
CMS has oversight over all, and in some cases has imposed advance approval requirements with respect to,
marketing materials used by our Medicare Advantage plans, and our sales activities are limited to activities such as
conveying information regarding the benefits of preventive care, describing the operations of managed care plans,
and providing information about eligibility requirements. Federal law precludes states from imposing additional
marketing restrictions on Medicare Advantage plans. States, however, remain free to regulate, and typically do
regulate, the marketing activities of plans that enroll commercial beneficiaries.

Fraud and Abuse Laws. The federal anti-kickback statute imposes criminal and civil penalties for paying or
receiving remuneration (which includes kickbacks, bribes, and rebates) in connection with any federal healthcare
program, including the Medicare program. The law and related regulations have been interpreted to prohibit the
payment, solicitation, offering or receipt of any form of remuneration in return for the referral of federal healthcare
program patients or any item or service that is reimbursed, in whole or in part, by any federal healthcare program. In
some of our markets, states have adopted similar anti-kickback provisions, which apply regardless of the source of
reimbursement.

With respect to the federal anti-kickback statute, there are two safe harbors addressing certain risk-sharing
arrangements. In addition, the Office of the Inspector General has adopted other safe harbors related to managed
care arrangements. These safe harbors describe relationships and activities that are deemed not to violate the federal
anti-kickback statute. However, failure to satisfy each criterion of an applicable safe harbor does not mean that an
arrangement constitutes a violation of the law; rather the arrangement must be analyzed on the basis of its specific
facts and circumstances. Business arrangements that do not fall within a safe harbor do create a risk of increased
scrutiny by government enforcement authorities. We have attempted to structure our risk-sharing arrangements with
providers, the incentives offered by our health plans to Medicare beneficiaries, and the discounts our plans receive
from contracting healthcare providers to satisfy the requirements of these safe harbors. There can be no assurance,
however, that upon review regulatory authorities will determine that our arrangements do not violate the federal
anti-kickback statute.

CMS has promulgated regulations that prohibit health plans with Medicare contracts from including any direct or
indirect payment to physicians or other providers as an inducement to reduce or limit medically necessary services
to a Medicare beneficiary. These regulations impose disclosure and other requirements relating to physician
incentive plans including bonuses or withholdings that could result in a physician being at “substantial financial
risk” as defined in Medicare regulations. Our ability to maintain compliance with these regulations depends, in part,
on our receipt of timely and accurate information from our providers. We conduct our operations in an attempt to
comply with these regulations; however, we are subject to future audit and review. It is possible that regulatory
authorities may challenge our provider arrangements and operations and there can be no assurance that we would
prevail if challenged.
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Federal False Claims Act. We are su%ject to a number of laws that regulate the presentation of false claims or
the submission of false information to the ’federal government. For example, the federal False Claims Act provides,
in part, that the federal government may bpng a lawsuit against any person or entity whom it believes has knowingly
presented, or caused to be presented, a falSe or fraudulent request for payment from the federal government, or who
has made a false statement or used a false record to get a claim approved. The federal government has taken the
position that claims presented in v1olat10m£of the federal Anti-Kickback Statute may be considered a violation of the
federal False Claims Act. Violations of the False Claims Act are punishable by treble damages and penalties of up to
$11,000 per false claim. In addition to suxts filed by the government, a special provision under the False Claims Act
allows a private individual (e.g., a whlstleblower such as a disgruntled former employee, competitor or patient) to
bring an action under the False Claims Act on behalf of the government alleging that an entity has defrauded the
federal government and permits the whlstleblower to share in any settlement or judgment that may result from that
lawsuit. Although we strive to operate our| Ibusiness in complhiance with all applicable rules and regulations, we may
be subject to investigations and lawsuits under the False Claims Act that may be initiated either by the government

or a whistleblower. It is not possible to pre‘\‘dxct the impact such actions may have on our business.

Health Insurance Portability and Acc{ountabiliry Act of 1996. The Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996, or HIPAA, imposes requirements relating to a variety of issues that affect our business,
including the privacy and security of med1ca1 information, limits on exclusions based on preexisting conditions for
our plans, guaranteed renewability of healthcare coverage for most employers and individuals and administrative
simplification procedures involving the standard1zat10n of transactions and the establishment of uniform healthcare
provider, payor and employer identifiers. Varlous federal agencies have issued regulations to implement certain
sections of HIPAA.

|

For example, the Department of Healthjand Human Services, or DHHS, issued a final rule that establishes the
standard data content and format for the eléctronic submission of claims and other administrative health
transactions. Although we believe our oper\%ltions are compliant with the electronic data standards established by the
final rule, to the extent that we submit to Medicare electronic healthcare claims and payment transactions that are
deemed not to be in compliance with these istandards, payments to us may be delayed or denied. Additionally,
DHHS has issued a final privacy rule and final security standards that apply to individually identifiable health
information. The primary purposes of the p‘rlvacy rule are to protect and enhance the rights of consumers by
prov1dmg them access to their health mforrﬁatlon and controlling the inappropriate use of that information, and to
improve the efficiency and effectiveness ofﬂhealthcare delivery by creating a national framework for health privacy
protection that builds on efforts by states, héalth systems, individual organizations, and individuals. The final rule
for security standards establishes mlmmum\‘standards for the security of individually identifiable health information
that is transmitted or maintained electromcally We will conduct our operations in an attempt to comply with the
requirements of the privacy rule and the sechrlty standards. There can be no assurance, however, that upon review

N/
regulatory authorities will find that we are in compliance with these requirements.

|
On January §, 2001, the U.S. Departmerﬂt of Labor’s Pension and Welfare Benefits Administration, the IRS and
DHHS issued two regulations that provide guxdance on the nondiscrimination provisions under HIPAA as they
relate to health factors and wellness programs. These provisions prohibit a group health plan or group health
insurance issuer from denying an individual\‘xeligibility for benefits or charging an individual a higher premium based

on a health factor. We do not believe that thf“:ese regulations will have a material adverse effect on our business.

. | . . .
Employee Retirement Income Security )Lict of 1974. The provision of services to certain employee health
benefit plans is subject to the Employee Retl‘rement Income Security Act of 1974, or ERISA. ERISA regulates
certain aspects of the relationships between plans and employers who maintain employee benefit plans subject to

ERISA. Some of our administrative services|and other activities may also be subject to regulation under ERISA.
I

The U.S. Department of Labor adopted federal regulations that establish claims procedures for employee benefit
plans under ERISA. The regulations shorten ﬁthe time allowed for health and disability plans to respond to claims and
appeals, establish requirements for plan responses to appeals and expand required disclosures to participants and
beneficiaries. These regulations have not haq a material adverse effect on our business.

State Regulation \\

Though generally governed by federal la\fv each of our HMO subsidiaries is licensed in the market in which it
operates and is subject to the rules, regulations, and oversight by the applicable state department of insurance in the
areas of licensing and solvency. Our HMO sﬂ\lbsidiaries file reports with these state agencies describing their capital

structure, ownership, financial condition, certain inter-company transactions and business operations. Our HMO
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subsidiaries are also generally required to demonstrate among other things, that we have an adequate provider
network, that our systems are capable of processing provider’s claims in a timely fashion and of collecting and
analyzing the information needed to manage their business. State regulations also require the prior approval or
notice of acquisitions or similar transactions involving an HMO, and of certain transactions between an HMO and
its parent or affiliated entities or persons. Generally, our HMOs are limited in their ability to pay dividends to their
stockholders.

Our HMO subsidiaries are required to maintain minimum levels of statutory capital. The minimum statutory
capital requirements differ by state and are generally based on a percentage of annualized premium revenue, a
percentage of annualized healthcare costs or risk-based capital, or RBC, requirements. The RBC requirements are
based on guidelines established by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners, or NAIC and are
administered by the states. If adopted, the RBC requirements may be modified as each state legislature deems
appropriate for that state. Currently, only our Texas HMO subsidiary is subject to RBC requirements and our other
HMO subsidiaries are subject to other minimum statutory capital requirements mandated by the states in which they
are licensed. These requirements assess the capital adequacy of an HMO subsidiary based upon investment asset
risks, insurance risks, interest rate risks and other risks associated with its business to determine the amount of
statutory capital believed to be required to support the HMQO’s business. If the HMO’s statutory capital level falls
below certain required capital levels, the HMO may be required to submit a capital corrective plan to the state
department of insurance, and at certain levels may be subjected to regulatory orders, including regulatory control
through rehabilitation or liquidation proceedings.

Managed Care Legislative Proposals

Proposals are regularly introduced in the U.S. Congress and various state legislatures relating to managed
healthcare reform. On the federal level, while the MMA recently overhauled the Medicare program, it is possible
that significant managed healthcare reform may be enacted in the future. At this time, it is unclear as to when any
federal legislation might be enacted or the timing or content of any new federal legisiation, and we cannot predict
the effect on our operations of any pending or other legislation that may be adopted in the future. The provisions of
legislation that may be introduced or adopted at the state level cannot be accurately and completely predicted at this
time either, and we therefore cannot predict the effect of proposed or future legislation on our operations.

Technology

We have developed and implemented integrated and reliable information technology systems that we believe
have been critical to our success. Our systems collect and process information centrally and support our core
administrative functions, including premium billing, claims processing, utilization management, reporting, medical
cost trending, planning and analysis, as well as certain member and provider service functions, including enrollment,
member eligibility verification, claims status inquiries, and referrals and authorizations. Additionally, we recently
enhanced our disease and case management software functionality. We believe our information systems:

» improve the operating efficiency of our health plans through cost containment, claims auditing, benefits
administration and claims adjudication;

» collect key data for our actuarial analysis, enabling well informed medical management and quality assurance
decisions; and

* improve communications among us and our members and providers.

Our systems are scalable to accommodate our desired organic growth and growth related to acquisitions. We are
in the process of implementing a comprehensive disaster recovery and business continuity plan. We expect that our
business continuity plan will be completed in 2006.

We use or employ independent third parties, such as DST Health Solutions, Inc. and OAO Health Solutions, Inc.,
with whom we have entered into what we believe are customary agreements for the provision of software and
related consulting services with respect to our information technology systems. We are in the process of developing
increased internal software development capability to support and enhance our core processing systems and in order
to respond to rapidly changing market, regulatory, and operational requirements.
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Employees !

At December 31, 2005, we had appr0>u<1mately 900 employees, substantially all of whom were full-time. None of
our employees are presently covered by ajcollective bargaining agreement., We consider relations with our

employees to be good and have never exp\,‘erlenced any work stoppage.
Service Marks \\

The name “HealthSpring” is a register\gd service mark with the United States Patent and Trademark Office. We
also have other registered service marks. Prior use of our service marks by third parties may prevent us from using
our service marks in certain geographic areas. We intend to protect our service marks by appropriate legal action
whenever necessary. |

EXECU"?IVE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY

The following are our executive ofﬁceff‘s and their biographies and ages as of February 28, 2006:

Herbert A. Fritch, age 55, has served gis the Chairman of the Board of Directors, President, and Chief Executive
Officer of the company and its predecessor‘}‘, New Quest, LLC, since the commencement of operations in September
2000. Mr. Fritch is also the president of RPO. Beginning his career in 1973 as an actuary, Mr. Fritch has over
30 years of experience in the managed hea‘lthcare business. Prior to founding NewQuest, LLC, Mr. Fritch founded
and served as president of North Amerlcan\ Medical Management, Inc., or NAMM, an independent physician
association management company, from 1991 to 1999. NAMM was acqu1red by PhyCor, Inc., a physician practice
management company, in 1995. Mr. Frltch\served as vice president of managed care for PhyCor following PhyCor’s
acquisition of NAMM. Prior to NAMM, Mr. Fritch served as a regional vice president for Partners National
Healthplans from 1988 to 1991, where he was responsible for the oversight of seven HMOs in the southern region.
MEr. Fritch holds a B.A. in Mathematics from Carleton College. Mr. Fritch is a fellow of the Society of Actuaries and

. \
a member of the Academy of Actuaries. "

|
Jeffrey L. Rothenberger, age 46, has sel‘rved as Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of the
company since March 2005, and served in various capacities, including chief operating officer, for the company’s
predecessor since September 2000. Prior to\\joining NewQuest, LLC, Mr. Rothenberger served as vice president for
NAMM from 1996 to August 2000, with operatmg responsibility for several markets. Mr. Rothenberger also served
as chief financial officer for the Houston mdependent physician associations affiliated with NAMM in 1995.
Mr. Rothenberger holds 2 B.B.A. in Accountmg from the University of Georgia and an M.B.A. from the University

of Houston. In addition, Mr. Rothenberger 1\\5 a certified public accountant.

J. Murray Blackshear, age 47, has servE:d as Executive Vice President of the company since March 2005, and as
President — Tennessee Division since January 2006. Mr. Blackshear has served in various capacities, including
President — Texas Division, for the compar“ly and its predecessor since September 2000. Prior to joining NewQuest,
LLC, Mr. Blackshear served as vice premdent for NAMM from 1996 to June 2000, where he had operating
responsibility for 21 markets in twelve states Mr. Blackshear holds a B.B.A. in Management from Texas A&M

University. \

Kevin M. McNamara, age 49, has serveL as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
of the company since April 2005, Mr. McN%mala served as non-executive chairman from April 2005 to January
2006 of ProxyMed, Inc., a provider of autonﬁ\ated healthcare business and cost containment solutions for financial,
administrative and clinical transactions in the healthcare payments marketplace, and served as interim chief
executive officer of ProxyMed, Inc. from December 2004 through June 2005. Mr. McNamara served as chief
financial officer of HCCA International, Incl, |, a healthcare management and recruitment company, from October
2002 to April 2005. From November 1999 untll February 2001, Mr. McNamara served as chief executive officer
and a director of Private Business, Inc., a prcl)v1der of electronic commerce solutions that help community banks
provide accounts receivable financing to thel‘r small business customers. From 1996 to 1999, Mr. McNamara served
as senior vice president and chief financial officer of Envoy Corporation, a provider of electronic transactions
processing services to participants in the healthcare industry, which was acquired by Quintiles Transnational Corp.
in 1999. Mr. McNamara also serves on the bH ard of directors of Luminex Corporation, a diagnostic and life sciences
tool and consumables manufacturer, Comsys\lT Partners, Inc., an information technology staffing services company,
and several private companies. Mr. McNamara is a certified publlc accountant (inactive) and holds a B.S. in

Accounting from Virginia Commonwealth Umversny and an M.B.A. from the University of Richmond.




J. Gentry Barden, age 44, has served as Senior Vice President, Corporate General Counsel, and Secretary of the
company since July 2005. From September 2003 to July 2005, Mr. Barden was a member of Brentwood Capital
Advisors LLC, an investment banking firm based in Nashville, Tennessee that advised the company in the
recapitalization. From September 2000 to February 2003, Mr. Barden was a managing director of McDonald
Investments Inc., an investment banking subsidiary of Cleveland, Ohio-based KeyCorp, in its Nashville office. From
December 1998 to June 2000, Mr. Barden was a managing director and member of J.C. Bradford & Co., LLC, a
Nashville-based investment banking firm, and co-directed its mergers and acquisitions operations. Mr. Barden has
approximately 12 years’ experience as a corporate and securities lawyer from 1986 through 1998, including
approximately seven years with Bass, Berry & Sims PLC in Nashville, Tennessee. Mr. Barden graduated with a
B.A. from The University of the South (Sewanee) and with a J.D. from the University of Texas.

Pasquale R. Pingitore, M.D., age 56, has served as Senior Vice President and Chief Medical Officer of the
company since March 2005, and served in various capacities, including Chief Medical Officer, for the company’s
predecessor since the commencement of operations in September 2000. Dr. Pingitore served as the chief medical
officer of RPO from 2001 to December 2005. Dr. Pingitore served as Medical Director for NAMM from January
1998 to July 2000. Dr. Pingitore holds a B.A. from Loyola College (Montreal) and an M.D. from McGill University.
Dr. Pingitore also serves as a director of Christus Dubuis Hospital.

David L. Terry, Jr, age 54, has served as Senior Vice President and Chief Actuary of the company since March
2005, and served in various capacities, including Chief Actuary, for the company’s predecessor since July 2003.
Prior to joining NewQuest, LLC, Mr. Terry served as senior consultant for Reden & Anders, Ltd., a healthcare
consulting firm, from July 2000 to July 2003. Mr, Terry holds a B.S. in Statistics from Colorado State University
and an M.S. in actuarial science from the University of Nebraska.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

You should consider carefully the risks and uncertainties described below, and all information contained in this
report, in evaluating our company and our business. The occurrence of any of the following risks or uncertainties
described below could significantly and adversely affect our business, prospects, financial condition, and operating
results. In any such event, the trading price of our common stock could decline.

Risks Related to Our Industry
Reductions in Funding for Medicare Programs Could Significantly Reduce Our Profitability.

Approximately 82.4% and 72.4% of our total revenue for the combined twelve months ended December 31,
2005 and the year ended December 31, 2004, respectively, are premiums generated by the operation of our Medicare
Advantage health plans. As a result, our revenue and profitability are dependent on government funding levels for
Medicare Advantage programs. The premium rates paid to Medicare Advantage health plans like ours are
established by contract, although the rates differ depending on a combination of factors, including upper payment
limits established by CMS, a member’s health profile and status, age, gender, county or region, benefit mix, member
eligibility categories, and the plan’s risk scores. Future Medicare premium rate levels may be affected by continuing
government efforts to contain medical expense or other federal budgetary constraints. Changes in the Medicare
program, including with respect to funding, may lead to reductions in the amount of reimbursement, elimination of
coverage for certain benefits, or reductions in the number of persons enrolled in or eligible for Medicare.

CMS’s Risk Adjustment Payment System and Budget Neutrality Factors Make Our Revenue and Profitability
Difficult to Predict and Could Result In Material Retroactive Adjustments to Our Results of Operations.

CMS has implemented a risk adjustment payment system for Medicare health plans to improve the accuracy of
payments and establish incentives for Medicare plans to enroll and treat less healthy Medicare beneficiaries. CMS
is phasing-in this payment methodology with a risk adjustment model that bases a portion of the total CMS
reimbursement payments on various clinical and demographic factors including hospital inpatient diagnoses,
diagnosis data from ambulatory treatment settings, including hospital outpatient facilities and physician visits,
gender, age, and Medicaid eligibility. CMS requires that all managed care companies capture, collect, and submit
the necessary diagnosis code information to CMS twice a year for reconciliation with CMS’s internal database. As
part of the phase-in, during 2003, risk adjusted payments accounted for 10% of Medicare health plan payments, with
the remaining 90% being reimbursed in accordance with the traditional CMS demographic rate books. The portion
of risk-adjusted payments was increased to 30% in 2004, 50% in 2005, and 75% in 2006, and will increase to 100%
in 2007. As a result of this process, it is difficult to predict with certainty our future revenue or profitability. In
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4
addition, our own risk scores for any perio”d may result in favorable or unfavorable adjustments to the payments we
receive from CMS and our Medicare premium revenue. There can be no assurance that our contracting physicians
and hospitals will be successful in nnprovmg the accuracy of recording diagnosis code information and thereby
enhancing our risk scores. |

\

Payments to Medicare Advantage plan‘s are also adjusted by a “budget neutrality” factor that was implemented in
2003 by Congress and CMS to prevent health plan payments from being reduced overall while, at the same time,
directing risk adjusted payments to plans \Ylth more chronically ill enrollees. In general, this adjustment has
favorably impacted payments to all Medlcare Advantage plans. The President’s budget for 2005 assumed the
phasing out of the budget neutrality adJustments over a five year period from 2007 through 2011. In February 2006,
the President signed legislation that reduce‘us federal funding for Medicare Advantage plans by approximately $6.5
billion over five years. Among other changes, the legislation provides for an accelerated phase-out of budget
neutrality for risk adjustment of payments #nade to Medicare Advantage plans. These legislative changes will have
the effect of reducing payments to Medicare Advantage plans in general. Consequently, our plans’ premiums could
be reduced unless our risk scores increase. wAIthough our risk scores have increased historically, there is no assurance
that the increases could continue or, if they‘ do, that they will be large enough to offset the elimination of this
adjustment. ;

U
The Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 Made Changes to the Medicare
Program That Will Materially Impact Our Operations and Could Reduce Our Profitability and Increase
Competition for Members.

MMA substantially changed the Medlc%lre program and will continue to modify how we operate our Medicare
Advantage business. Many of these changes are effective for 2006 and, as we have not been able to fully assess the
impact of these changes, we do not know vx‘fhether we will be able to operate our Medicare Advantage plans at
current levels of profitability or competitively with other managed care companies. Although many of these changes
are designed to benefit Medicare Advantage plans generally, certain provisions of the MMA may increase
competition, create challenges for us with respect to educating our existing and potential members about the

I
changes, and create other risks and substant1a1 and potentially adverse uncertainties, including the following;:

Increased competition could adversely aﬁ’e“cz our enrollment and results of operations.

+  The MMA increased relmbursement rates for Medicare Advantage plans. We believe higher reimbursement
rates may increase the number of ple‘ms that participate in the Medicare program, creating additional
competition that could adversely affect our enrollment and results of operations. For example, prior to the
MMA, there were three Medicare Advantage plans in our Houston, Texas service area. Currently, there are
five plans with Medicare Advantage’ members in that service area. In addition, as a result of Medicare Part D,
a number of potential new competltors such as pharmacy benefits managers and prescription drug retailers
and wholesalers, have established stz‘ind alone prescription drug plans, or PDPs, which are competitive with

some of our Medicare programs. U

« Managed care companies began offermg various new products beginning in 2006 pursuant to the MMA,
including regional preferred provrde{ organizations, or PPOs, and private fee-for-service plans. Medicare
PPOs and private fee-for-service plans allow their members more flexibility in selecting physicians than
Medicare Advantage HMOs such as\ours which typically require members to coordinate with a primary care
physician. The MMA has encourage? the creation of regional PPOs through various incentives, including
certain risk corridors, or cost-reimbursement provisions, a stabilization fund for incentive payments, and
special payments to hospitals not oth“erwme contracted with a Medicare Advantage plan who treat regional
plan enrollees. Although we have not experienced any meaningful competition from regional Medicare PPOs
and private fee-for-service plans in our service areas, there can be no assurance that such plans will not in the
future adversely affect our Medlcare\Advantage plans’ relative attractiveness to existing and potential

Medicare members. !

|
The new limited annual envollment process %rzay adversely affect our growth and ability to market our products.
I
+ Beginning in 2006, Medicare beneﬁeiaries generally have a more limited annual enrollment period during
which they can choose to participate ‘m a Medicare Advantage plan or receive benefits under the traditional
fee-for-service Medicare program See Item 1. “Business — The 2003 Medicare Modernization Act —
Annual Enrollment and Lock-in’ for!}a description of the annual enrollment process. After the annual
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enrollment period, most Medicare beneficiaries will not be permitted to change their Medicare benefits. The
new annual enrollment process and subsequent “lock-in” provisions of the MMA may adversely affect our
growth as it will limit our ability to enter new service areas and market to or enroll new members in our
established service areas outside of the annual enrollment period.

The limited annual enrollment period may make it difficult to retain an adegquate sales force:

As a result of the limited annual enrollment period and the subsequent “lock-in” provisions of the MMA, our
sales force, including our independent sales brokers and agents, may be limited in their ability to market our
products year-round. Our agents rely on sales commissions for their income. Given the limited annual sales
window, it may become more difficult to find agents to market and promote our products. The annual
enrollment window may also make hiring full-time sales employees impracticable, which could increase our
already substantial reliance on outside agents. Accordingly, we may not be able to retain an adequate sales
force to support our growth strategy. As our members are primarily enrolled through in-person sales calls, a
reduction in our sales force may adversely affect our future enroliment, including our expansion efforts, and,
accordingly, adversely and materially affect our profitability and results of operations.

The new competitive bidding process may adversely affect our profitability:

As of January 1, 2006, the payments for local and regional Medicare Advantage plans are based on a
competitive bidding process that may decrease the amount of premiums paid to us or cause us to increase the
benefits we offer without a corresponding increase in premiums. As a result of the competitive bidding
process, in order to maintain our current level of profitability we may in the future be required to reduce
benefits or charge our members an additional premium, either of which could make our health plans less
attractive to members and adversely affect our membership.

We may be unable to provide the new Medicare Part D benefit profitably:

Managed care companies that offer Medicare Advantage plans were required to offer prescription drug
benefits beginning January 1, 2006 as part of their Medicare Advantage plans. Such combined managed care
plans offering drug benefits are, under the new law, called MA-PDs. It is not known at this time whether the
governmental payments will be adequate to cover our actual costs for these new MA-PD benefits or, in light
of our inexperience with this program, whether we will be able to profitably or competitively manage our
MA-PDs.

Managed care companies began offering PDPs as of January 1, 2006. These PDPs provide Medicare eligible
beneficiaries with an opportunity to obtain a stand-alone drug benefit without joining a Medicare Advantage
plan. Some enrollees may have chosen our Medicare Advantage plan in the past rather than those of our
competitors or traditional Medicare fee-for-service because of the drug benefit that we offered with our
Medicare Advantage plans. We do not know at this time whether our PDP or MA-PD benefits will be as or
more attractive than those of our competitors. Additionally, Medicare beneficiaries that participate in a
Medicare Advantage plan that enroll in a PDP are automatically disenrolled from their Medicare Advantage
plan. Moreover, in early 2006, there has been substantial confusion among Medicare members regarding
their opportunity to select Part D prescription drug benefits under the new legislation, which confusion has
been exacerbated by the proliferation and complexity of drug benefits offered by various Part D vendors and
CMS enrollment reconciliation and systems issues. Accordingly, the implementation of Part D has resulted
in our members intentionally or inadvertently disenrolling from our MA-PD and PDP plans.

We began marketing our MA-PDs and PDPs in October 2005 and began enrolling members, effective as of
January 1, 2006, on November 15, 2005. Our ability to profitably operate our MA-PDs and PDPs will depend
on a number of factors, including our ability to attract members, to develop the necessary core systems and
processes and to manage our medical expense related to these plans. Because required prescription drug
benefits are new to Medicare and to the health insurance market generally, there is significant uncertainty of
the potential market size, consumer demand, and related MLR. Accordingly, we do not know whether we
will be able to operate our MA-PDs or PDPs profitably or competitively, and our failure to do so could have
an adverse effect on our results of operations.

The MMA provides for “risk corridors” that are expected to limit to some extent the losses MA-PDs or PDPs
would incur if their costs turned out to be higher than those in the PMPM bids submitted to CMS in excess of
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certain specified ranges. For example, for 2006 and 2007 drug plans will bear all gains and losses up to 2.5%

of their expected costs, but will be reimbursed for 75% of the losses between 2.5% and 5%, and 80% of

losses in excess of 5%. It is ant1c1p\ated that the initial risk corridors in 2006 and 2007 will provide more
protection against excess losses tha\n will be available beginning in 2008 and future years as the thresholds
increase and the reimbursement percentages decrease. In addition, we expect there will be a delay in
obtaining reimbursement from CMS for reimbursable losses pursuant to the risk corridors, For example, if
we incur reimbursable losses in 2006 we would not be reimbursed by CMS until 2007. In that event, we
expect there would be a negative Impact on our cash flows and financial condition as a result of being
required to finance excess losses ur“ml we are reimbursed. In addition, as the risk corridors are designed to be
symmetrical, a plan whose actual costs fall below their expected costs would be required to reimburse CMS
based on a similar methodology as ‘set forth above. Furthermore, reconciliation payments for estimated
upfront federal reinsurance paymeri‘ts or, in some cases, the entire amount of the reinsurance payments, for

Medicare beneficiaries who reach the drug benefit’s catastrophic threshold are made retroactively on an

annual basis, which could expose plans to upfront costs in providing the benefit. Accordingly, it may be

difficult to accurately predict or report the operating results associated with our drug benefits.

* The current issues regarding the pro\per accounting for Medicare Part D, particularly as it relates to the timing
of revenue and expense recognition| taken together with the complexity of the Part D product and the current
challenges in reconciling CMS Part| D membership data, will lead to differences in our reporting of quarter-
to-quarter earnings and may lead toluncertainty among investors and research analysts following the
company as to the impacts on full year results.

Our Business Activities Are Highly Regulated and New and Proposed Government Regulation or Legislative
Reforms Could Increase Our Cost of Doir“ g Business, and Reduce Our Membership, Profitability, and Liquidity.

Our health plans are subject to substantial federal and state regulation. These laws and regulations, along with
the terms of our contracts and licenses, regﬁlate how we do business, what services we offer, and how we interact
with our members, providers, and the publ1“ Healthcare laws and regulations are subject to frequent change and
varying interpretations. Changes in ex1stmgH laws or regulations, or their interpretations, or the enactment of new

laws or the issuance of new regulations could adversely affect our business by, among other things:
I

+ imposing additional license, registrdtion, or statutory capital requirements;
|

* increasing our administrative and otl‘ler costs;

« forcing us to undergo a corporate res\‘\tructuring;
|

+ increasing mandated benefits without corresponding premium increases;
‘ P g

+ limiting our ability to engage in intet-company transactions with our affiliates and subsidiaries;
|
I

» forcing us to restructure our relationships with providers; or

» requiring us to implement additional‘\\or different programs and systems.

It is possible that future legislation and r“egulatlon and the interpretation of existing and future laws and
regulations could have a material adverse effect on our ability to operate under the Medicare program and to

I
continue to serve our members and attract new members.

If We Are Required to Maintain Higher Stt\ztutory Capital Levels for Our Existing Operations or if We Are
Subject to Additional Capital Reserve Requzrements as We Pursue New Business Opportunities, Qur Cash Flows
and Liquidity May Be Adversely Affected. |
|

Our health plans are operated through subsidiaries in various states. These subsidiaries are subject to state
regulations that, among other things, require"the maintenance of minimum levels of statutory capital, or net worth, as
defined by each state. One or more of these states may raise the statutory capital level from time to time. Other states
have adopted risk-based capital requirementls based on guidelines adopted by the National Association of Insurance
Commissioners, which tend to be, although are not necessarily, higher than existing statutory capital requirements.

Currently, Texas is the only jurisdiction in w‘htch we operate that has adopted risk-based capital requirements.
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Regardless of whether the other states in which we operate adopt risk-based capital requirements, the state
departments of insurance can require our HMO subsidiaries to maintain minimum levels of statutory capital in
excess of amounts required under the applicable state laws if they determine that maintaining additional statutory
capital is in the best interests of our members. Any increases in these requirements could materially increase our
statutory capital requirements. In addition, as we continue to expand our plan offerings in new states or pursue new
business opportunities, including our strategy to offer PDPs, we may be required to maintain additional statutory
capital. In either case, our available funds could be materially reduced, which could harm our ability to implement
our business strategy.

If State Regulators Do Not Approve Payments, Including Dividends and Other Distributions, by Our Health
Plans to Us, Qur Business and Growth Strategy Could Be Materially Impaired or We Could Be Required to Incur
Indebtedness to Fund These Strategies.

Our health plan subsidiaries are subject to laws and regulations that limit the amount of dividends and
distributions they can pay to us for purposes other than to pay income taxes related to the earnings of the health
plans. These laws and regulations also limit the amount of management fees our health plan subsidiaries may pay to
affiliates of our health plans, including our management subsidiaries, without prior approval of, or notification to,
state regulators. The pre-approval and notice requirements vary from state to state with some states, such as Texas,
generally allowing, subject to advance notice requirements, dividends to be declared, provided the HMO meets or
exceeds the applicable deposit, net worth, and risk-based capital requirements. The discretion of the state regulators,
if any, in approving or disapproving a dividend is not always clearly defined. Health plans that declare non-
extraordinary dividends must usually provide notice to the regulators in advance of the intended distribution date.
Historically, we have not relied on dividends or other distributions from our health plans to fund a material amount
of our operating cash requirements. If the regulators were to deny or significantly restrict our subsidiaries’ requests
to pay dividends to us or to pay management and other fees to the affiliates of our health plan subsidiaries, however,
the funds available to us would be limited, which could impair our ability to implement our business and growth
strategy or we could be required to incur additional indebtedness to fund these strategies.

We Are Required to Comply With Laws Governing the Transmission, Security and Privacy of Health Information
That Require Significant Compliance Costs, and Any Failure to Comply With These Laws Could Result in
Material Criminal and Civil Penalties.

Regulations under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, or HIPAA, require us to
comply with standards regarding the exchange of health information within our company and with third parties,
including healthcare providers, business associates and our members. These regulations include standards for
common healthcare transactions, including claims information, plan eligibility, and payment information; unique
identifiers for providers and employers; security; privacy; and enforcement. HIPAA also provides that to the extent
that state laws impose stricter privacy standards than HIPAA privacy regulations, a state seeks and receives an
exception from the Department of Health and Human Services regarding certain state laws, or state laws concern
certain specified areas, such state standards and laws are not preempted.

We will conduct our operations in an attempt to comply with all applicable HIPAA requirements. Given the
complexity of the HIPAA regulations, the possibility that the regulations may change, and the fact that the
regulations are subject to changing and, at times, conflicting interpretation, our ongoing ability to comply with the
HIPAA requirements is uncertain. Furthermore, a state’s ability to promulgate stricter laws, and uncertainty
regarding many aspects of such state requirements, make compliance more difficult. To the extent that we submit
electronic healthcare claims and payment transactions that do not comply with the electronic data transmission
standards established under HIPAA, payments to us may be delayed or denied. Additionally, the costs of complying
with any changes to the HIPAA regulations may have a negative impact on our operations. Sanctions for failing to
comply with the HIPAA health information provisions include criminal penalties and civil sanctions, including
significant monetary penalties. In addition, our failure to comply with state health information laws that may be
more restrictive than the regulations issued under HIPAA could result in additional penalties.
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|Risks Related to Our Business
i
If Our Medicare Contracts Are Not René;wed or Are Terminated, Our Business Would Be Substantially Impaired.
|
We provide services to our Medicare e%ligible members through our Medicare Advantage health plans pursuant to
a limited number of contracts with CMS. These contracts generally have terms of one year and must be renewed
each year. Each of our contracts with CMS is terminable for cause if we breach a material provision of the contract
or violate relevant laws or regulations. If we are unable to renew, or to successfully rebid or compete for any of

i
these contracts, or if any of these contracts‘ are terminated, our business would be materially impaired.

Because Our Premiums, Which Generaté Most of Our Revenue, Are Established by Contract and Cannot Be
Modified During the Contract Terms, Our Profitability Will Likely Be Reduced or We Could Cease to Be
Profitable if We Are Unable to Manage O“ur Medical Expenses Effectively.

Substantially all of our revenue is genérated by premiums consisting of monthly payments per member that are
established by contracts with CMS for our|Medicare Advantage plans or by contracts with our commercial
customers, all of which are typically renewable on an annual basis. If our medical expenses exceed our estimates,
except in very limited circumstances or as ha result of risk score adjustments for member acuity, we will be unable to
increase the premiums we receive under these contracts during the then-current terms. As a result, our profitability
depends, to a significant degree, on our abl‘hty to adequately predict and effectively manage our medical expenses
related to the provision of healthcare servuu:es Relatively small changes in our MLR can create significant changes
in our financial results. Accordingly, the failure to adequately predict and control medical expenses and to make
reasonable estimates and maintain adequat\\e accruals for incurred but not reported, or IBNR, claims, may have a
material adverse effect on our financial cm%dltlon, results of operations, or cash flows.

il
Historically, our medical expenses as alpercentage of premium revenue have fluctuated. Factors that may cause
medical expenses to exceed our estimates 1pclude
I
‘\
* an increase in the cost of healthcare\!\ services and supplies, including pharmaceuticals, whether as a result of
inflation or otherwise; !
]

o ! .
* higher than expected utilization of healthcare services;

\
» periodic renegotiation of hospital, physician, and other provider contracts;

« changes in the demographics of our\ members and medical trends affecting them;

!

* new mandated benefits or other changes in healthcare laws, regulations, and practices;
H
+ new treatments and technologies;

|
 consolidation of physician, hospital| and other provider groups;

» contractual disputes with providers, irhospitals, or other service providers; and

» the occurrence of catastrophes, majc‘)‘r epidemics, or acts of terrorism.
\
Because of the relatively high average a‘ge of the Medicare population, medical expenses for our Medicare
Advantage plans may be particularly d1fﬁcglt to control. We attempt to control these costs through a variety of
techniques, including capitation and other risk-sharing payment methods, collaborative relationships with primary

care physicians and other providers, advancHe approval for hospital services and referral requirements, case and
disease management and quality assurance programs, information systems, and, with respect to our commercial

products, reinsurance. Despite our efforts aﬁld programs to manage our medical expenses, we may not be able to
continue to manage these expenses effectively in the future. If our medical expenses increase, our profits could be

reduced or we may not remain profitable.




Our Failure to Estimate Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) Claims Accurately Will Affect Our Reported
Financial Results.

Our medical care costs include estimates of our IBNR claims. We estimate our medical expense liabilities using
actuarial methods based on historical data adjusted for payment patterns, cost trends, product mix, seasonality,
utilization of healthcare services, and other relevant factors. Actual conditions, however, could differ from those we
assume in our estimation process. We continually review and update our estimation methods and the resulting
accruals and make adjustments, if necessary, to medical expense when the criteria used to determine IBNR change
and when actual claim costs are ultimately determined. As a result of the uncertainties associated with the factors
used in these assumptions, the actual amount of medical expense that we incur may be materially more or less than
the amount of IBNR originally estimated. If our estimates of IBNR are inadequate in the future, our reported results
of operations will be negatively impacted. Further, our inability to estimate IBNR accurately may also affect our
ability to take timely corrective actions or otherwise establish appropriate premium pricing, further exacerbating the
extent of any adverse effect on our results.

Competition in Our Industry May Limit Our Ability to Maintain or Attract Members, Which Could Adversely
Affect Our Results of Operations.

We operate in a highly competitive environment subject to significant changes as a result of business
consolidations, new strategic alliances, and aggressive marketing practices by other managed care organizations that
compete with us for members. Our principal competitors for contracts, members, and providers vary by local service
area and are comprised of national, regional, and local managed care organizations that serve Medicare recipients.
Our failure to maintain or attract members to our health plans could adversely affect our results of operations. We
believe changes resulting from the MMA may bring additional competitors into our Medical Advantage service
areas. In addition, we face competition from other managed care companies that often have greater financial and
other resources, larger enrollments, broader ranges of products and benefits, broader geographical coverage, more
established reputations in the national market and our markets, greater market share, larger contracting scale, and
lower costs. Such competition may negatively impact our enrollment, financial forecasts, and profitability.

Qur Inability to Maintain Our Medicare Advantage Members or Increase Our Membership Could Adversely
Affect Our Results of Operations.

A reduction in the number of members in our Medicare Advantage plans, or the failure to increase our
membership, could adversely affect our results of operations. In addition to competition, factors that could
contribute to the loss of, or failure to attract and retain, members include:

+ negative accreditation results or loss of licenses or contracts to offer Medicare Advantage plans;
* negative publicity and news coverage relating to us or the managed healthcare industry generally;
 litigation or threats of litigation against us;

+ automatic disenrollment, whether intentional or inadvertent, as a result of members choosing a stand-alone
PDP; and

+ our inability to market to and re-enroll members who enlist with our competitors because of the new annual
enrollment and lock-in provisions under the MMA.,

A Disruption in Our Healthcare Provider Networks Could Have an Adverse Effect on Our Operations and
Profitability.

Our operations and profitability are dependent, in part, upon our ability to contract with healthcare providers and
provider networks on favorable terms. In any particular service area, healthcare providers or provider networks
could refuse to contract with us, demand higher payments, or take other actions that could result in higher healthcare
costs, disruption of benefits to our members, or difficulty in meeting our regulatory or accreditation requirements. In
some service areas, healthcare providers may have significant market positions. If healthcare providers refuse to
contract with us, use their market position to negotiate favorable contracts, or place us at a competitive
disadvantage, then our ability to market products or to be profitable in those service areas could be adversely
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affected. Our provider networks could also be disrupted by the financial insolvency of a large provider group. Any
disruption in our provider network could result in a loss of membership or higher healthcare costs.

Approximately 29% and 33% of our Medicare Advantage members and 29% and 29% of our total revenue as of
and for the combined twelve months ended December 31, 2005 and the year ended December 31, 2004,
respectively, were related to our Texas o%eratlons A SIgmﬁcant proportion of our providers in our Texas market are
affiliated with Renaissance Physician Organization, or RPO, a large group of independent physician associations. As
of December 31, 2005, physicians associated with RPO served as the primary care physicians for approximately
87% of our members in our Texas markth Our agreements with RPO generally have a term expiring December 31,
2014, but may be terminated sooner by RPO for cause or in connection with a change in control of the company that
results in the termination of senior management and otherwise raises a reasonable doubt as to our successor’s ability
to perform the agreements. If our Texas I‘TIMO subsidiary’s agreement with RPO were terminated, we would be
required to sign direct contracts with the RPO physicians or additional physicians in order to avoid any disruption in
care of our Houston-area members. It coﬁf]d take significant time to negotiate and execute direct contracts, and we
would be forced to reassign members to rlew primary care physicians if all of the current primary care physicians did
not sign direct contracts. This would result in loss of membership assuming that not all members would accept the
reassignment to a new primary care physician. Accordingly, any significant disruption in, or termination of, our
relationship with RPO could materially ar\!ld adversely impact our results of operations. Moreover, RPO’s ability to
terminate its agreements with us in connection with certain changes in control of the company could have the effect
of delaying or frustrating a potential acqulsmon or other change in control of the company.

Recent Challenges Faced by CMS and Aur Plans’ Information and Reporting Systems Related to
Implementation of Part D May T emporarlly Disrupt or Adversely Affect Our Plans’ Relationships with Our
Members. i

I

Partially in relation to the implementatﬁ‘ion of Part D, CMS transitioned to new information and reporting

systems, which have recently generated co“nfusmg and, we believe in some cases, erroneous membership and
payment reports concerning our and others” Medicare eligibility and enrollment. In addition, recent media reports
are prevalent concerning the confusion caused by failures in systems and reporting for Part D, particularly as these
failures adversely affect the access of dual“ eligibles and low income beneficiaries to their prescription drugs. These
developments have caused our plans to expenence short-term disruptions in their operations and challenged our
information and communications systems.‘\\The enrollment errors have also caused significant confusion among
Medicare beneficiaries as to their participation in our or others” Medicare Advantage plans. Moreover, we have
experienced a reallocation of administrative resources and incurred unanticipated administrative expenses dealing
with this confusion. Although we believe the current conditions are temporary, there can be no assurance that the
current confusion, systems fatlures, and mistaken payment reports will not disrupt or adversely affect our plans’
relationships with our members, which co&]d result in a reduction of our membership and adversely affect our
results of operations.

|

We May Be Unsuccessful in Implementinig Our Growth Strategy If We Are Unable to Complete Acquisitions on
Favorable Terms or Integrate the BusmesTces We Acquire into Our Existing Operations, or If We Are Unable to
Otherwise Expand into New Service Areas in a Timely Manner in Accordance with Our Strategic Plans.

Depending on acquisition, expansion, aI\\;]d other opportunities, we expect to continue to increase our membership
and to expand to new service areas within gur existing markets and in other markets. Opportunistic acquisitions of
contract rights and other health plans are an important element of our growth strategy. We may be unable to identify
and complete appropriate acquisitions in a timely manner and in accordance with our or our investors’ expectations
for future growth. The market price of busitesses that operate Medicare Advantage plans has generally increased
recently, which may increase the amount we are required to pay to complete future acquisitions. Some of our
competitors have greater financial resources than we have and may be willing to pay more for these businesses. In
addition, we are generally required to obtain regulatory approval from one or more state agencies when making
acquisitions, which may require a public hegrmg, regardless of whether we already operate a plan in the state in
which the business to be acquired is located‘h We may be unable to comply with these regulatory requirements for an
acquisition in a timely manner, or at all. Moreover, some sellers may insist on selling assets that we may not want,
including commercial lines of business, or t#ansfemng their liabilities to us as part of the sale of their companies or
assets. Even if we identify suitable acquisition targets, we may be unable to complete acquisitions or obtain the

|
necessary financing for these acquisitions on terms favorable to us, or at all.

|
|
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To the extent we complete acquisitions, we may be unable to realize the anticipated benefits from acquisitions
because of operational factors or difficulties in integrating the acquisitions with our existing businesses. This may
include the integration of:

+ additional employees who are not familiar with our operations;

» new provider networks, which may operate on terms different from our existing networks;

+ additional members, who may decide to transfer to other healthcare providers or health plans;

» disparate information technology, claims processing, and record-keeping systems; and

+ accounting policies, including those that require a high degree of judgment or complex estimation processes,

including estimates of IBNR claims, accounting for goodwill, intangible assets, stock-based compensation,
and income tax matters,

For all of the above reasons, we may not be able to successfully implement our acquisition strategy.
Furthermore, in the event of an acquisition or investment, we may issue stock that would dilute existing stock
ownership, incur debt that would restrict our cash flow, assume liabilities, incur large and immediate write-offs,
incur unanticipated costs, divert management’s attention from our existing business, experience risks associated with
entering markets in which we have no or limited prior experience, or lose key employees from the acquired entities.

Additionally, we are likely to incur additional costs if we enter new service areas or states where we do not
currently operate, which may limit our ability to expand to, or further expand in, those areas. Our rate of expansion

into new geographic areas may also be limited by:

+ the time and costs associated with obtaining an HMO license to operate in the new area or expanding our
licensed service area, as the case may be;

* our inability to develop a network of physicians, hospitals, and other healthcare providers that meets our
requirements and those of the applicable regulators;

+ competition, which could increase the costs of recruiting members, reduce the pool of available members, or
increase the cost of attracting and maintaining our providers;

+ the cost of providing healthcare services in those areas;
» demographics and population density; and
+ the new annual enrollment period and lock-in provisions of the MMA.

Negative Publicity Regarding the Managed Healthcare Industry Generally or Us in Particular Could Adversely
Affect Qur Results of Operations or Business.

Negative publicity regarding the managed healthcare industry generally or us in particular may result in
increased regulation and legislative review of industry practices that further increase our costs of doing business and
adversely affect our results of operations by:

« requiring us to change our products and services;

+ increasing the regulatory burdens under which we operate;

» adversely affecting our ability to market our products or services; or

» adversely affecting our ability to attract and retain members.
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We Are Dependent Upon Qur Executivc% Officers, and the Loss of Any One or More of These Officers and Their
Managed Care Expertise Could Adversely Affect Our Business.
:

Our operations are highly dependent (Um the efforts of Herbert A. Fritch, our President and Chief Executive
Officer, and certain other senior executiv]gs, including Jeffrey L. Rothenberger, our Chief Operating Officer, and J.
Murray Blackshear, our Executive Vice Bresident, each of whom has been instrumental in developing our business
strategy and forging our business relationships. Although certain of our executives, including Messrs. Fritch,
Rothenberger, and Blackshear, have enteﬁed into employment agreements with us, these agreements may not
provide sufficient incentives for those executives to continue their employment with us. The loss of the leadership,
knowledge, and experience of Messrs. Fri\‘;tch, Rothenberger, and Blackshear and our other executive officers could
adversely affect our business. Replacing any of our executive officers might be difficult or take an extended period
of time because a limited number of mdlv\lduals in the managed care industry have the breadth and depth of skills
and experience of our executive officers. We do not currently maintain key-man life insurance on any of our
executive officers. ‘

Violation of the Laws and Regulations A})plicable to Us Could Expose Us to Liability, Reduce Our Revenue and
Profitability, or Otherwise Adversely Afﬁ%ct Our Operations and Operating Results.
ﬂ

The federal and state agencies administering the laws and regulations applicable to us have broad discretion to
enforce them. We are subject, on an ongm‘hg basis, to various governmental reviews, audits, and investigations to
verify our compliance with our contracts, ]1censes and applicable laws and regulations. An adverse review, audit, or
investigation could result in any of the followmg

‘\
» loss of our right to participate in thc% Medicare program;
i

» loss of one or more of our licenses ﬁo act as an HMO or third party administrator or to otherwise provide a
service; |

+ forfeiture or recoupment of amounté we have been paid pursuant to our contracts;
I
= imposition of significant civil or cril‘ininal penalties, fines, or other sanctions on us and our key employees;
|
« damage to our reputation in existing\‘} and potential markets;
+ increased restrictions on marketing (Lur products and services; and
:
[

* inability to obtain approval for futuré products and services, geographic expansions, or acquisitions.

The U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Inspector General, Office of Audit Services,
or OIG, is conducting a national review of Medlcare Advantage plans to determine whether they used payment
increases consistent with the requirements of the MMA. Under the MMA, when a Medicare Advantage plan
receives a payment increase, it must reduce jpeneﬁmary premiums or cost sharing, enhance benefits, put additional
payment amounts in a benefit stabilization fund, or use the additional payment amounts to stabilize or enhance
access. We cannot assure you that the ﬁndidgs of an audit or investigation of our business would not have an
adverse effect on us or require substantial rqbdiﬁcations to our operations. In addition, private citizens, acting as
whistleblowers, are entitled to bring enforcg:rnent actions under a special provision of the federal False Claims Act.

|
Claims Relating to Medical Malpractice an“}\d Other Litigation Could Cause Us to Incur Significant Expenses.

From time to time, we are party to various litigation matters, some of which seek monetary damages. Managed

care organizations may be sued directly for z{l leged negligence, including in connection with the credentialing of
network providers or for alleged improper d?mals or delay of care. In addition, Congress and several states have
considered or are considering legislation that would expressly permit managed care organizations to be held liable
for negligent treatment decisions or benefits Eoverage determinations. Of the states in which we currently operate,
only Texas has enacted legislation relating to health plan liability for negligent treatment decisions and benefits
coverage determinations. In addition, our providers involved in medical care decisions may be exposed to the risk of
medical malpractice claims. Some of these p¥0v1ders do not have malpractice insurance. Although our network

|
providers are independent contractors, claimants sometimes allege that a managed care organization should be held

| 27
|



responsible for alleged provider malpractice, particularly where the provider does not have malpractice insurance,
and some courts have permitted that theory of liability.

Similar to other managed care companies, we may also be subject to other claims of our members in the ordinary
course of business, including claims of improper marketing practices by our independent and employee sales agents
and claims arising out of decisions to deny or restrict reimbursement for services.

We cannot predict with certainty the eventual outcome of any pending litigation or potential future litigation, and
we cannot assure you that we will not incur substantial expense in defending future lawsuits or indemnifying third
parties with respect to the results of such litigation. The loss of even one of these claims, if it results in a significant
damage award, could have a material adverse effect on our business. In addition, our exposure to potential liability
under punitive damage or other theories may significantly decrease our ability to settle these claims on reasonable
terms.

‘We maintain errors and omissions insurance and other insurance coverage that we believe are adequate based on
industry standards. Potential liabilities may not be covered by insurance, our insurers may dispute coverage or may
be unable to meet their obligations, or the amount of our insurance coverage and/or related reserves may be
inadequate. We cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain insurance coverage in the future, or that insurance
will continue to be available on a cost-effective basis, if at all. Moreover, even if claims brought against us are
unsuccessful or without merit, we would have to defend ourselves against such claims. The defense of any such
actions may be time-consuming and costly and may distract our management’s attention. As a result, we may incur
significant expenses and may be unable to effectively operate our business.

The Inability or Failure to Properly Maintain Effective and Secure Management Information Systems,
Successfully Update or Expand Processing Capability, or Develop New Capabilities to Meet Our Business Needs
Could Result in Operational Disruptions and Other Adverse Consequences.

Our business depends significantly on effective and secure information systems. The information gathered and
processed by our management information systems assists us in, among other things, marketing and sales tracking,
underwriting, billing, claims processing, medical management, medical care cost and utilization trending, financial
and management accounting, reporting, planning and analysis and e-commerce. These systems also support on-line
customer service functions, provider and member administrative functions and support tracking and extensive
analyses of medical expenses and outcome data. These information systems and applications require continual
maintenance, upgrading and enhancement to meet our operational needs and handle our expansion and growth. Any
inability or failure to properly maintain management information systems, successfully update or expand processing
capability or develop new capabilities to meet our business needs in a timely manner, could result in operational
disruptions, loss of existing customers, difficulty in attracting new customers or in implementing our growth
strategies, disputes with customers and providers, regulatory problems, increases in administrative expenses, loss of
our ability to produce timely and accurate reports and other adverse consequences. To the extent a failure in
maintaining effective information systems occurs, we may need to contract for these services with third-party
management companies, which may be on less favorable terms to us and significantly disrupt our operations and
information flow.

Furthermore, our business requires the secure transmission of confidential information over public networks.
Because of the confidential health information we store and transmit, security breaches could expose us to a risk of
regulatory action, litigation, possible liability and loss. Our security measures may be inadequate to prevent security
breaches, and our business operations and profitability would be adversely affected by cancellation of contracts, loss
of members and potential criminal and civil sanctions if they are not prevented.
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RlSkS Related to Qur Common Stock
U
There Has Been a Public Market for our“LCommon Stock for a Limited Time and Market Volatility May Affect
Our Stock Price. ‘.
ﬂ
Prior to our recently completed initial f)ublic offering there was not a public market for our common stock. We
cannot predict the extent to which a trading market will develop, how liquid that market might become, or whether it
will be maintained. The market prices for securmes of managed care companies in general have been volatile and
may continue to be volatile in the future. T\he following factors, in addition to other risk factors described herein,
may have a significant impact on the mark\et price of our common stock:
\
* Medicare budget decreases or changes in Medicare premium levels or reimbursement methodologies;
I

|
‘:
|
+ changes in expectations of our future membership growth or future financial performance or changes in
financial estimates, if any, of pubhc\ market analysts;
|

s expectations regarding increases or ‘decreases in medical claims and medical care costs;
‘\
» adverse publicity regarding HMOs, Hother managed care organizations and health insurers in general;

» regulatory or legislative changes;

+ government action regarding Medlcare eligibility;

\l

» the termination of any of our matenal contracts;

+ announcements relating to our busin:‘ess or the business of our competitors;

» conditions generally affecting the mﬁ‘anaged care industry or our provider networks;

|
\\
+ the success of our operating or growth strategies;

+ the operating and stock price performance of other comparable companies;
i
+ sales of large blocks of our common‘\\\stock;

+ sales of our common stock by our executive officers, directors and significant stockholders;
|
+ changes in accounting principles; anei
I
» the loss of any of our key managemeﬂnt personnel.
i
|
The stock markets in general, and the me?‘rrkets for healthcare stocks in particular, have experienced substantial
volatility that has often been unrelated to the operating performance of particular companies. These broad market
fluctuations may adversely affect the tradmg price of our common stock. In the past, class action litigation has often
been instituted against companies whose seeuntxes have experienced periods of volatility in market price. Any such
litigation brought against us could result in substantial costs and divert management’s attention and resources, which

. . | . ..
could hurt our business, operating results, ar}d financial condition.

If We Are Unable to Implement Effective Ilzternal Controls Over Financial Reporting, Investors Could Lose
Confidence in the Reliability of Our Finantial Statements, Which Could Result in a Decrease in the Price of Our
Common Stock. “

As a result of our recently completed mmal public offering, we are required to enhance and test our financial,
internal, and management control systems to\meet obligations imposed by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. We are
working with our independent legal, accountmg, and financial advisors to identify those areas in which changes
should be made to our financial and management control systems. These areas include corporate governance,
corporate control, internal audit, disclosure controls and procedures and financial reporting and accounting systems.

\
Consistent with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and l\the rules and regulations of the SEC, management’s assessment of our
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internal controls over financial reporting and the audit opinion of the Company’s independent registered accounting
firm as to the effectiveness of our controls will be first required in connection with the Company’s filing of its
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2007. If we are unable to timely identify,
implement, and conclude that we have effective internal controls over financial reporting or if our independent
auditors are unable to conclude that our internal controls over financial reporting are effective, investors could lose
confidence in the reliability of our financial statements, which could result in a decrease in the value of our common
stock. Our assessment of our internal controls over financial reporting may also uncover weaknesses or other issues
with these controls that could also result in adverse investor reaction. These results may also subject us to adverse
regulatory consequences.

The Significant Concentration of Ownership of Our Common Stock Will Limit Your Ability to Influence Corporate
Activities and Could Adversely Affect the Trading Price of Our Common Stock.

GTCR and its affiliates own approximately 23.9% of our outstanding common stock. As a result, GTCR has
substantial influence over the outcome of matters requiring stockholder approval, including the election of directors,
amendments to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, and significant corporate transactions. The
interests of GTCR may not always coincide with our interests or the interests of other stockholders. This concentration
of ownership may also have the effect of delaying, preventing or deterring a change in control of our company, which
could deprive our stockholders of an opportunity to receive a premium for their common stock as part of a sale of our
company and might adversely affect the market price of our common stock. In addition, this concentration of stock
ownership may adversely affect the trading price of our common stock because investors may perceive disadvantages
in owning stock in a company with a significant stockholder. Additionally, pursuant to our amended and restated
stockholders agreement, we have agreed to nominate, and the stockholders party thereto have agreed to vote in favor
of, two representatives designated by GTCR to serve as directors, which increases the influence GTCR will have with
respect to significant corporate transactions.

Under Our Amended and Restated Certificate Of Incorporation, the GTCR and Other Non-Employee Directors
Will Not Have Any Duty to Refrain From Engaging Directly or Indirectly in the Same or Similar Business
Activities or Lines of Business That We Do, Which May Resuit in the Company Not Having the Opportunity to
Pursue a Corporate Opportunity That May Have Been Appropriate or Beneficial for the Company to Undertake.

Under our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, the directors, officers, stockholders, members,
managers, employees, and affiliates of GTCR and the GTCR and our other non-employee directors will not have any duty
to refrain from engaging directly or indirectly in the same or similar business activities or lines of business that we do. In
the event that any GTCR affiliate or entity or non-employee director, as the case may be, acquires knowledge of a
potential transaction or matter which may be a corporate opportunity for itself and us, the GTCR fund or non-employee
director, as the case may be, will not, unless such opportunity has been expressly offered to such person solely in his
capacity as a director of the company, have any duty to communicate or offer such corporate opportunity to us and may
pursue such corporate opportunity for itself or direct such corporate opportunity to another person, which may result in the
company not having the opportunity to pursue a corporate opportunity that may have been appropriate or beneficial for us
to undertake.

Anti-takeover Provisions in Qur Organizational Documents Could Make an Acquisition of Us More Difficult and
May Prevent Attempts by Our Stockholders to Replace or Remove Qur Current Management.

Provisions in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and our second amended and restated
bylaws may delay or prevent an acquisition of us or a change in our management or similar change in control
transaction, including transactions in which stockholders might otherwise receive a premium for their shares over then
current prices or that stockholders may deem to be in their best interests. In addition, these provisions may frustrate or
prevent any attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our current management by making it more difficult for
stockholders to replace members of our board of directors. Because our board of directors is responsibie for appointing
the members of our management team, these provisions could in turn affect any attempt by our stockholders to replace
current members of our management team. These provisions provide, among other things, that:

» special meetings of our stockholders may be called only by the chairman of the board of directors, our chief
executive officer or by the board of directors pursuant to a resolution adopted by a majority of the directors;

+ any stockholder wishing to properly bring a matter before a meeting of stockholders must comply with
specified procedural and advance notice requirements;
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+ actions taken by the written consent“of our stockholders require the consent of the holders of at least 66%/;%
of our outstanding shares; '

+ our board of directors is classified 1nto three classes, with each class serving a staggered three-year term;
» the authorized number of directors n‘Lay be changed only by resolution of the board of directors;

\
« our second amended and restated by“laws and certain sections of our amended and restated certificate of
incorporation relatmg to anti-takeover provisions may generally only be amended with the consent of the

holders of at least 66*/;% of our outstandmg shares;

» directors may be removed other thar;“ at an annual meeting only for cause;

W
|

+ any vacancy on the board of directors, however the vacancy occurs, may only be filled by the directors; and

* our board of directors has the abilityjto issue preferred stock without stockholder approval.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments |

None. :
[l

i
Item 2. Properties “

Our corporate headquarters are located 1}21 approximately 85,000 square feet of leased office space in Nashville,
Tennessee. The lease for our corporate heac%quarters expires on December 31, 2010. We also lease office space for
our health plans in several locations in Alabama, Illinois, Mississippi, Tennessee and Texas. We believe our
facilities are adequate for our present and cu“‘rrently anticipated needs.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings ‘

We are not currently involved in any perilding legal proceedings that we believe are material. We are, however,
involved from time to time in routine legal matters and other claims incidental to our business, including
employment-related claims, claims relating to our relationships with providers and members, and claims relating to
marketing practices of sales agents that are émployed by, or independent contractors to, us. Recently, our Alabama
HMO and certain independent sales agents have been sued in state courts in southern Alabama by several former
HealthSpring plan members alleging, among‘ other things, fraudulent and otherwise inappropriate sales and
enrollment practices. Although these 1awsuit‘js are brought on behalf of different plaintiffs, the nature of the
complaints and the facts alleged are substantially similar. We are in the preliminary stages of these lawsuits and our

investigations are ongoing. We intend to defend vigorously against these actions.

When it appears probable in management’s judgment that we will incur monetary damages or other costs in
connection with any claims or proceedings, and such costs can be reasonably estimated, liabilities are recorded in
the financial statements and charges are recorded against earnings. Though there can be no assurances, our
management believes that the resolution of r&utine matters and other incidental claims, taking into account accruals

and insurance, will not have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operation.
[

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Market for Common Stock

Our common stock was listed and began trading on the New York Stock Exchange on February 3, 2006 under
the trading symbol “HS.” Prior to that date, there was no established public trading market for our common stock.
The last reported sale price of our common stock on the New York Stock Exchange on March 28, 2006 was $18.58,
and we had approximately 260 holders of record of our common stock on such date.

Dividends

We have not declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock since our formation. Our predecessor,
which was a pass-through limited liability company for tax purposes, made no distributions to its members in 2005
prior to the recapitalization and made distributions to its members in the aggregate amount of $19.5 million in 2004.
We currently intend to retain any future earnings to fund the operation, development, and expansion of our business,
and therefore we do not anticipate paying cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Furthermore, our revolving credit
facility will, in the event any amounts are then outstanding thereunder, restrict our ability to declare cash dividends
on our common stock. Our ability to pay dividends is also dependent on the availability of cash dividends from our
regulated HMO subsidiaries, which are restricted by the laws of the states in which we operate, as well as the
requirements of CMS relating to the operations of our Medicare health plans. Any future determination to declare
and pay dividends will be at the discretion of our board of directors, subject to compliance with applicable law and
the other limitations described above.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

Since the initial organization of HealthSpring, Inc., we have issued securities in the following transactions, each
of which was exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities
Act”), under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act as transactions by an issuer not involving any public offering, or
under Rule 701 under the Securities Act. All of the below-referenced securities are deemed “restricted securities” for
the purposes of the Securities Act. No underwriters were involved in any of the below-referenced sales of securities.

(1) On March 1, 2005, in connection with the recapitalization, we sold and issued an aggregate of
(a) 30,445,218 shares of our common stock, par value $.01 per share, to the GTCR Funds, members of our
predecessor, and certain other investors at a purchase price of $0.20 per share, or for an aggregate purchase
price of $6,089,043; and (b) 227,154 shares of our preferred stock, par value $.01 per share, to the GTCR
Funds, members of our predecessor, and certain other investors at a purchase price of $1,000 per share, or for
an aggregate purchase price of $227,154,000. We also issued 1,286,250 shares of restricted common stock on
March 1, 2005 to certain of our employees pursuant to restricted stock purchase agreements at a purchase
price of $0.20 per share, or an aggregate purchase price of $257,250.

(2) On April 18, 2005, we issued an aggregate of 520,000 shares of our common stock to two employees
pursuant to restricted stock purchase agreements at a purchase price of $0.20 per share, or an aggregate
purchase price of $104,000.

(3) On April 30, 2005, we issued an aggregate of 32,500 shares of our common stock to two employees pursuant
to restricted stock purchase agreements at a purchase price of $0.20 per share, or an aggregate purchase price
of $6,500.

On February &, 2006, as a result of our IPO, all of our issued and outstanding shares of preferred stock,
including accrued and unpaid dividends thereon, were converted into 12,552,905 shares of common stock based on
the TPO price in accordance with the terms of such preferred stock. Additionally, all membership units of one of our
HMO subsidiaries, Texas HealthSpring, LLC, that were not owned by us were exchanged by us for 2,040,194 shares
of our common stock in accordance with the terms of such securities.
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Initial Public Offering Yl

In connection with the IPO, the SEC declared our Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-128939),
filed under the Securities Act of 1933, as Emended effective on February 2, 2006. Goldman, Sachs & Co., Citigroup
Corporate and Investment Banking, UBS ‘Investment Bank, Lehman Brothers, CIBC World Markets, Raymond
James, and Avondale Partners were co-managers for the firm-commitment underwritten offering. We sold 10.6
million shares of common stock and the GTCR Funds sold 11.02 million shares of common stock at a price to the

public of $19.50 per share, resulting in an\aggregate offering price of approximately $421.6 million. The offering
closed and was terminated on February 8, \“2006 after the sale of all of the securities registered on the registration
statement. The aggregate gross proceeds from the shares of common stock sold by the company, after the
underwriting discount, were approx1matel§1 $193.3 million (or $18.2325 per share). Our share of the underwriters’
commission was $13.4 million (or $1.2675 per share) and we incurred offering expenses of approximately $4.5
million. We used the net proceeds from th(‘; IPO, together with approximately $1.1 million in available cash, to repay
all of our outstanding debt and accrued and unpaid interest and a related prepayment premium. None of the
expenses, or application of the net proceed% to the company, were paid, directly or indirectly, to directors, officers or
persons owning 10% or more of our common stock or to their associates, or to our affiliates. The company did not

receive any of the proceeds from the sale of shares sold by the selling stockholders

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities |
|

During the fourth quarter of 2005, the c\\:ompany repurchased shares of its common stock as follows:
I
|

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

| Total Number of Approximate Dollar Value
Total - Shares Purchased as of Shares that May Yet Be
Number of Part of Publicly Purchased Under the
Shares Price Paid Announced Plans Plans or Programs
Period Purchased per Share (1) or Programs (3000)

10/1/05 — 10/31/05 67,500, $.20 - $—
11/1/05 - 11/30/03 25 OOO“ .20 — -
12/1/05 - 12/31/05 107 500\\ 20 — —
Total fourth quarter 200,000 $.20 _ $—

|
(1) Shares were repurchased pursuant to the terms of restricted stock purchase agreements between terminated

employees and the company. The sharés were voluntarily repurchased by the company at $.20 per share, an

amount equal to the employees’ cost pe\r share.
I

|

i\
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Ttem 6. Selected Financial Data

The following tables present selected historical financial data and other information for the company and its predecessor,
NewQuest, LLC. We derived the selected historical statement of income, cash flows, and balance sheet data as of and for the
years ended December 31, 2001, 2002, 2003, 2004, and 2005 from the audited consolidated financial statements of NewQuest,
LLC and the company. The audited consolidated financial statements and the related notes to the audited consolidated financial
statements of the company as of and for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, as applicable, together with the
related report of our independent registered public accounting firm are included elsewhere in this report.

The selected consolidated financial data and other information set forth below should be read in conjunction with the
consolidated financial statements included in this report and the related notes and Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

HealthSpring, Inc. Predecessor
Year Ended December 31
Combined Twelve Period from Period from
Months Ended March 1, 2005 to January 1, 2005 to
December 31, December 31, February 28,
2005(1) 2005(2) 2005(2) 2004(3) 20Q3(4) 2002(5) 2001(6}

{DoMars in thousands, except share and unit datay
Statement of Income Data:

Revenue:
Premium:
Medicare premiums... 8§ 705,677 S 610,913 $ 94,764 S 433729 § 240,037 § M s N
Commercial premiums.,. 126.872 106,168 20,704 146,318 120,877 (¥4} (7)
Total premiums. 832,549 717,081 115,468 580,047 360,914 24939 —
Fee revenue..... 20,416 16,955 3,461 17,919 11,054 1,099 3,976
investment income.. 3.798 3.337 461 1.449 695 78 43
Total revenue.... 856,763 737,373 119,390 599,415 372,663 26,116 4,019
Expenses:
Medical expense:
Medicare expense 553,084 478,553 74,531 338,632 187,368 (V)] 7y
Commercial expense. 107,093 90,783 16312 124,743 104,164 j€))] D
Total medical expense. 660,179 569,336 90,843 463,375 291,532 12,631 —
Selling, general and administrative 111,854 97,187 14,667 63,868 50,576 11,133 4921
Transaction expense .......... 10,941 4,000 6,941 — — — —
Phantom stock compensation — — — 24,200 — — —
Depreciation and amortization, 7,305 6,990 315 3,210 2,361 275 347
IREFESt v 14511 14,469 42 214 256 5 10
Total operating expenses. . 804,790 691,082 112,808 559,867 344,725 24,064 5278
Equity in eamings of unconsolidated affiliates .. 282 282 -— 234 2,058 4,148 7,855
Option amendment gain.........co.ovveenriciiirnees — -~ — — — 4,170 —
Income before minority interest and income
52,255 45,673 6,582 39,782 29,996 10,370 6,596
(3,227) (1.979) (1.248) (6,272) (5.519) (1.315) (1,050}
49,028 43,694 5334 33,510 24,477 9,055 5,546
Income tax expense ..., 19.772 17,144 2,628 9,193 5417 363 —
Net income before preferres 29,256 26,550 2,706 24,317 19,060 8,692 5,546
Preferred dividends 15,607 15,607 — — — — —

Net income available to members or common
SIOCKNOIders ...ovvie i s 13,649 b 10,943 § 2706 S__ 24317 $ 19.060 & 8,692 s 5,546
Net income per unit:

. — — 8055 $ 331 g 467 § 213 g _1.36
Diluted.. . — — 5 055 S 53] 3 467 & 2143 s 136
Weighted average units outstanding:
" — — 4,884,176 4,578,176 4,078,176 4,078,176 4,078,176
Diluted.. . — — __4.884.176 4,578,176 4,078,176 4,078,176 4,078,176
Net income per common share available to
common stockholders:
Basic... . $ — s 034 $ — $ — S — 8 — S —_
Diluted — § 034 — — — — —
Common shares outstanding:
Basic... — S_32,173.707 — — — — —
Diluted.... — S__ 32215288 — — — — —
Cash Flow Data:
Capital expenditures ..o, 2,745 2,596 149 2,512 3,198 190 46
Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities 72,103 57,136 14,964 24,665 63,392 6,569 (488)
[nvesting activities (276,346) (270,877)(8) (5,469) (34,615) 42,647 (6,123) (46)
Financing activities ... 322,935 323,823(8) (888) (23,311) (11,750 5,748 250
Balance Sheet Data (at period end):
Cash and cash
equivalents.. 110,085 110,085 76,441 67,834 101,095 6,806 612
Total assets .. §91,838 591,838 157,350 142,674 132,420 37,559 9,941
Total long-term debt, including current
MATUITHES . o.eos s cms e caeen 188,526 188,526 3,358 5,475 6,175 4,958 —
Members'/stockholders’ equity ......ccoceecirrveinree. 260,544 260,544 58,131 55,435 22,969 14,504 8515
Operating Statistics:
Medical Joss ratio ~— Medicare(9)....... 78.38% 78.33% 78.65% 78.07% 78.06% (7 (¥
Medical loss ratio ~— Commercial(9) .. 84.41% 85.51% 78.79% 85.25% 86.17% (N (7)
Selling, general and administrative expense
Tatio(10).c..vvreeecerrereene . 13.06% 13.18% 12.28% 11.49% 13.57% 42.63% 122.44%
Members — Medicare(11) . 101,281 101,281 69,236 63,792 47,899 33,579 —
Members — Commercial({1). 41,769 41,769 40,523 58,131 54,280 53,605 —
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The combined financial information for the qwe]ve months ended December 31, 2005 includes the results of operations of NewQuest,
LLC, for the period from January 1, 2005 thr‘ough February 28, 2005 and the results of operations of the company for the period from
March 1, 2005 through December 31, 2005. The combined financial information is for illustrative purposes only, reflects the combination
of the two-month period and the ten month p%nod to provide a comparison with the comparable twelve month period in 2004, and is not

presented in accordance with Generally Acce\\pted Accounting Principles (GAAP).

!
On November 10, 2004, NewQuest, LLC and its members entered into a purchase and exchange agreement with the company as part of
the recapitalization. Pursuant to this agreemept and a related stock purchase agreement, on March 1, 2005, the GTCR Funds and certain
other persons contributed $139.7 million of C%lSh to the company and the members of NewQuest, LLC contributed a portion of their
membership units in exchange for preferred and common stock of the company. Additionally, we entered into a $165.0 million term loan,
with an additional $15.0 million available pursuant to a revolving loan facility, and issued $35.0 million of subordinated notes. We used
the cash contribution and borrowings to acquire the members’ remaining membership units in NewQuest, LLC for approximately $295.4
million in cash. The aggregate transaction value for the recapitalization was $438.6 million, which included $5.3 million of capitahized
acquisition related costs. Additionally, the Company incurred $6.3 million of deferred financing costs. In addition, NewQuest, LLC
incurred $6.9 million of transaction costs Whléh were expensed during the two-month period ended February 28, 2005 and the company
incurred $4.0 million of transaction costs thathwere expensed during the ten-month period ended December 31, 2005. The transactions
resulted in the Company recording $315.0 mll‘llon in goodwill and $91.2 million in identifiable intangible assets.

il
On January 1, 2004, the minority members of iTennQuest Health Solutions, LL.C, or TennQuest, an 84.375% owned subsidiary of
NewQuest, LLC converted their ownership of TennQuest into 500,000 membership units in NewQuest, LLC, and on February 2, 2004
TennQuest was merged into NewQuest, LLC. ‘\Effectwe December 31, 2004, holders of phantom membership units in NewQuest, LLC
converted their phantom units inte 306,000 membership units of NewQuest, LLC. In connection with the conversion, the company
recognized phantom stock compensation expe@xse of $24.2 million.

On April 1, 2003, TennQuest exercised an optlon to acquire an additional 33% interest in HealthSpring Management, Inc., or HSMI, from
another shareholder of HSML As a result of the acquisition of these shares, the company held 83% of the ownership interests in HSMI and
consolidated the results of operations ofHea]tlll‘Sprlng of Tennessee with the company’s operations for the period from April 1, 2003. Prior
to April 1, 2003, the company accounted for its ownership interest in HSMI under the equity method. On December 19, 2003, HSMI and
HealthSpring USA, LLC each redeemed certain of their outstanding ownership interests, which resulted in the company owning 84.8% of
the outstanding ownership interests of HSMI a‘nd HealthSpring USA, LLC at December 31, 2003.

In November, 2002, NewQuest, LLC acquired uThe Qath — A Health Plan for Alabama, Inc., subsequently renamed HealthSpring of
Alabama, Inc., an Alabama for-profit HMO. |

i
On December 21, 2001, the minority sharehold}‘?rs of GulfQuest, L.P., an 85% owned subsidiary of NewQuest, LLC, converted their 15%
interest in GulfQuest into NewQuest, LLC membership units.

i
Premium revenues and medical expense are reported in total only and are not separated into Medicare and commercial for 2001 and 2002

as the company did not report information in this format. As a result, the company is not able to determine the Medicare and commercial
medical loss ratios for 2001 and 2002. w‘\

A substantial portion of the cash flows for inves“ting and financing activities for the ten-month period ended December 31, 2005 relate to

the recapltahzatnon See Item 7. ““‘Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — The
Recapitalization.” \\

The medical loss ratio represents medical expense incurred for plan participants as a percentage of premium revenue for plan participants.
The selling, general and administrative expense ratio represents selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of total

i
revenue. ‘
|
i

At end of each period presented. Data not available for 2001.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

You should read the following discussion and analysis in conjunction with our financial statements and related
notes included elsewhere in this report. This discussion contains forward-looking statements based on our current
expectations that by their nature involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results and the timing of selected events
could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements. Moreover, past financial and
operating performance are not necessarily reliable indicators of future performance and you are cautioned in using
our historical results to anticipate future results or to predict future trends. In evaluating any forward-looking
statement, you should specifically consider the information set forth under the caption “Special Note Regarding
Forward-Looking Statements” and in Item 1A. “Risk Factors,” as well as other cautionary statements contained
elsewhere in this report, including the matters discussed in “Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates™ below.

Overview

We are a managed care organization that focuses primarily on Medicare, the health insurance program for retired
United States citizens aged 65 and older, qualifying disabled persons, and persons suffering from end-stage renal
disease. Medicare is funded by the federal government and administered by CMS. As of December 31, 2005, we
owned and operated Medicare health plans, including stand-alone prescription drug plans, in Tennessee, Texas,
Alabama, Illinois, and Mississippi. For the combined twelve months ended December 31, 2005, approximately
82.4% of our total revenue consisted of premiums we received from CMS pursuant to our Medicare contracts.
Although we concentrate on Medicare plans, we also utilize our infrastructure and provider networks in Tennessee
and Alabama to offer commercial health plans to individuals and employer groups.

We operate our business through our subsidiaries. In general, we have a licensed HMO subsidiary in each state
in which we do business that is regulated by the relevant state department of insurance. We also typically have
nonregulated management subsidiaries in each of our geographic markets that contract with our HMO subsidiaries
for management and other administrative services, including financial administration and analysis, credentialing,
personnel, claims processing, utilization management, risk management, quality management, customer service,
insurance processing, contract negotiation, provider relations, and reporting and analysis.

In Tennessee, from the commencement of our operations in Septernber 2000 until March 31, 2003, we indirectly
owned a 50% interest in our Tennessee HMO and management subsidiaries and accounted for these subsidiaries
using the equity method. On April 1, 2003, we acquired an additional 33% interest in those subsidiaries and from the
acquisition date consolidated the operations of these subsidiaries for accounting purposes. On December 19, 2003,
we increased our ownership interest in the Tennessee subsidiaries to approximately 85%, which was our level of
ownership immediately preceding the recapitalization on March 1, 2005 (discussed in more detail below).
Concurrently with the recapitalization, we acquired the remaining minority interest in the Tennessee HMO and
management subsidiaries. We acquired our Alabama HMO subsidiary in November 2002. In Texas, although we
have had minority ownership interests in our Texas HMO subsidiary, we have accounted for our Texas operations
on a consolidated basis for all periods presented herein.

On February 8, 2006, we completed our initial public offering, or IPO, of common stock. In the PO, we issued
10.6 million shares of common stock at a price of $19.50 per share. We used the net proceeds of the IPO of
approximately $193.3 million to repay all of our outstanding indebtedness, including accrued and unpaid interest
and other expenses related to the IPO. In connection with the IPO, the minority interests in our Texas HMO
subsidiary were exchanged for 2,040,194 shares of our common stock. In addition, as a result of the IPO, all of our
outstanding shares of preferred stock and accrued but unpaid dividends automatically converted into shares of
Common Stock at the [PO price. Upon completion of the IPO, we had 57,289,549 shares of common stock
outstanding.
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Qur primary source of revenue is mo‘nthly premium payments we receive based on membership enrolled in our
managed care plans. The following table summarizes our Medicare Advantage and commercial plan membership,
by state, as of the dates indicated. f
i

f December 31,

2005 2004 2003

Medicare Advantage Membership h
Tennessee .....cooevvievvieeviecieeiee e b 42,509 29,862 25,772
TeXES eoviieiiiiriiee e 29,706 21,221 15,637
Alabama .......ocooooeieiiniien, 24,531 12,709 6,490
THHNOIS (1) it e 4,166 — —
Mississippi(2) | 369 — —
TOtalvrrcerecvereresssesecenressseseee s 101,281 63,792 47,899

|

Commercial Membership(3) ‘\‘
Tennessee .......ccoeeeecveeevveevennecennn, e 29,859 32,139 32,668
AlabaMA ... SURRR— 11,910 16,241 21,612
) DO S 41,769 48 380 54,280

(1) We commenced operations in llinois in December 2004

(2) We commenced enrollment efforts in MISSISSIPRI in July, 2005.
(3) Does not include members of commercial PPOs“owned and operated by unrelated third parties that pay us a fee for access to our contracted

provider network.

As a result of the MMA reforms, and pﬁrticularly as a result of the prescription drug coverage requirements
under Medicare Part D that became effectx\‘le January 1, 2006, we expect Medicare Advantage plan membership
penetration in our markets generally and enrollment in our Medicare plans specifically to increase. For example, as
of January 1, 2006, initial CMS enrollment|reports indicated we had approximately 90,000 beneficiaries enrolled in
our PDPs, substantially all of whom were auto-enrolled dual-eligible beneficiaries. Subsequent enrollment reports
indicated stand-alone PDP membership of gpproximately 75,000, although the exact number of our current PDP
members is not determinable because of challenges experienced by CMS in generating accurate enrollment and
payment reports. Moreover, as a result of various factors, including primarily, we believe, confusion of Medicare
beneficiaries over the new Part D prescrlp‘u%n drug benefits, our net new enrollment in our MA-PD plans in early
2006 has been lower than anticipated. Although we believe the CMS systems challenges, Medicare beneficiary
confusion, and our current enrollment trends are temporary, there can be no assurances that these factors will not

]
continue to adversely affect our membership growth.

The Recapitalization ]\

HealthSpring, Inc. was formed in October 2004 in connection with a recapitalization transaction, which was
accounted for using the purchase method, m”volvmg our predecessor, NewQuest, LLC, its members, the GTCR
Funds, and certain other investors and lenders The recapitalization was completed on March 1, 2005. Prior to the
recapitalization, NewQuest, LLC was owned 43.9% by our officers and employees, 38.2% by non-management

directors of NewQuest, LLC, and 17.9% by ‘out51de investors.

In connection with the recapitalization, tk}e company, NewQuest, LLC, its members, the GTCR Funds, and
certain other investors entered into a purchase and exchange agreement and other related agreements pursuant to
which the GTCR Funds and certain other investors purchased an aggregate of 136,072 shares of our preferred stock
and 18,237,587 shares of our common stock \”for an aggregate purchase price of $139.7 million. The members of
NewQuest, LLC exchanged or sold their ownershlp interests in NewQuest, LL.C for an aggregate of $295.4 million
in cash (including $17.2 million placed in escrow to secure contingent post-closing indemnification liabilities),
91,082 shares of our preferred stock, and 12 %07 631 shares of our common stock. In addition, upon the closing of
the recapitalization, the company issued an aggregate of 1,286,250 shares of restricted common stock to employees
of the company for an aggregate purchase pri}“ce of $257,250. The company used the proceeds from the sale of
preferred and common stock and $200 million of borrowings under our senior credit facility and senior subordinated
notes to fund the cash payments to the memb[ers of NewQuest, LLC and to pay expenses and other payments
relating to the transaction. Immediately following the recapitalization, the company was owned 55.1% by the GTCR
Funds, 28.7% by our executive officers and e%ployees and 16.2% by outside investors, including one of our non-
employee directors. In connection with the IPO the GTCR Funds sold 11.02 million shares of common stock,
thereby reducing their ownership to 23.9% of our outstanding common stock.
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Prior to the recapitalization, approximately 15% of the ownership interests in two of our Tennessee management
subsidiaries and approximately 27% of the membership interests of our Texas HMO subsidiary, Texas
HealthSpring, LLC, were owned by outside investors. Contemporaneously with the recapitalization, we purchased
all of the minority interests in our Tennessee subsidiaries for an aggregate consideration of approximately $27.5
million and a portion of the membership interests held by the minority investors in Texas HealthSpring, LLC for
aggregate consideration of approximately $16.8 million. Following the purchase, the outside investors in Texas
HealthSpring, LLC owned an approximately 9% ownership interest. In June 2005, Texas HealthSpring completed a
private placement pursuant to which it issued new membership interests to existing and new investors, primarily
physicians affiliated with RPO, for net proceeds of $7.7 million. Following this private placement, and as of !
December 31, 2005, the outside investors owned an approximately 15.9% interest in Texas HealthSpring, LLC,
which interest was automatically exchanged, without additional consideration, for 2,040,194 shares of our common
stock immediately prior to the IPO.

The recapitalization was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards, or SFAS, No. 141, Business Combinations. The aggregate transaction value for the
recapitalization was $438.6 million, which included $5.3 million of capitalized acquisition related costs and $6.3
million of deferred financing costs. In addition, the company incurred $6.9 million of transaction costs that were
expensed during the two-month period ended February 28, 2005 and $4.0 million of costs that were expensed during
the ten-month period ended December 31, 2005. As a result of the recapitalization, the company acquired $438.6
million of net assets, including $91.2 million of identifiable intangible assets and goodwill of approximately $315.0
million. Of the $91.2 million of identifiable intangible assets we recorded, $24.5 million has an indefinite life, and
the remaining $66.7 million is being amortized over periods ranging from 2 to 15 years.

Basis of Presentation

HealthSpring as it existed prior to the March 1, 2005 recapitalization is sometimes referred to as “predecessor.”
For purposes of comparing our 2005 twelve-month results with the comparable 2004 period, we have combined the
results of operations of the predecessor from January 1, 2005 through February 28, 2005 and of the company for the
period from March 1, 2005 through December 31, 2005. This combined presentation is not in accordance with
GAAP; however, we believe it is useful in analyzing and comparing certain of our operating trends for the last two
fiscal years. The combined and consolidated results of operations include the accounts of HealthSpring, Inc. and all
of its subsidiaries. Significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Results of Operations
Revenue

General. Our revenue consists primarily of (i) premium revenue we generate from our Medicare and
commercial lines of business; (ii) fee revenue we receive for management and administrative services provided to
independent physician associations, health plans, and self-insured employers, and for access to our provider
networks; and (ii1) investment income.

Premium Revenue. Our Medicare and commercial lines of business include all premium revenue we receive in
our health plans. Our Medicare contracts entitle us to premium payments from CMS, on behalf of each Medicare
beneficiary enrolled in our plans, generally on a per member per month, or PMPM, basis. In our commercial HMOs,
we receive a monthly payment from or on behalf of each enrolled member. In both our commercial and Medicare
plans we recognize premium revenue during the month in which the company is obligated to provide services to an
enrolled member. Premiums we receive in advance of that date are recorded as deferred revenue.

Premiums for our Medicare and commercial products are generally fixed by contract in advance of the period
during which health care is covered. Each of our Medicare plans submits rate proposals to CMS, generally by
county or service area, in June for each Medicare product that will be offered beginning January 1 of the subsequent
year. Retroactive rate adjustments are made periodically with respect to each of our Medicare Advantage plans
based on the aggregate health status and risk scores of our plan populations. These rate adjustments are recorded as
received. Our commercial premiums are generally fixed for the plan year, in most cases beginning January 1.

Fee Revenue. Fee revenue includes amounts paid to us for management services provided to independent
physician associations and health plans. Our management subsidiaries typically generate fee revenue on one of three
principal bases: (1) as a percentage of revenue collected by the relevant health plan; (2) as a fixed PMPM payment
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or percentage of revenue for members serleiced by the relevant independent physician association; or (3) as fees we
receive for offering access to our providerl“\ networks and for administrative services we offer to self-insured
employers, Fee revenue is recognized in tlwle month in which services are provided. In addition, pursuant to certain of
our management agreements with independent physician associations, we receive fees based on a share of the profits
of the independent physician associations \ To the extent these fees relate to members of our HMO subsidiaries, the
fees are recognized as a credit to medical ¢ expernse. Management fees calculated based on profits are recognized, as
fee revenue or as a credit to medical expenses if applicable, when we can readily determine that such fees have been
earned, which determination is typically made on a monthly basis.

Investment Income. Investment mcor‘rLle consists of interest income and gross realized gains and losses incurred
on short term available for sale and long term held to maturity investments.

Medical Expense |

Our largest expense is the cost of med1”cal services we arrange for our members, or medical expense. Medical
expense for our Medicare and commercial plans primarily consist of payments to physicians, hospitals, and other
health care providers for services provided!to our Medicare Advantage and commercial members. We generally pay
our providers on one of three bases: (1) fee-for-service contracts based on negotiated fee schedules; (2) capitated
arrangements, generally on a fixed PMPM payment basis, whereby the provider generally assumes some or all of the
medical expense risk; and (3) risk-sharing arrangements, whereby we advance a capltated PMPM amount and share
the risk of the medical costs of our membefls with the provider based on actual experience as measured against pre-

determined sharing ratios. \

i
One of our primary tools for managing ¢ our business and measuring our profitability is our medical loss ratio, or

MLR, the ratio of our medical expenses to the premiums we receive. Changes in the MLR from period to period
result from, among other things, changes 1n\ Medicare funding or commercial premiums, changes in benefits offered
by our plans, our ability to manage medlcah expense, and changes in accounting estimates related to incurred but not
reported, or IBNR, claims. We use MLRs b“oth to monitor our management of medical expenses and to make various
business decisions, including what plans orbenefits to offer, what geographic areas to enter or exit, and our selection
of healthcare providers. We analyze and evaluate our Medicare and commercial MLRs separately.

H

\\
The following table sets forth the consohdated and combined statements of income data expressed as a
percentage of revenues for each period 1nd1cated

Percentage Comparisons

\‘ Year Ended December 31,
! 2005 2004 2003
! (combined)
Revenue: ;‘
Premium: !
Medicare Premilms. ... .ooceeeremrenrieraredioreiin i s 82.4% 72.4% 64.4%
Commercial premiums... 14.8 244 324
Total premiums 97.2 96.8 96.8
Fee revenue.......cccvvccevnicininiciecced L 24 3.0 3.0
Investment income 0.4 0.2 0.2
Total REVENUE. ...c.vvvtnviiiisinnienc et 100.0 100.0 100.0
Expenses: i
Medical expense ..........ccocevvevnccnnnncnien \‘\: ............................................. 77.0 77.3 78.2
Selling, general and administrative expense 13.1 11.5 13.6
Transaction eXpense ........c...ovceecerveerirrnee T 1.3 — —
Phantom stock compensation ................. \\ ............................................. — 4.0 —
Depreciation and amortization expense ... 0.8 0.6 0.6
INterest eXPense ......ocovevverereeeeerereererenrinde 1.7 — 0.1
Total expenses 93.9 93.4 92.5
Equity in earnings of unconsolldated aff'hates .................... — — 0.6
Income before minority interest and i mcome taxes .. 6.1 6.6 8.1
MINOrity INterest......c.cocvevviivvieverienrireaneas ettt st e ers s eareerran (0.4) (1.0) (1.5)
Income before income taxes 5.7 5.6 6.6
Income tax exXpense ........covveviinnennns 2.3 1.5 1.5
Net income before preferred d1v1dends... 34 4.1 5.1
Preferred dividends.............coceovininn, Lo 1.8 — —
Net income available to members or common stockholders............ 1.6% 4.1% 51%
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Comparison of the Combined Twelve Month Period Ended December 31, 2005 to the Year Ended
December 31, 2004

Membership

Our Medicare Advantage membership increased by 58.8% to 101,281 members at December 31, 2005 as
compared 1o 63,792 members at December 31, 2004. The substantial majority of this increase was attributable to
growth in membership in our existing core markets in Tennessee, Texas and Alabama through increased penetration
In existing service areas and geographic expansion into new counties contiguous to existing service areas.
Enrollment efforts in our new markets, Illinois and Mississippi, which commenced in December 2004 and July
2005, respectively, also contributed to the increase. Our commercial HMO membership declined by 13.7% over the
same period, from 48,380 to 41,769, primarily as a result of our decision to increase premiums to maintain our
commercial margins and the discontinuance of certain unprofitable customer and provider relationships in Alabama
and Tennessee.

Revenue

Total revenue was $856.8 million in the combined twelve months of 2005 as compared with $599.4 million for
2004, representing an increase of $257.4 million, or 42.9%. The components of revenue were as follows:

Premium Revenue. Total premium revenue for the combined twelve months of 2005 was $832.5 million as
compared with $580.0 million in 2004, representing an increase of $252.5 million, or 43.5%. The components of
premium revenue and the primary reasons for changes were as follows:

Medicare: Medicare premiums were $705.7 million in the combined twelve months of 2005 versus $433.7
million in the prior year, representing an increase of $272.0 million, or 62.7%. The primary factors affecting
changes in Medicare premium revenue include membership (which we measure in member months), premium
rates and risk scores, the geographic mix of our Medicare members, and the mix of our members qualifying as
dual-eligibles. The increase in Medicare premiums in 2005 is primarily attributable to the 46.1% increase in
membership months to 996,929 for the combined twelve months of 2005 from 682,331 for the comparable
period of 2004. An increase in our average PMPM premium to $707.85 for the combined twelve months of 2003
from $635.66 for 2004, or by 11.4%, also contributed to the increase in premium revenue. Approximately $9.8
million, or $9.82 PMPM, of the rate increase was attributable to retroactive risk payments received from CMS
during the combined twelve months ended December 31, 2005. For the combined twelve months of 2005,
Medicare premiums represented 84.8% of total premium revenue and 82.4% of total revenue as compared with
74.8% and 72.4%, respectively, for the comparable period of the prior year.

Commercial: Commercial premiums were $126.9 million in the combined twelve months of 2005 as
compared with $146.3 million in 2004, reflecting a decrease of $19.4 million, or 13.3%. The decline in
commercial premiums is attributable to the decline in commercial membership months to 497,973 for the
combined twelve month period ended December 31, 2005 from 614,295 for 2004, or by 18.9%, which was
partially offset by average commercial premium increases of approximately 7.0% over the same period. For the
combined twelve months of 2005, commercial premiums represented 15.2% of total premium revenue and
14.8% of total revenue versus 25.2% and 24.4%, respectively, for the prior year. Because of our expansion of
our Medicare program into Mississippi and new areas in Tennessee, Texas, and Illinois, continuing Medicare
member growth in existing service areas, our recent decision to exit the individual and small employer group
commercial markets in Alabama, and the implementation of Medicare Part D as of January 1, 2006, we expect
commercial premium revenue as a percentage of total premium revenue and total revenue to continue to decline
in the future.

Fee Revenue. Fee revenue was $20.4 million in the combined twelve months of 2005 as compared with $17.9
million in 2004, representing an increase of $2.5 million, or 13.9%. The increase was primarily attributable to the
addition of a new independent physician association in Tennessee in January 2005, increases in independent
physician association management fees, which are calculated by reference to increased PMPM premiums, and the
increase in Medicare Advantage membership.

Investment Income. Investment income was $3.8 million for the combined twelve months of 2005 versus $1.4
million for 2004, reflecting an increase of $2.4 million, or 171.4%. The increase is attributable primarily to an
increase in average invested and cash balances, coupled with a higher average yield on these balances.
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Medical Expense |

Medicare medical expense for the combmed twelve months ended December 31, 2005 increased $214.5 million,
or 63.3%, to $553.1 million from $338.6 million for 2004, primarily as a result ofmcreased membership.
Commercial medical expense decreased b3”/ $17.6 million, or 14.2%, to $107.1 million for the combined twelve
months of 2005 as compared to $124.7 mllhon for 2004, primarily as a result of the decrease in commercial
membership over the same period.

For the combined twelve months ended December 31, 2005, the Medicare MLR was 78.38% versus 78.07% for
2004, reflecting an increase of 31 basis pomts which was prlmarﬂy attributable to general medical cost inflation,
higher Medicare inpatient admissions per ghousand an increase in the average cost per admission, and an increase in
benefits, including implementation of a fitness program in all markets and increased drug benefits in selected
markets, offset in part by favorable Medxcére premium rates. Qur Medicare medical expense calculated on a PMPM
basis was $554.79 for the combined twelvé months ended December 31, 2005, compared with $496.29 for 2004,
reflecting an increase of 11.8%, which was  primarily attributable to a h1gher mix of dual-eligible beneficiaries in
2005. The commercial MLR was 84.41% for the combined twelve months of 2005 as compared with 85.25% in
2004, a decrease of 84 basis points, which was primarily attributable to improvement in commercial premiums and
relatively flat cost trends. ;

Selling, General, and Administrative Expénse
11
Selling, general, and administrative, or §G&A, expense for the combined twelve months ended December 31,
2005 was $111.9 million (not including the $10.9 million of transaction expense described below) as compared with

$68.9 million for the prior year, an increase“‘ of $43.0 million, or 62.4%. As a percentage of revenue, SG&A expense

was 13.06% for the combined twelve mont\hs of 2005 versus 11.49% for the prior year, an increase of 157 basis
points. The increase in SG&A expense was) attributable, in part, to an increase in personnel, including increases in
corporate personnel in anticipation of the IPO, increased sales commissions resulting from the increased

membership, and other spending assomated‘ with supporting and sustaining our membership growth, including
expansion into new geographic areas. Durlr“lg late 2004 and early 2005, we commenced expansion into selected
counties surrounding Chattanooga and Meﬁiphls Tennessee as well as into the Chicago, [llinois metropolitan area.

As we expand into new service areas, we incur a significant amount of expense in advance of the effective member

enrollment dates, when we begin to collect revenue for new members. During 2005, the company incurred

approximately $6.8 million of expense asso:mated with this expansion activity. In addition, in 2005 we incurred
approximately $4.0 million of incremental ?xpense relating primarily to sales and marketing activities associated
with the implementation of our Medicare Part D programs and new membership recruitment and enrollment and

$1.7 million of stock compensation expense.

Transaction Expense d‘

Transaction expense of $10.9 million was incurred in the combined twelve months of 2005 in conjunction with
the recapitalization. This expense includes fees paid to financial and legal advisors and other expenses, including

$4.0 million related to a settlement with RPP See Notes 7 and 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Depreciation and amortization expense was $7.3 million in the combined twelve months of 2005 as compared
with $3.2 million in 2004, representing an increase of $4.1 million, or 128.1%. The increase is primarily attributable
to the amortization of identifiable intangible assets recorded in conjunction with the recapitalization. Amortization

related to the recapitalization in the amount ‘of $5.0 million was recorded during the combined twelve months of
2005. Management currently expects that amortlzatlon relating to the identifiable intangible assets recorded in the

recapitalization for 2006 will be appr0x1mat“ely $7.3 million, which includes the acceleration of amortization of
certain identifiable intangible assets as a result of our Alabama HMO’s decision following the recapitalization to

exit the individual and small employer comr%]ercial business.
1
|

Interest expense was $14.5 million in theH combined twelve months of 2005. Almost all of the company’s interest
expense related to the senior credit facility a‘pd senior subordinated notes put in place in conjunction with the
recapitalization. For the combined twelve months ended December 31, 2005, we recorded interest expense of $9.0

R
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million related to our senior credit facility and $4.5 million related to our senior subordinated notes. Additionally,
interest expense in the combined twelve months of 2005 includes $0.9 million for amortization of deferred finance
costs. The effective annual interest rate during the combined twelve months of 2005 on the senior credit facility was
6.6% and on the senior subordinated notes was 15%, 12% of which was payable in cash and 3% of which accrued
quarterly and was added to the outstanding principal amount. In February 2006, in connection with the [PO, the
company repaid all of its outstanding indebtedness and related accrued interest, and wrote off related deferred
financing costs of $5.5 million.

Minority Interest

Minority interest was $3.2 million in the combined twelve months of 2005 as compared with $6.3 million in
2004. The change is attributable to the elimination of minority interest ownership in our Tennessee HMO and
management subsidiaries and the reduction of minority interest ownership interest in our Texas HMO subsidiary in
connection with the recapitalization. The earnings of these subsidiaries increased in 2005 as compared with 2004,
which would have resulted in an increase in minority interest if it had not been offset by the Company’s increases in
ownership. In conjunction with the IPO, all minority interest ownership in the Texas HMO subsidiary was
exchanged for Company common stock.

Income Tax Expense

For the combined twelve months ended December 31, 2005, income tax expense was $19.8 million, reflecting an
effective tax rate of 40.3%, versus $9.2 million, reflecting an effective tax rate of 27.4%, for 2004. The increase in
the effective tax rate is a result of the fact that our predecessor and several of its subsidiaries were pass-through tax
entities that were taxed at the member level and the successor is taxed on a consolidated basis at the corporate level.

Preferred Dividend
In the combined twelve months ended December 31, 2005, we accrued $15.6 million of dividends payable on the
preferred stock issued in connection with the recapitalization. The $227.2 million liquidation value of preferred

stock had an accumulating dividend of 8%, whether declared or paid. In February 2006, in connection with the IPO,
the preferred stock and all accrued and unpaid dividends were automatically converted into common stock.
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Comparison of Year Ended December 31, 2004 to Year Ended December 31, 2003

As previously noted, prior to April 1, ﬁOO3 the predecessor accounted for its Tennessee management subsidiary,
HealthSpring Management, Inc., or HSMI including HSMI’s wholly owned subsidiary, HealthSpring of Tennessee,
Inc., or HTI, our Tennessee HMO using the equity method. On April 1, 2003, the predecessor increased its
ownershlp of HSMI to 83% and consohda\ted the results of HSMI and HTI for the balance of 2003 and all of 2004.
Although not in accordance with GAAP, management believes the changes from 2003 to 2004 in results of
operations and the reasons therefore are be'st understood by comparing 2004 as reported to 2003 as adjusted to
reflect HSMI on an “as if consolidated basis” for the first quarter of 2003. The adjustments to statement of income

data for 2003 to reflect HSMI on an “as if 'consolidated basis” are set forth in the table below:
1

| Year Ended HSMI for the Period from
Year Ended December 31, 2003 January 1, 2003 Year Ended
December 31, 2004 As Adjusted through March 31, 2003 December 31, 2003

\ (in thousands)

Revenue: |
Premium: !
Medicare premiums..........cco.eererveeen. $ ' 433,729 $ 298,831 $ 58,794 $ 240,037
Commercial premiums .. 146318 141,064 20,187 120.877
Total premiums.....c..cooeveveiererereeneean | 580,047 439,395 78,981 360,914
Feerevenue. ... ‘ 17,919 11,002 (52) 11,054
Investment income 1.449 831 136 695
Total revenue ..........ccoovveveviveeenrenn, \‘\ 599,415 451,728 79,065 372,663
Expenses: ‘
Medical expense ‘
Medicare exXpense......c..cooeeeeceeennn ‘\ 338,632 238,753 51,385 187,368
Commercial expense 124,743 119.936 15,772 104,164
Total medical expense “ 463,375 358,689 67,157 291,532
Selling, general and administrative...... | 68,868 58,083 7,507 50,576
Phantom stock compensation.............. 124,200 — — —
Depreciation and amortization 3,210 2,773 412 2,361
Interest ..o i 214 256 — 256
Total operating expenses................ 1 559.867 419,801 75.076 344,725
Income before equity in ‘\
earnings of unconsolidated i
affiliates, minority interest, |
and iNCOME tAXES ..oovvvvvvvvvnsrrronne | 39,548 31,927 3,989 27,938
Equity in earnings of ;\‘
unconsolidated affiliates................... ) 234 64 {1.994) 2,058
Income before minority i
interest and income taxes ............... 1 39,782 31,991 1,995 29,996
Minority interest . (6,272) (1,514) _(1.993) (5.519)
Income before income taxes............. ‘; 33,510 24,477 — 24,477
Income tax expense.........coceoeveernnee. : 9,193 5.417 — SAl7
Net INCOME oovooevierereriieie e $ . 24,317 $ 19,060 S — 3 19,060
}
Membership !

Our Medicare Advantage membership in:‘lcreased by 33.2%, to 63,792 members at December 31, 2004, as
compared to 47,899 members at December 31, 2003. This increase was attributable to growth in membership in all
of our existing markets — Tennessee (4, 090" or 15.9%, increase in members), Texas (5,584, or 35.7%, increase),
and Alabama (6,219, or 95.8%, increase) ——wthrough increased penetration in existing service areas and geographic
expansion into new counties contiguous to ex15tmg service areas. Our commercial membership declined by 10.9%
over the same period, from 54,280 to 48,380! primarily as a result of the decision to discontinue certain unprofitable

customer and provider relationships and markets in Alabama and Tennessee.
H
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Revenue

Total revenue was $599.4 million for 2004 as compared with $451.7 miilion for 2003, as adjusted, an increase of
$147.7 million, or 32.7%. The components of revenue were as follows:

Premium Revenue. Total premium revenue for 2004 was $580.0 million as compared with $439.9 million in
2003, as adjusted, representing an increase of $140.1 million, or 31.8%. Total premium revenue accounted for
96.8% and 97.4%, as adjusted, of our total revenue in 2004 and 2003, respectively. The components of premium
revenue were as follows:

Medicare: Medicare premium revenue for 2004 was $433.7 million versus $298.8 million in 2003, as
adjusted. The increase in Medicare premium revenue in 2004 by $134.9 million, or 45.1%, over 2003 is
primarily attributable to a 13.0% increase in our average PMPM premiums, to $635.66 in 2004 from $562.53 in
2003, and a 28.4% increase in Medicare member months, to 682,331 in 2004 from 531,266 in 2003. Medicare
premium revenues also increased because of the accelerating growth of Medicare members, particularly dual-
eligible members, in Texas and Alabama, where our PMPM reimbursement rates were higher than in Tennessee.
Medicare premium revenue accounted for 74.8% of total premium revenue in 2004 as compared to 67.9% of
total premium revenue in 2003, as adjusted.

Commercial. Commercial premiums were $146.3 million in 2004 as compared with $141.1 million in 2003,
as adjusted, reflecting an increase of $5.2 million, or 3.7%. The increase in commercial premiums is attributable
to an average premium increase of $19.37, or 8.7%, which was partially offset by a 4.7% decline in commercial
member months.

Fee Revenne. Fee revenue was $17.9 million for 2004 as compared with $11.0 million, as adjusted, in the prior
year, an increase of $6.9 million, or 62.9%. The increase was primarily attributable to increased Medicare
membership and Medicare premiums in our managed independent physician associations.

Investment Income. Investment income was $1.4 million for 2004 as compared with $0.8 million for the prior
year, as adjusted, reflecting an increase of $0.6 million, or 74.4%. The increase is attributable primarily to an
increase in average invested balances.

Medical Expense

Total medical expense for 2004 was $463.4 million as compared with $358.7 million for 2003, as adjusted,
reflecting an increase of $104.7 million, or 29.2%. Medicare medical expense for 2004 was $338.6 million as
compared $238.8 million for 2003, as adjusted. Commercial medical expense for 2004 was $124.7 million as
compared to $119.9 million for 2003, as adjusted.

The components of medical expense and the corresponding MLR, by line of business were, for the periods
indicated, as follows:

2004 2003

As Adjusted
(in thousands)

Premium Revenue:

IMEAICATE. ..cvv vt ettt ettt et s st se et e e et e st e e s eresetssbees ) 433,729 $ 298,831
CommETCIAL.......oooviiiiiie e e 146,318 141.064
§ 580,047 S 439,895
Medical Expense:
IMEAICALE ...ttt ettt $ 338,632 $ 238,753
COMMETCIAL...viivriiere et 124,743 119,936
$ 463,375 $ 358,689
Medical Loss Ratio (MLR):
MEAICATE ...ttt 78.07% 79.90%
COMMEITIAL....oviiiiiee ettt et et eeine e 85.25% 85.02%
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For 2004, the Medicare MLR was 78 07% compared with 79.90% for 2003, as adjusted, a decrease of 183 basis
points. The decline in Medicare MLR m\2004 was primarily the result of the favorable impact of risk-adjusted
revenue received from CMS during the thlrd quarter of 2004, which included positive retrospective adjustments
back to January 2004. Our Medicare medlcal expense calculated on a PMPM basis was $496.29 for 2004 compared
with $449.40 for 2003, as adjusted, reﬂectmg an increase of 10.4%. Commercial MLR of 85.25% in 2004 was
relatively flat as compared to 85.02% in %003 as adjusted.

\

Selling, General, and Administrative Expense

SG&A expense for 2004 was $68.9 m\llhon versus $58.1 million in 2003, as adjusted, reflecting an increase of
$10.8 million, or 18.6%. This increase over 2003 was primarily attributable to an increase in headcount, an increase
in general advertising and marketing expénse, and approximately $1.3 million of incremental administrative expense
associated with the new market expansion into Illinois. As a percentage of total revenue, SG&A expense was
11.49% for 2004 versus 12.86% for 2003} as adjusted, a decrease of 137 basis points.

|
Phantom Stock Compensation \

An expense of $24.2 million was mcurred in 2004 in conjunction with the recapitalization. This amount reflects
the compensation expense associated w1tH the conversion, as of December 31, 2004, by our employees of phantom
membership units in the predecessor into 306 025 membership units of the predecessor in anticipation of the
recapitalization. \“

!
Depreciation and Amortization Expense
]
| . e

Depreciation and amortization expense for 2004 was $3.2 million as compared with $2.8 million in 2003, as
adjusted, reflecting an increase of $0.4 million, or 15.76%. This increase was primarily attributable to additional
depreciation on new assets purchased and increased amortization resulting from a full year of ownership of two
preferred provider organization networks purchased in September 2003.

Minority Interest |

Minority interest for 2004 was $6.3 million as compared with $7.5 million in 2003, as adjusted. This change was
primarily attributable to the acquisition of an additional 35% interest in the Tennessee management subsidiaries
during 2003.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense for 2004 was $9.2 ﬁqillion versus $5.4 million in 2003, reflecting an increase of $3.8 million,
or 70.4%. This increase over 2003 was primarily attributable to an increase in 2004 in taxable income of $9.1
million. :

Liquidity and Capital Resources | -

We have historically financed our operations primarily through internally generated funds. Substantially all of
the cash proceeds from the $200.0 million in debt we incurred in connection with the recapitalization were paid to
members of our predecessor in exchange fo% their membership units or to others, primarily for expenses related to
the recapitalization. All of our outstanding funded indebtedness was repaid in February 2006 with proceeds from the
IPO. Although we eliminated our funded debt, we may borrow up to $15.0 million pursuant to our existing senior
secured revolving credit facility, which amount may be increased by up to $25.0 million subject to certain
conditions. See “—Indebtedness” below. |

W
We generate cash primarily from premit%m revenue and our primary use of cash is the payment of medical and
SG&A expenses. We anticipate that our current level of cash on hand, internally generated cash flows, and
borrowings available under our senior secure‘d revolving credit facility will be sufficient to fund our working capital
needs and anticipated capital expenditures over the next twelve months. We currently intend to enter into a new
revolving credit facility in the second qua.r‘cexlN of 2006.
l\

\\
\

45




The reported changes in cash and cash equivalents for the combined twelve month period ended December 31,
2005, which includes our predecessor for the period from January 1, 2005 through February 28, 2005 and the
company for the period from March 1, 2005 through December 31, 2005, and the years ended December 31, 2004
and 2003, are summarized below:

Combined Twelve
Months Ended Year Ended December 31,

December 31, 2005 2004 2003
(in thousands)
Net cash provided by operating activities ...........ccoe... $ 72,103 § 24,665 $ 63,392
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities....... (276,386) (34,615) 42,647
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ...... 322,975 (23.311) (11.750)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents........... $ 118,692 $ (33,2613 § 94289

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Our cash flows are heavily influenced by the timing of the Medicare premium remittance from CMS, which is
payable to us on the first day of each month. This payment is sometimes received in the last couple of days of the
month prior to the month of medical coverage. When this happens, we record the receipt in deferred revenue and
recognize it as premium revenue in the month of medical coverage. The January 2004 payment in the amount of
$28.6 million was received in December of 2003, which had the effect of increasing operating cash flows in that
year with a corresponding decrease in the following year. Adjusting our operating cash flows in 2003 and 2004 for
the effect of the timing of this payment, our operating cash flows would have been as follows:

Combined Twelve
Months Ended Year Ended December 31,

December 31, 2005 2004 2003
(in thousands)
Net cash provided by operating activities, as reported $72,103 $ 24,665 $ 63,392
Timing effect of CMS payment..........c.cccoorvrrninenne. - 28,597 (28.597)
Adjusted cash flow......c.cccoooooiiiciiieii e $72,103 $ 53262 § 34795

2005 Compared With 2004

The increase in adjusted cash flow provided by operating activities to $72.1 million for the combined twelve
months ended December 31, 2005 as compared with $53.3 million for 2004 is primarily attributable to increases in
membership and premiums. We preliminarily reported cash flow provided by operating activities of $76.3 million
for the combined 2005 twelve months. The decrease was a result of additional purchase accounting adjustments
related to deferred tax assets and liabilities in connection with the recapitalization. For the combined twelve months
of 2003, we generated $29.3 million of net income and increased working capital by $33.1 million. Net income had
been reduced as a result of depreciation and amortization in the amount of $7.3 million, and minority interest of $3.2
million, all of which represented non-cash items.

2004 Compared With 2003

The increase in adjusted cash flow for 2004 as compared with 2003 is primarily attributable to increases in
membership and premiums. For the period ended December 31, 2004, the major components of adjusted operating
cash flow were net income of $24.3 million, offset by an investment in net working capital of approximately $6.1
million. Net income for the period ended December 31, 2004 had been reduced for depreciation and amortization in
the amount of $3.2 million, expense related to phantom stock compensation in the amount of $24.2 million, and
minority interest of $6.3 million, all of which represented non-cash items.
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Cash Flows from Investing and Financ{ing Activities

For the combined twelve months ended December 31, 2005, the primary investing and financing activities
related to the recapitalization. The compa”ny also had $2.8 million of capital expenditures. During 2004, the
company made distributions to its membérs and minority interest holders of its subsidiary companies in the amount
of $22.6 million and purchased $32.2 mi Llon of investments. Additionally, the company had capital expenditures in
the amount of $2.5 million in 2004. ‘

|

For the year ended December 31, 2003 the company’s primary investing activity was the purchase of an
additional 33% interest in HSMI for $6204\ 000. As a result of this purchase, the company commenced consolidating
this entity as a subsidiary and thus for accountmg purposes was deemed to have acquired approximately $37.5
million of cash on HSMI's balance sheet. ‘Add1t1onally, the company had $3.2 million of capital expenditures in
2003 and made distributions to members gf $10.9 million. These payments were partially financed through proceeds

from the maturity of investments in the amoum of $10.1 million.

Statutory Capital Requirements |‘\
i

Our HMO subsidiaries are required to %naintain satisfactory minimum net worth requirements established by the
relevant state departments of insurance. At December 31, 2005, the statutory minimum net worth requirements were
$14.1 million in the aggregate, which was comprised of $8.1 million for HealthSpring of Tennessee, Inc.; $1.1 million
for HealthSpring of Alabama, Inc.; and $4\L9 million for Texas HealthSpring, LL.C. Each of these subsidiaries was in
compliance with applicable statutory capltal requirements as of December 31, 2005. The HMOs are restricted from
making certain distributions to the company without appropriate regulatory notifications and approvals or to the extent
such distributions would put them out of cémpliance with statutory capital requirements. At December 31, 2005, $148.2
million out of a total of $161.7 million of the company’s cash, cash equivalents, investment securities, and restricted

investments were held by the company’s HMO subsidiaries and subject to these distribution restrictions.

Indebtedness }\}

In connection with the recapitalization, :‘our subsidiary, NewQuest, Inc., entered into a sentor credit facility and
issued senior subordinated notes. We used Fonow1ngs under the senior credit facility and proceeds from the
issuance of the senior subordinated notes, net of $6.4 million of fees recorded as deferred financing costs, as well as
proceeds from the issuance of the preferred”and common stock, to fund the cash payments to the members of
NewQuest, LLC in the recapitalization and [for other related expenses and payments.

The senior credit facility provided for b?rrowmgs in an aggregate principal amount of up to $180.0 million,

which included: \\

* A senior secured term loan facility 1rl) an aggregate principal amount of up to $165.0 million (the term loan
facility), which had $152.6 million prmc1pal amount outstanding as of December 31, 2005, and which was
repaid with proceeds from the [PO in February 2006 and terminated; and

\

+ A senior secured revolving credit fac~1hty in an aggregate principal amount of up to $15.0 million, none of

which had been drawn as of December 31, 200sS.

|

Following the PO, the senior secured reyolving credit facility remains in effect, under which we may borrow up
to $15.0 million aggregate principal amount] which amount may be increased by up to $25.0 million, subject to
certain conditions, through March 1, 2010. The obligations from time to time under the senior credit facility are
guaranteed by the Company and all of its no\n HMO subsidiaries and is secured by substantially all of our assets.

\

Amounts borrowed by the Company under the term loan facility bore interest at floating rates, which could be
either a base rate or, at our option, a LIBOR rate plus, in each case, an applicable margin. On July 1, 2005, the
Company elected the base rate option and arr‘lounts borrowed under the term loan facility bore interest at an annual
rate of 6.66% for the period through December 31, 2005 and 7.53% from January 1, 2006 until it was repald n
February 2006. As required by our term loanl\\ fac1l1ty, we entered into an interest rate swap agreement in July 2005,
pursuant to which $25.0 million of the principal amount outstanding under the term loan facility would bear interest
at a fixed annual rate of 4.25% plus the applicable margin (3.00%) for the period from January 1, 2006 to June 30,
2006. The swap did not qualify for hedge accgounting and, accordingly, we recorded the change in its fair market
value as a component of earnings. At December 31, 2005 the swap had a fair market value of $51,000. This swap
was settled in connection with the IPO and the Company received a “breakage” payment of $34,000 in February

2006.
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The senior credit facility contains various financial covenants, including covenants with respect to leverage ratio,
interest and fixed charge coverage ratio, and capital expenditures, as well as restrictions on undertaking specified
corporate actions including, among others, asset dispositions, acquisitions, payment of dividends, changes in control,
incurrence of additional indebtedness, creation of liens, and transactions with affiliates. We were in compliance with
these financial and restrictive covenants as of December 31, 2005. As stated above, we intend to enter into a new
revolving credit facility during the second quarter of 2006.

The senior subordinated notes, issued by our subsidiary NewQuest, Inc., bore Interest at an annual rate of 15%,
12% of which was payable quarterly in cash and 3% of which accrued quarterly and was added to the outstanding
principal amount. Approximately $35.9 million aggregate principal amount and $70,018 of accrued and unpaid
interest was outstanding at December 31, 2005. All amounts outstanding under the senior subordinated notes,
together with a prepayment premium of approximately $1.1 million, were repaid with proceeds from the IPO.

Preferred Stock

We sold shares of preferred stock to the GTCR Funds, members of our predecessor, and certain other new
investors in connection with the recapitalization. The holders of the preferred stock were entitled to an 8%
cumulative dividend per year, which accrued on a daily basis and accumulated quarterly commencing on March 31,
2005, on the sum of the liquidation value of $1,000 per share plus all accumulated and unpaid dividends. The
dividends accrued whether or not they have been declared. As of December 31, 2005, accrued but unpaid dividends
totaled $15.6 million. The preferred stock had no voting rights. The preferred stock automatically converted into
12,552,905 shares of common stock based on the aggregate liquidation value of the preferred stock at the time of the
IPO of approximately $244.8 million, which included all accrued but unpaid dividends.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

At December 31, 2005, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangement requiring disclosure.
Commitments and Contingencies

Substantially all of our contractual commitments and contingencies requiring disclosure are related to the

recapitalization and arose after December 31, 2004. The following table sets forth information regarding our
contractual obligations as of December 31, 2005:

Payments due by period:
(in thousands)

Less than 1to3 3to5s More than

Contractual Qbligations Total 1 vear _years years 5 years
Long term debt(1)(2) .ocvvevvcriviiiiiin e, $ 199,009 $ 26,107 $ 48,893 $ 44415 $ 79,594
Line of credit(1)..covevvevvivree e 316 76 152 88 —
Subordinated debt{1)(2)......cccovvorrivrerrnriannane. 73,324 4,407 9,240 9,817 49,860
Medical claims.......c..ccocevveennen. . 82,645 82,645 — — —
Operating lease obligations(3)... 15,298 4,576 6,367 4,355 —
Other contractual obligations..... 330 72 144 114 —
Total oo $ 370922 3 117883 $ 64796 § 58789 § 129434

(1) Payments on long-term debt include principal and interest. At December 31, 2005, there was $152.6 million of principal on long-term debt
outstanding. Principal was payable quarterly in the amount of $4.1 million through 2008, and at increased amounts thereafter. The long-term
credit facility bore interest at a floating rate, which was 6.66% for the period through December 31, 2005. For purposes of this table, the
company assumed that the interest rate on the long-term credit facility remained at 6.66% for the term of the debt. The subordinated debt is
non-amortizing debt that bore interest at 15%, 12% of which was payable quarterly in cash and 3% of which accrued quarterly and was
added to the outstanding principal amount. There is no amount outstanding under the line of credit. The amount shown for the line of credit
in the table is for an availability fee of 0.5% on the limit of $15.0 million.

(2) InFebruary 2006, in connection with the IPO, the Company paid off all outstanding long-term debt, subordinated debt, and accrued interest.

(3) Includes leases for office space and equipment.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimlates

The preparation of our consolidated ﬁnanmal statements requires our management to make a number of
estimates and assumptions relating to the \reported amount of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the cor‘t\sohdated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the period. We base our gstlmates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that
we believe are reasonable under the c1rcumstances Changes in estimates are recorded if and when better
information becomes available. Actual results could significantly differ from those estimates under different
assumptions and conditions. We believe that the accounting policies discussed below are those that are most
important to the presentation of our fmanc1a1 condition and results of operations and that require our management’s
most difficult, subjective, and complex Judgments
H
Medical Expense and Medical Claims Ltability
1
Medical expense is recognized in the perlod in which services are provided and includes an estimate of the cost of
medical expense that has been incurred but not yet reported, or IBNR. Medical expense includes claim payments,
capitation payments, and pharmacy costs, net of rebates, as well as estimates of future payments of claims incurred.
Capitation payments represent monthly contractual fees disbursed to physicians and other providers who are responsible
for providing medical care to members. Ph”armacy costs represent payments for members’ prescription drug benefits, net
of rebates from drug manufacturers. Rebates are recognized when earned, according to the contractual arrangements
with the respective vendors. Premiums we \)pay to reinsurers are reported as medical expenses and related reinsurance
recoveries are reported as deductions from\‘t‘medjcal expenses.
|
Medical claims liability includes medic?l claims reported to the plans but not yet paid as well as an actuarially
determined estimate of claims that have bee‘;n incurred but not yet reported to the plans.
!
0
The following table presents the componhents of our medical claims liability as of the dates indicated:
|

December 31,

2008 2004

(in thousands)
Incurred but not reported (IBNR).ﬂ .................................................. § 74,393 § 50,432
Reported claims.........ccoovnennnec] e e e 8.252 2.755
Total medical claims liabil 1ty......‘;‘a .................................................. $ 82645 5 53,187

The IBNR component of total medical cl}alms liability is based on our historical claims data, current enrollment,
health service utilization statistics, and otherjrelated information. Estimating IBNR is complex and involves a significant
amount of judgment. Accordingly, it represents our most critical accounting estimate. Changes in this estimate can

materially affect, either favorably or unfavor'jably, our consolidated operating results and overall financial position.
i

Our policy is to record management’s best estimate of medical expense IBNR. Using actuarial models, we
calculate a minimum amount and maximum amount of the IBNR component. To most accurately determine the best
estimate, our actuaries determine the point es\‘\timate within their minimum and maximum range by similar medical
expense categories within lines of business. The medical expense categories we use are: in-patient facility,
outpatient facility, all professional expense, a‘lnd pharmacy. The lines of business are Medicare and commercial. At
each of December 31, 2004 and 2005, our point estimate was at or near the maximum amount of our IBNR range.
The development of the IBNR estimate gener[ally considers favorable and unfavorable prior period developments
and uses standard actuarial developmental me‘thodologws including completion factors, claims trends, and

provisions for adverse claims developments. ‘\“

The completion factor method estimates lin‘abi lities for claims based upon the historical lag between the month
when services are rendered and the month clalms are paid and takes into consideration factors such as expected
medical cost inflation, seasonality patterns, product mix, and membership changes. The completion factor is a
measure of how complete the claims paid to date are relative to the estimate of the total claims for services rendered
for a given reporting period. Although the corrulpletlon factor is generally reliable for older service periods, it is more
volatile, and hence less reliable, for more recet”tt periods given that the typical billing lag for services can range from
a week to as much as 90 days from the date oflservice. As a result, for the most recent two to four months, the
estimate for incurred claims is developed fromia trend factor analysis based on per member per month claims trends

experienced in the preceding months.
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Our use of the claims trend factor method considers many aspects of the managed care business. These
considerations are aggregated in the medical expense trend and include the incidences of illness or disease state
(such as cardiac heart failure cases, cases of upper respiratory illness, the length and severity of the flu season,
diabetes, and the number of neonatal intensive care babies). Accordingly, we rely upon our historical experience, as
continually monitored, to reflect the ever-changing mix, needs and growth of our members in our trend assumptions.
Among the factors considered by management are changes in the level of benefits provided to members, seasonal
variations in utilization, identified industry trends, and changes in provider reimbursement arrangements, including
changes in the percentage of reimbursements made on a capitated as opposed to a fee-for-service basis. Other
external factors such as government-mandated benefits or other regulatory changes, catastrophes, and epidemics
may impact medical expense trends. Other internal factors, such as system conversions and claims processing
interruptions may impact our ability to accurately predict estimates of historical completion factors or medical
expense trends. Medical expense trends potentially are more volatile than other segments of the economy.

We apply different estimation methods depending on the month of service for which incurred claims are being
estimated. For the more recent months, which constitute the majority of the amount of IBNR, we estimate our claims
incurred by applying the observed trend factors to the PMPM. For prior months, costs have been estimated using
completion factors. In order to estimate the PMPMs for the most recent months, we validate our estimates of the
most recent months” utilization levels to the utilization levels in older months using actuarial techniques that
incorporate a historical analysis of claim payments, including trends in cost of care provided, and timeliness of
submission and processing of claims.

Qur provision for adverse claims development is intended to account for variability in the following types of
factors:

+ changes in claims payment patterns to the extent to which emerging claims payment patterns differ from the
historical payment patterns selected to calculate the IBNR reserve estimate;

+ differences between the estimated PMPM incurred expense for the most recent months and the expected
PMPM based on historical PMPM incurred estimates and the estimated trend from the historical period to the
most recent months;

+ differences between the estimated impact of known differences in environmental factors and the actual
impact of known environmental factors; and

+ the healthcare expense impact of present but unknown environmental factors that differ from historical
norms.

We believe that our provision for adverse claims development is appropriate because our hindsight analysis
indicates this additional provision is needed to cover additional unknown adverse claims not anticipated by the
standard assumptions used to produce the IBNR estimates that were incurred prior to but paid after a period end. For
the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, our provision for adverse claims development has been relatively
consistent, varying as of the end of each annual period ended December 31 by less than 1.0% of the medical claims
liability. Fluctuations within those periods and as of the period ends are primarily attributable to differences in
membership mix between Medicare and commercial plans and differences in services (such as in-patient or
outpatient services) provided by our plans. Based on these fluctuations, we expect that our experience on a going-
forward basis would result in our provision for adverse claims, as a percentage of medical claims liability, not
varying by more than 1.0% from one quarterly period to the next.
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The completion and claims trend factﬁ)rs are the most significant factors impacting the IBNR estimate. The

following table illustrates the sensitivity of these factors and the impact on our operating results caused by changes
in these factors that management believes are reasonably likely based on our historical experience and December 31,

2005 data:

Completion Factor(a) | Claims Trend Factor(h)
Increase Increase
Increase (Decrea&se) Increase (Decrease)
(Decrease) in Medical (Decrease) in Medical
in Factor Claims Liability in Factor Claims Liability
(Dollars in thousands)
3% § (2,349) 3)% $ (1,472)
2 (1,585) 2) (980)
1 (802) (1 (489)
(D 822 1 488

‘;\

(a) Impact due to change in completion factor for the most recent three months. Completion factors indicate how complete claims paid to date
are in relation to estimates for a given reporting period. Accordingly, an increase in completion factor results in a decrease in the remaining

estimated liability for medical claims. )

]
(b) Impact due to change in annualized medical cost‘ trends used to estimate PMPM costs for the most recent three months.

i\

Each month, we re-examine the previously established medical claims liability estimates based on actual claim
submissions and other relevant changes in facts and circumstances. As the liability estimates recorded in prior
periods become more exact, we increase or{\ decrease the amount of the estimates, and include the changes in medical
expenses in the period in which the Change‘ﬂ is identified. In every annual reporting period, our operating results
include the effects of more completely dev\eloped medical claims liability estimates associated with prior years.

i

The following table provides a reconcil‘i\ation of changes in medical claims liability for the years ended

December 31, 2005 and 2004. The 2005 presentation represents a cumulative summary for the twelve months ended

December 31, 2005. See Note 12 1o the Cor‘\[)solidated Financial Statements.
Ii
! HealthSpring, Inc. and
\\ Predecessor Combined Predecessor
\ Year ended Year ended
ﬁ December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004
‘\ (in thousands)
Balance at beginning of period ‘ .......... $ 53,187 $ 47,729
Incurred related to: “
Current period.........ooveveeveiveeerrarenenn 665,407 467,289
Prior period ... (5.228) (3.914)
Total incurred 660,179 463.375
Paid related to: !
Current period .......ccoveoiiiaiinienns eeees 582,944 415,136
Prior period ......cccovvvviiiiii Lo 47.777 42,781
Total Paid...........coovvrimvvrerereeae. b 630.721 457,917
Balance at the end of the period..v..g ......... § 82645 $§ 53187

Negative amounts reported for incurred‘\\“related to prior years result from claims being ultimately settled for
amounts less than originally estimated (a favPrable development). Positive amounts reported for incusred related to
prior years result from claims ultimately being settled for amounts greater than originally estimated (an unfavorable

h

development). |

As summarized in the above table, our pri‘or period liability development has been favorable for each of the two
years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004. During 2005, claim liability balances at December 31, 2004 uitimately
settled for $5.2 million less than the amount originally estimated. The favorable development in 2005 and 2004 was
primarily attributable to differences between assumed and actual utilization and severity of claims, which are
components of our claims trend factor and coinpletion factor. For the two-year period ended December 31, 2003,
actual claims expense has developed favorably by 1.1% to 1.3% as compared to estimated claims expense. The
favorable development in estimated prior periﬂod claims is primarily attributable to recontracting with providers and

better case management and disease management programis.
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Our medical claims liability also considers premium deficiency situations and evaluates the necessity for
additional related liabilities. Premium deficiency accruals were approximately $1.5 million and $1.1 million as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Premium Revenue Recognition

We generate revenues primarily from premiums we receive from CMS and, to a lesser extent our commercial
customers, to provide healthcare benefits to our members. We receive premium payments on a PMPM basis from
CMS to provide healthcare benefits to our Medicare members, which premium is fixed on an annual basis by
contract with CMS. Although the amounts we receive from CMS for each member is fixed, the amount varies
among Medicare plans according to, among other things, demographics, geographic location, age, and gender. We
generally receive premiums on a monthly basis in advance of providing services. Premiums collected in advance are
deferred and reported as deferred revenue. We recognize premium revenue during the period in which we are
obligated to provide services to our members. Any amounts that have not been received are recorded on the balance
sheet as accounts receivable.

We experience adjustments to our revenue based on member retroactivity, which reflect changes in the number
and eligibility status of enrollees subsequent to when revenue is received. We estimate the amount of outstanding
retroactivity each period and adjust premium revenue accordingly. The estimates of retroactivity adjustments are
based on historical trends, premiums billed, the volume of member and contract renewal activity, and other
information. We refine our estimates and methodologies based upon actual retroactivity experienced. To date,
member-based retroactivity adjustments have not been significant.

Additionally, our Medicare premium revenue is adjusted periodically to give effect to a risk component. In the
Balanced Budget Act of 1997, Congress created a rate-setting methodology that included a provision requiring CMS
to implement a risk adjustment payment system for Medicare health plans. Risk adjustment uses health status
indicators to improve the accuracy of payments and establish incentives for plans to enroll and treat less healthy
Medicare beneficiaries. CMS initially phased in this payment methodology in 2003 whereby the risk adjusted
payment represented 10% of the payment to Medicare health plans, with the remaining 90% being based on
demographic factors. In 2004 and 2005, the portion of risk adjusted payments was increased to 30% and 50%,
respectively, and will increase to 75% in 2006 and 100% in 2007. Under risk adjustment methodology, managed
care plans must capture, collect, and submit diagnosis code information to CMS twice a year. After reviewing the
respective submissions, CMS adjusts the payments to Medicare plans generally at the beginning of the calendar year
and during the third quarter and then issues a final payment in a subsequent year. The third quarter payment includes
a retroactivity component for the first two quarters of the year. We do not attempt to estimate the impact of these
risk adjustments and as such record them on an as-received basis. As a result, our CMS PMPM premiums may
change materially, either favorably or unfavorably. Our retroactivity adjustments in 2004 and 2005 were positive.
Although we have placed a great deal of emphasis on managing and controlling the elements that impact the risk
payments, there can be no assurance that these positive trends will continue in the future.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over fair value of assets of businesses acquired. Substantially all of our
goodwill and other intangible assets was recorded in connection with the recapitalization. Qur primary identifiable
intangible assets include our Medicare member network, our HealthSpring trade name, our provider networks,
customer relationships and non-compete agreements. Goodwill is determined to have an indefinite useful life and is
not amortized, but instead is tested for impairment at least annually. The Company has determined that December 31
will be its annual testing date. Poor operating results or changes in market conditions could result in an impairment
of goodwill. Other intangible assets are amortized over their respective estimated useful lives to their estimated
residual values and reviewed for impairment at least annually. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is
measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to future undiscounted cash flows expected to be
generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment
charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its estimated future cash
flows.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements |

In December 2004, the FASB revise% SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” which
established the fair-value-based method of accounting as preferable for share-based compensation awarded to
employees and encouraged, but did not requlre entities to adopt it until July 1, 2005. On April 14, 2005, the
Securities and Exchange Commission anpounced that it would provide for a phased-in implementation process that
allowed non-small business registrants W)th a fiscal year ending December 31, 2005 an extension until January 1,
2006 to adopt SFAS No. 123(R), “Share- Based Payment.” SFAS No. 123(R) eliminates the alternative to use APB
Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Tssued fo Employees,” which allowed entities to account for share-based
compensation arrangements with employées according to the intrinsic value method. SFAS No. 123(R) requires the
measurement of the cost of employee ser}\llces received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the
grant-date fair value of the award. The cost will be recognized over the period during which an employee is required
to provide service in exchange for the aw:[:trd No compensation cost is recognized for equity instruments for which
employees do not render service. The Company will adopt SFAS No. 123(R) effective January 1, 2006 using the
modified prospective method, which will IErequlre compensation cost to be recorded as expense over the remaining
vesting period, for the portion of outstanding unvested awards at January 1, 2006, based on the grant-date fair value
of those awards. The effect of adoption oq SFAS No. 123(R) is estimated to be approximately $2.7 million after tax
in 2006, which includes approximately $2u8 000 for unvested options outstanding at December 31, 2005. The
substantial majority of the expense estlmated for 2006 relates to unvested options to purchase 2,065,500 shares of
common stock awarded in connection with the IPO. See Note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Our
actual equity-based compensation expensg in 2006 will depend on a number of factors, including the amount of
awards granted and the fair value of those awards at the time of the grant.
|

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS I;\\Io. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections — A Replacement
of APB Opinion No. 20, Accounting Changes” (APB 20), and FASB Statement No. 3, “Reporting Accounting
Changes in Interim Financial Statements” (SFAS No. 154). APB 20 previously required that most voluntary changes
in accounting principles be recognized by including in net income of the period of the change the cumulative effect
of changing to the new accounting prmc:lpl\e SFAS No. 154 requires retrospective application to prior periods’
financial statements of changes in accountl%g principles, unless it is impracticable to determine either the period-
specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change. SFAS No. 154 also requires that retrospective application of a
change in accounting principle be limited to the direct effects of the change. Indirect effects of a change in an
accounting principle, such as a change in n&ndlscretlonary profit-sharing payments resulting from an accounting
change, should be recognized in the period’ of the accounting change. SFAS No. 154 also requires that a change in
depreciation, amortization, or depletion method for long-lived, nonfinancial assets be accounted for as a change in
accounting estimate effected by a change m\ accounting principle. SFAS No. 154 is effective for accounting changes
and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005. We will adopt the provisions of
SFAS No. 154 effective January 1, 2006. The impact of SFAS No. 154 will depend on the accounting change, if
any, in a future period.

‘\
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualltatwe Disclosures About Market Risk
U
As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, we had the following assets that may be sensitive to changes in interest

rates: ‘\\
‘\ HealthSpring, Inc. Predecessor
| December 31,
Asset Class | 2005 2004
i (in thousands)
Investment securities, available for sale..{v ............................ $ 8,646 $ 8,460
Investment securities, held to maturity: !
Current POrtion........ccoeevevuvrererenernn) b ereivrenenres s aneae s 14,314 9,413
Long-term portion..........c.occeeveeieeeeennnn. “ ........................... 22,993 20,248
Restricted INVESTMENTS ........c..coovviveeeiiei e 5,652 5,319

We have not purchased any of our investments for trading purposes. Our investment securities classified as
available for sale are repurchase agreements. ‘For all other investment securities, we intend to hold them to their
maturity and classify them as current on our balance sheet if they mature between three and 12 months from the
balance sheet date and as long-term if their m”aturlty is more than one year from the balance sheet date. These

investment securities, both current and long- t‘élrm consist of highly liquid government and corporate debt
\\ 53
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obligations, a substantial majority of which mature in five years or less. The investments classified as long-term are
subject to interest rate risk and will decrease in value if market rates increase. Because of their relatively short-term
nature, however, we would not expect the value of these investments to decline significantly as a result of a sudden
change in market interest rates. Moreover, because of our ability and intent to hold these investments until maturity
(or at least until a market price recovery), we would not expect foreseeable changes in interest rates to materially
impair their carrying value. Restricted investments consist of certificates of deposit and government securities
deposited or pledged to state departments of insurance in accordance with state rules and regulations. At December
31, 2004 and December 31, 2005, these restricted assets are recorded at amortized cost and classified as long-term
regardless of the contractual maturity date because of the restrictive nature of the states’ requirements.

Assuming a hypothetical and immediate 1% increase in market interest rates at December 31, 2005, the fair
value of our fixed income investments would decrease by approximately $420,000. Similarly, a 1% decrease in
market interest rates at December 31, 2005 would result in an increase of the fair value of our investments of
approximately $420,000. Unless we determined, however, that the increase in interest rates caused more than a
temporary impairment in our investments, or unless we were compelled by a currently unforeseen reason to sell
securities, such a change should not affect our future earnings or cash flows.

As required by our term loan facility, we entered into an interest rate swap agreement in July 2005, pursuant to
which $25.0 million of the principal amount outstanding under the term loan facility will bear interest at a fixed
annual rate of 4.25% plus the applicable margin (currently 3.00%) for the period from January 1, 2006 to June 30,
2006. The swap does not qualify for hedge accounting. Accordingly, the company will record the change in the
swap’s fair market value as a component of earnings. At December 31, 2005, the fair market value of the swap was
approximately $51,000. This loan facility was paid off and the swap was settled in connection with the [PO.
Accordingly, the company is not currently exposed to market interest rate fluctuations on borrowings.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
HealthSpring, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of HealthSpring, Inc. and subsidiaries (Company) as

of December 31, 2005, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders’ equity and }
comprehensive income, and cash flows for the ten-month period from March 1, 2005 (inception) to December 31,
2005; and the consolidated balance sheet of NewQuest, LLC and subsidiaries (Predecessor) as of December 31,
2004, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in members’ equity and comprehensive income,
and cash flows for the two months ended February 28, 2005 and for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003.
In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we also have audited financial statement
Schedule 1 — Condensed Financial Information of Registrant. These consolidated financial statements and financial
statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of HealthSpring, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for the ten-month period from March 1, 2005 through December 31, 2005; and the financial
position of NewQuest, LLC and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for the two months ended February 28, 2005 and for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the related financial statement
schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly,
in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

/s/ KPMG LLP
Nashville, Tennessee
March 30, 2006
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HEALTHSPRING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
[

j
CONS‘OLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except unit and share data)
‘\

|

Assets
Current assets: ‘
Cash and cash equivalents ............ccco.coeerrrrrcenn! ettt ettt st nb e
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,165 and $578 at
December 31, 2005 and 2004, 1eSPectiVely ... l...coco it
Investment securities available fOr SAlE .........c.viieiiiieiieicie et

Current pomon of investment securities held to maturlty
Deferred INCOME X BSSEE.......ciuiiiiriiiricinrireeras frerersimenenssaess e as et areas s ase s sesesenress sensessase
Prepaid expenses and other assets ..

Total CUrrent assets ............ococrvwwernreennsd {SURRRUOUR

Property and equipment, Det .........coooeiiiconn b
GoodWill ......ooviieiiiiviien, ‘
Intangible assets, net
Investment in and receivable from unconsohdated AfTIHALE....oveie e
Deferred income tax asset
Deferred financing fee
Restricted investments
TOtAl BSSELS.....iveieeieeec ettt et

Liabilities and Stockholders’ and Members’ Equity

Current Liabilities:
Medical claims Habilify ... e
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable and accrued eXPEnSES ..........dieierciiieeiiiine e
Deferred revVenue ..........ocooioieiiiiccie e

Long-term debt, less current portion ..
Deferred income tax liability .............
Deferred rent......ooccovvverirerenne
Other long-term liabilities.....
Total hiabilities ............
MINOFIEY INEIESE ....o.ooiveiiivieecie e et
Commitments and contingencies (see notes) \
Stockholders’ and members’ equity: |
Founders and membership units. Authorized 22“000 000 units; issued and outstanding
4,884,176 units at December 31, 2004 ‘ .........................................................................
Redeemable convertible preferred stock, $.01 par value, authorized 1,000,000 shares,
227,154 shares issued and outstanding at December 31,2005 i
Common stock, $.01 par value, authorized 37, OOO 000 shares, 32,283,950 shares issued and
32,083,950 shares outstanding at December 31 l[ 2005 ...............................................................
Additional paid in capital [
Unearned compensation .........
Retained arnings .......c.ccovviviveiiivreeiiesi e
Treasury stock, at cost, 200,000 shares at December 31,2005
Total stockholders” and members’ equity 0 VSO

Total habilities and stockholders’ and memﬁ‘)ers BQUILY 1.overirreieesece et ee e e

Ii 57

Predecessor
December 31, December 31,
2005 2004
$ 110,085 67,834
7,248 14,605
8,646 8,460
14,313 9,413
5,778 868
3.148 4,732
149218 105,912
22,993 20,248
4,287 1,876
315,057 6,478
87,675 350
1,469 172
— 2,319
5,487 —
5,652 5,319
591,83 142,674
3 82,645 53,187
16,500 700
17,408 11,801
365 608
362 4.600
117,280 70,896
172,026 4,775
29,782 —
205 1,365
111 1.592
319.404 78.628
11,850 8.611
— 31,787
2 —
322 —
251,202 —
(1,885) —
10,943 23,648
(40) —
260,544 55.435
3 _591.838 142,674




HEALTHSPRING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in thousands, except unit and share data)

Predecessor
Ten-Month Two-Month
Period Ended Period Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2008 February 28, 2005 December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
Revenue:
Premium reVenuUe.......c..coovvieveeviieie et $ 717,081 115,468 580,047 360,914
Management and other fees 16,955 3,461 17,919 11,054
Investment income.......cc.c...u... 3,337 461 1,449 695
Total LEVENUE.....cccvovveiviiiri it eeeeac e rvecr e eeni e eeeerene 737.373 119,390 599.415 372,663
Operating expenses:
Medical eXpenses...........coeeverereenrinnens e 569,336 90,843 463,375 291,532
Selling, general and administrative..........c..ccoveevennnne 101,187 21,608 93,068 50,576
Depreciation and amortization..........c.cecvveieinvvvieenannn, 6,990 315 3,210 2,361
INtEreSt EXPEMSE .ooviverrcciiricine e 14.469 42 214 256
Total operating eXpenses.......ccovcvereererverieinvernanas 691,982 112,808 559.867 344,725
Income before equity in earnings of
unconsolidated affiliate, minority interest and
INCOME TAXES 1uvivvreeirreererreieirenisreneeessessessarssssersemnsness 45,391 6,582 39,548 27,938
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliate.............. 282 — 234 2,058
Income before minority interest and income taxes ...... 45,673 6,582 39,782 29,996
MINOTILY INEELESE v veveevsirrerevieiecrreeeerercee e reannsrseerenas (1,979) (1,248) (6.272) _(5.519)
Income before income taxes 43,694 5,334 33,510 24,477
INCOME X EXPENSE. c...vveeviirerrirririiriceiee i corrernanenis 17.144 2.628 9,193 5.417
NEEHICOME ..ot cveieiicri ettt ettt eeens 26,550 2,706 24,317 19,060
Preferred dividends..........cccooveeriiieniiniiicccceieeeens 15.607 — — —
Net income available to common stockholders and
IMEIMIDEIS ...eevevieueeirveeessieereris s evrecesistarearasanransssseassons 3 10,943 2,706 24,317 19,060
Net income per member unit:
BASIC ittt s — $ S5 5.31 467
DIUtEd. ..o e s — $ .55 5.31 4.67
Weighted average member units outstanding:
BASIC ettt ettt — 4,884,196 4,578,176 4,078,176
DIULEd o e — 4,884,196 4,578,176 4,078,176
Net income per common share available to
common stockholders:
BaSIC.uiirietiirieiirt e ettt ae e ene e 3 0.34 — — —
DIIULE oottt et $ 0.34 — — —
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
BaSIC..oii it e 32,173,707 — — —
DHIULEA. et 32,215288 — — —

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HEALTjHSPRIN G, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

|
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ AND MEMBERS’ EQUITY

Predecessor

Balances at December 31, 2002....

Amortization of deferred
compensation
Distributions to members
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Unrealized holding gains on
securities available for sale,
net of tax

Conversion of minority interest
in consolidated subsidiary

Conversion of phantom
membership plan to member

Comprehensive income:
Net INCOME .veirreiirerenrecenn
Unrealized holding losses on

securities available for sale,
net of taX.....ooooveiinnieinneine
Total comprehensive income....

Balances at December 31, 2004....

Distributions to members

Comprehensive income:
Net InCome ..oocvvviveeirreciiiee e

Total comprehensive income....

Balances at February 28, 2005

See accompanying no

Total comprehensive income....
Balances at December 31, 2003 ....

AN@) COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

)

Number of

(in thousands)

Accumulated
Founders|and Founders and Other Total
Membership Members® Unearned Comprehensive Retained Members’
Units!| Units Compensation Income, Net Earnings Eguity
n
4,078 $ 4007 $  (197) J— $10,694 $ 14,504
|
— — 197 — — 197
— — — — (10,877)  (10,877)
——‘\ — — — 19,060 19,060
|
I
— — — 85 - 85
I 19.145
4,078 4,007 — 85 18,877 22,969
500 3,572 — — — 357
|
306, 24,208 — — — 24,208
— — — — (19,546)  (19,546)
— — — — 24317 24317
_ — — (85) — _ (85)
! 24232
4,8840\ 31,787 — — 23,648 55,435
- 2 — _ = ”
—I — — — 2,706 2,706
| 2,706
4,884 \i $ 31,787 § — — $26354 § 58,141

M

\

tes to consolidated financial statements.
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HEALTHSPRING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ AND MEMBERS’ EQUITY
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (cont.)
(in thousands)

Number of Number of Additional Unearned Total
Preferred Preferred Common Common Paid-in Compensatio Retained Treasury Stockholders'
Shares Stock Shares Stock Capital n Earping Stock Equity

Successor
Balances at March 1, 2005

(inception) ......coccerecnnenincieens — 8 — — 3 — 8 — 3 — 3 — 5 — $ —
Preferred shares issued .. 227 2 — — 227,198 — — — 227,200
Preferred dividends accrued..... — — — — 15,607 — (15,607) — —
Common shares issued............. — —_ 30,445 304 5,785 — — — 6,089
Unearned compensation on

issuance of restricted

SHArES...ovvircceriecriiccariccerein — — 1,839 18 2,888 (2,538) — — 368
Purchase of 200 shares of

restricted common stock........ (276) 276 (40) (40)
Amortization of unearned

COMPENSALION «.ovverericmenne — — — — — 377 — — 377
Comprehensive income -

NEL INCOME ..vviieriaricerieriiarneens — e — — — — 26,550 — 26,550
Balances at December 31,

2005 227 $ 2 32,284 §_ 322 § 251,202 % _(1.885) $_10.943 $§ _(40) $__260,544

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

60



!
HEAUTHSPRING INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
1 (in thousands)

Predecessor
Ten-Month Two-Month
i Period Ended Period Ended Year Ended Year Ended
| December 31,2005 | February 28,2005  December 31,2004  December 31, 2003
Cash from operating activities:
NEL INCOME covrvevvermrireecersessse e s RS § 26,550 2,706 24,317 19,060
Adjustments to reconcile net income available to common/stockholders
and members to net cash provided by operating activities‘§
Depreciation and amortization eXpense .........ocevvniieen] LSRR 6,990 315 3,210 2,361
Amortization of accrued loss on assumed lease ; — (C))] (580) (886)
Amortization of deferred compensation expense —_ — — 197
Amortization of deferred financing cost \ 879 —_ — —
Paid-in-kind (PIK) interest on subordinated notes 901 — — —
Restricted stock compensation ...........ccoceeeennnconcnnnn. 377 — — —
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliate ... (282) — (234) (2,058)
Minority interest 1,979 1,248 6,272 5,519
Deferred taxes (benefit) eXpense ... “. ............. (1,060) 93 2,163 (779)
Compensation expense related to phantom stock plan cancellauon.. — — 24,200 —
Increase {decrease) in cash equivalents due to change in: “
ACCOUNES TECEIVADIE ..ot ivveieeri e reanenesceraesssesseenssaee dhecsnceereene 9,827 (2,470) (9.977) 308
Interest receivable ..o Q ............ (439) 38 (299) 54
Investments in and receivable from unconsolidated afﬁhate .......... (1,020) 5 — —
Prepaid expenses and other current assets l (3,266) 1,197 (3,849 (2,754)
Medical claims liability ‘\‘ 23,629 5,829 5,458 7,701
Accounts payable, accrued expenses, and other current 11ab111t1es . (7,460) 6,202 2,562 6,593
Deferred rent‘\ ........... 205 11 — —_
Deferred reVenUEe.........coivvecieninicicrioe et (131) (113) (28,578) 28,076
Other long-term liabilities 540 — — —
Net cash provided by operating activities.........cccoocnvnne. “\ .......... 57,139 14.964 24,665 63,39
Cash flows from investing activities: ‘;\
Purchase of property and equIPMeNt .....c.ococeccorriniinvnicnin b (2,653) (149) (2,512) (3,198)
Purchase of investment securities, held-to-maturity ................. u ......... (16,313) (5,942) (23,777) —
Purchase of investments, available for sale ﬁ — — (8,460) —
Sale/maturity of investment SECUTities . .....cooverreerccricnneannens} S 12,524 836 —_ 10,107
Purchase of restricted INVESIMENTS.......coevvvririeciearrinnceniornens (119) (214) — —
Distributions received from unconsolidated affiliate ... | — — 134 —
Purchase of shares in SubSIGIAIY ....covvvverveivviriiere e e — — — (1,133)
Purchase of minority interest ...... . (44,338) — —
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired .......cccoovervinircrceeecr b {219,958) — — 36,871
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities s (270.877) (5.469) (34,615) 42,647
Cash flows from financing activities: “l‘
Proceeds from issuance of jong-term debt ..., b 200,000 — — —
Payments on notes payable ... “ ...... (17,733) (117) — —
Deferred financing Costs ..o . (6,366) — — —
Payments on notes payable to members — — (700) (873)
Proceeds from issuance of common and preferred stock............... “ ..... 140,087 —_ — —
Purchase of treasury stock (40) — — —
Proceeds from sale of units in consolidated subsidiary 7,875 — — —
Distributions t0 MEMBEIS .....ccviveviiiierieeerirceet e e emrrarans! L — — (19,546) (10,877)
Distributions to minority stockholders ..o, e — (1,771) (3,065) —
Cash advanced in recapitalizatioa......... . — 1.000 — —
Net cash provided (used in) by ﬁnancmg activities 323,823 (888) (23.311) (11.750)
Net increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 110,085 8,607 (33,261 94,289
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period — 67,834 101,095 6.806
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period ... i $ 119,085 76,441 67,834 _101,095
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HEALTHSPRING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (cont.)
(in thousands)

Predecessor
Ten-Month Two-Month
Period Ended Period Ended Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 2008 February 28, 2005 December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003

Supplemental disclosures:

Cash paid for INTEreSt . ...c.ocovivmceririncneeee s e $ 11,229 42 274 333
Cash Paid fOr LAKES ...c.ecveieriierienicerianrinreee et cnses e sesarss s esessssnsene 19,477 279 7,704 1,385
Conversion of minority interest in consolidated subsidiary ......c.......... — — 3,572 —
Capitalized tenant improvement allowances ............cocverininvcncnnan — — 715 —
Non-cash transaction:
Issnance of common shares in conjunction with recapitalization...... 93,877 — — —_
Uneamed compensation related to issuance of restricted common
SEOCK 1ovririe ettt e e 2,262 — — —
Effect of acquisitions:
Net assets aCqUITEd......c.ooiviiiiiiiicercc e b (438,576) — — (17,254)
Equity investment in unconsolidated affiliates... — — — 14,189
Preferred stock issued .. 91,082 — — —
Common stock issued ......... 2,442 — —_ —
Purchase of minority interest.. 44,358 — — —
Capitalized transaction costs... 5,295 —_ — —
Cash acquired........c..ccoovercnnneen . 75441 — — 3993
Acquisition, net of cash acquired ..o $ (219,958 — — 36,871

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HEALT{{HSPRING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CQNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in th‘ousands, except unit and share data)

(1) Organization and Summary of Sign”iﬁcant Accounting Policies
|
(a) Description of Business and Basis of|Presentation

HealthSpring, Inc., 2 Delaware corporadtion, is 2 managed care organization that focuses primarily on Medicare,
the federal government sponsored health insurance program for retired U.S. citizens aged 65 and older, qualifying
disabled persons, and persons suffering from end stage renal disease. Through its health maintenance organization
(“HMO”) subsidiaries, the Company operé{tes Medicare health plans in the states of Tennessee, Texas, Alabama,
[llinois and Mississippi. In addition, the Company also utilizes its infrastructure and provides networks in Tennessee
and Alabama to offer commercial health plans to individuals and employer groups. The Company also manages

healthcare plans and physician par‘tnersh1ps

HealthSpring, Inc. was formed in OctoBer 2004 in connection with a recapitalization transaction including
NewQuest, LLC and its members, certain &westment funds affiliated with GTCR Golder Rauner 11, LL.C (GTCR)
and certain other investors. The recapltahzatlon was completed on March 1, 2005; which was the inception of
HealthSpring, Inc. See Note 2. \\

The consolidated financial statements mclude the accounts of HealthSpring, Inc. and its wholly and majority
owned subsidiaries as of and for the ten—mo“nth period from March 1, 2005 (inception) to December 31, 2005, and
NewQuest, LLC and subsidiaries (collectively, the “Predecessor”) as of December 31, 2004 and for the two-month
period ended February 28, 2005 and for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003. The financial statements of
HealthSpring, Inc. and the Predecessor are presented in comparative format. Although their accounting policies are
consistent, their financial statements are nof directly comparable primarily because of the purchase accounting
adjustments resulting from the recapltahzatlon which was accounted for as a purchase. All significant inter-
company accounts and transactions have begn eliminated in consolidation. For purposes of these financial
statements and notes, where appropriate theuterm “Company” includes HealthSpring, Inc. and Predecessor. The
Company considers its businesses and relatéd operating structure as one reporting segment.

On February 8, 2006, the Company com{aleted an underwritten initial public offering of its common stock. See
Note 23. !

|

(b) Use of Estimates \‘\
I
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management of the Company to make a
number of estimates and assumptions relatm”g to the reported amount of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the period. The most significant item subject to estimates and assumptions is the
actuarial calculation for obligations related tc‘s\) medical claims. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(c) Cash Equivalents \‘

For purposes of the consolidated statemer“t)ts of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid investments
that have maturities of three months or less at\ the date of purchase to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents include
such items as certificates of deposit. \

(d) Investment Securities and Restricted Im“‘:estments

The Company classifies its debt and equit‘& securities in one of three categories: trading, available for sale, or
held to maturity. Trading securities are bought and held principally for the purpose of selling them in the near term.

Held-to-maturity securities are those securxtxe““s in which the Company has the ability and intent to hold the security
until maturity. All securities not included in trading or held to maturity are classified as available for sale.

Trading and available-for-sale securities a\re recorded at fair value. Held to maturity debt securities are recorded
at amortized cost, adjusted for the amortization or accretion of premiums or discounts. Unrealized holding gains and

|
losses on trading securities are included in ear{mngs Unrealized holding gains and losses, net of the related tax
|
effect, on available for sale securities are excluded from earnings and are reported as a separate component of other
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comprehensive income until realized. Realized gains and losses from the sale of available for sale securities are
determined on a specific identification basis. Purchases and sales of investments are recorded on their trade dates.
Dividend and interest income are recognized when earned.

A decline in the market value of any available-for-sale or held-to-maturity security below cost that is deemed to
be other than temporary results in & reduction in its carrying amount to fair value. The impairment is charged to
earnings and a new cost basis for the security is established. To determine whether an impairment is other than
temporary, the Company considers whether it has the ability and intent to hold the investment until a market price
recovery and considers whether evidence indicating the cost of the investment is recoverable outweighs evidence to
the contrary. Evidence considered in this assessment includes the reasons for the impairment, the severity and
duration of the impairment, changes in value subsequent to year end, and forecasted performance of the investee.

Restricted investments include U.S. Government securities and certificates of deposit held by the various state
departments of insurance to whose jurisdiction the Company’s subsidiaries are subject.

All of the Company’s restricted investments were classified as held-to-maturity at December 31, 2005 and 2004.
(e) Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist primarily of unpaid health plan enrollee premiums due to the Company. These
accounts receivable are recorded during the period the Company is obligated to provide services to enrollees and do
not bear interest. The allowance for doubtful accounts is the Company’s best estimate of the amount of probable
losses in the Company’s existing accounts receivable and is based on a number of factors, including a review of past
due balances, with a particular emphasis on past due balances greater than 90 days old. Account balances are
charged off against the allowance after all means of collection have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is
considered remote. The Company does not have any off balance sheet credit exposure related to its health plan
enrollees.

() Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation on property and
equipment is calculated on the straight line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful
life of property and equipment ranges from 1 to 5 years. Leasehold improvements for assets under operating leases
are amortized over the lesser of their useful life or the base term of the lease. Maintenance and repairs are charged to
operating expense when incurred. Major improvements that extend the lives of the assets are capitalized.

(g) Impairment of Long Lived Assets

Long lived assets, such as property and equipment and purchased intangibles subject to amortization, are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying
amount of an asset to estimated future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized by the amount by
which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the estimated future cash flows. Assets to be disposed of would be
separately presented in the balance sheet and reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to
sell, and are no longer depreciated. As of December 31, 2005, management believes that there are no indicators of
impairment to the value of long-lived assets.

(h) Income Taxes
HealthSpring, Inc. is taxed as a corporation on a consolidated basis. The Predecessor operated as a limited

liability company and was taxed as a partnership; therefore, no federal income tax expense was recognized by the
Predecessor. Certain subsidiaries of Predecessor were subject to federal and state income taxes.
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[ncome taxes are accounted for under th“‘e asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences gﬁrlbutable to differences between the financial statement carrying
amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and llabll‘mes are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.

(i) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets \l

|

Goodwill represents the excess of cost o‘ver fair value of assets of businesses acquired. Goodwill and intangible

assets acquired in a purchase business combination and determined to have an indefinite useful life are not
amortized, but instead are tested for impairrﬁent at least annually. The Company has selected December 31 as its
annual testing date. Intangible assets with estimable useful lives are amortized over their respective estimated useful
lives and are reviewed for impairment when”ever events or changes in circumstances indicate that an intangible
asset’s carrying value may not be recoverable. No impairment losses were recognized during either of the 2005

accounting periods or for the years ended Dgcember 31,2004 and 2003.

(i) Medical Claims Liability and Medical Expenses

Medical claims liability represents the Company s liability for services that have been performed by providers
for its Medicare Advantage and commermal“HMO members that have not been settled as of any given balance sheet
date. The liability includes medical claims reported to the plans as well as an actuarially determined estimate of
claims that have been incurred but not yet reported to the plans, or IBNR.

Medical expenses consist of claim payments, capitation payments, and pharmacy costs, net of rebates, as well as
estimates of future payments of claims provnded for services rendered prior to year-end. Capitation payments
represent monthly contractual fees disbursed to physicians and other providers who are responsible for providing
medical care to members. Pharmacy costs re”present payments for members® prescription drug benefits, net of
rebates from drug manufacturers. Rebates arp recognized when the rebates are earned according to the contractual
arrangements with the respective vendors. Premiums the Company pays to reinsurers are reported as medical
expenses and related reinsurance recoveries are reported as deductions from medical expenses.

|
(k) Stockholders’ and Members’ Equity ‘\‘

At December 31, 2005, 37,000,000 of HdalthSprmg, Inc.’s common shares were authorized, 32,283,950 of
which were issned and 32,083,950 were outstandmg During 2005 the Company bought back 200,000 shares of
restricted stock. ‘

At December 31, 2004, 20,000,000 Neruest LLC membership units were authorized, consisting of 2,000,000
founders units, 700 OOO of which were 1ssued and outstanding at December 31, 2004, 3,500,000 Series A units,
3,055,000 of which were issued and outstandmg at December 31, 2004, 232,000 Series B units, all of which were
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2004 625,000 Series C units, 591,176.47 of which were issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2004, and 500, 000 Series D units, 306,025.28 of which were issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2004. Series A units and B umts had liquidation preferences of $1.00 per unit and $0.001 per unit,
respectively, net of dividends received, to the founders units and the Series C units. At December 31, 2004, there
was no liquidation preferences with respect to the membership units as a result of dividends received. Series C units
participate only in the distribution of the consolidated profits of NewQuest, LLC subsequent to December 21, 2001,
the Series C issue date. All founders and membership units had substantially similar voting and dividend

participation rights.

On January 1, 2004, the minority investmis of a consolidated entity converted their ownership into 500,000
Series A units in NewQuest, LLC, which had a book value on the date of conversion of $3,572.
(D) Premium Revenue !

Health plan premiums are due monthly and are recognized as revenue during the period in which the Company is
obligated to provide services to the members | Deferred revenue consists of premium payments received by the
Company for covered lives for which the services will be rendered and revenue recognized in future months.
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(m) Fee Revenue

Fee revenue includes amounts paid to the Company for management services provided to independent physician
associations and health plans. The Company’s management subsidiaries typically generate this fee revenue on one
of three principal bases: (1) as a percentage of revenue collected by the relevant healith plan; (2) as a fixed PMPM
payment or percentage of revenue for members serviced by the relevant independent physician association; or (3) as
fees the Company receives for offering access to its provider networks and for administrative services it offers to
self-insured employers. Fee revenue is recognized in the month in which services are provided. In addition, pursuant
to certain of our management agreements with independent physician associations, we receive additional fees based
on a share of the profits of the independent physician association, which are recognized monthly as either fee
revenue or as a reduction to medical expense dependent upon whether the profit relates to members of one of the
Company’s HMO subsidiaries.

The Company characterizes its management arrangements with independent physician associations servicing the
Company’s HMO subsidiaries membership as reciprocal-based arrangements. Accordingly, “profits payments™ to
the Company management subsidiaries are evaluated to determine whether they are a partial return of the capitation-
based advance payment made by the Company HMO subsidiary. If so, the profits payments are recognized as a
reduction to medical expense when the Company can readily determine that such profits have been earned.

(rn) Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income consists of net income and unrecognized holding gains or losses on investment securities
available for sale.

(0) Reinsurance and Capitation

The Company’s HMO subsidiaries have reinsurance arrangements with well-capitalized, highly-rated
reinsurance providers. These arrangements include maximum amounts per member per year and per such member’s
lifetime. Premiums paid and amounts recovered under these agreements have not been material in any period
covered by these financial statements. See Note 16.

The Company’s HMO subsidiaries also maintain risk-sharing arrangements with its providers, including
independent physician associations. See Note 7.

(p) Net Income Per Common Share and Member Unit

Net income per common share and member unit is measured at two levels: basic net income per common share
and member unit and diluted net income per common share and member unit. Basic net income per common shares
and member unit is computed by dividing net income available to common stockholders and members by the
weighted average number of common shares or member units outstanding during the period. Diluted net income per
member unit is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of member units outstanding after
considering dilution related to warrants to purchase 500,000 Series A units of NewQuest, LLC. Diluted net income
per common share is computed by dividing net income available to common stockholders by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding after considering the dilution related to stock options.

(q) Stock Based Compensation

The Company applies the intrinsic-value-based method of accounting prescribed by Accounting Principles
Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees™ (“APB No. 25”) and related
interpretations including Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 44 (“FIN 447),
“Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compensation, an interpretation of APB Opinion No. 25,” to
account for its fixed-plan stock options. Under this method, compensation expense is recorded only if the current
market price of the underlying stock exceeds the exercise price on the date of grant. SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS No. 123”), and SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation
— Transition and Disclosure, an amendment to FASB Statement No. 123” (“SFAS No. 148"), established
accounting and disclosure requirements using a fair-value-based method of accounting for stock-based employee
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compensation plans. As permitted by existing accounting standards, the Company has elected to continue to apply

the intrinsic-value-based method of accoun‘tmg described above, and has adopted only the disclosure requirements
of SFAS No. 123, as amended. Because th:e Company had only 195,000 shares subject to options outstanding at
December 31, 2005, which were granted in September 2005, the effect on net income if the fair-value-based method
had been applied to all outstanding and un\“(ested options is immatertal.
{r) Recent Accounting Pronouncements |

In December 2004, the FASB revised SJ‘“FAS No. 123, which established the fair-value based method of
accounting as preferable for share-based cc[mpensation awarded to employees, and encouraged, but did not require,
entities to adopt it until July 1, 2005. On April 14, 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission announced that it
would provide a phased-in implementationiprocess that allowed non-small business registrants with a fiscal year
ending December 31, 2005 an extension unHtil January 1, 2006 to adopt SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment.”
SFAS No. 123(R) eliminates the alternative to use APB Opinion No. 25, which allowed entities to account for share-
based compensation arrangements with employees according to the intrinsic value method. SFAS No. 123(R)
requires the measurement of the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments
based on the grant-date fair value of the aw\ard The cost will be recognized over the period during which an
employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award. No compensation cost is recognized for equity
instruments for which employees do not render service. The Company will adopt SFAS No. 123(R) effective
January 1, 2006, using the modified prospe“ctlve method, which will require compensation cost to be recorded as
expense, over the remaining vesting perlodH for the portion of outstanding unvested awards at January 1, 2006, based
on the grant-date fair value of those awards‘ The effect of adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) on the unvested stock
options outstanding at December 31, 2005 i 1s estimated to be approximately $27 after tax in 2006. The Company’s
actual equity-based compensation expense | 1n 2006 will depend on a number of factors, including the amount of
awards granted in 2006 and the fair value of those awards at the time of the grant.
In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1\54 “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections — A Replacement of
APB Opinion No. 20, Accounting Changes (APB 20), and FASB Statement No. 3, “Reporting Accounting
Changes in Interim Financial Statements” (SFAS No. 154). APB 20 previously requlred that most voluntary changes
in accounting principles be recognized by 1rjmlud1ng in net income of the period of the change the cumulative effect
of changing to the new accounting pr1nc1p]e SFAS No. 154 requlres retrospective application to prior periods’
financial statements of changes in accountn%g principles, unless it is impracticable to determine either the period-
specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change. SFAS No. 154 also requires that retrospective application of a
change in accounting principle be limited to‘{ the direct effects of the change. Indirect effects of a change in an
accounting principle, such as a change in nondiscretionary profit-sharing payments resulting from an accounting
change, should be recognized in the period "c‘pf the accounting change. SFAS No. 154 also requires that a change in
depreciation, amortization, or depletion method for long-lived, nonfinancial assets be accounted for as a change in
accounting estimate effected by a change in|accounting principle. SFAS No. 154 is effective for accounting changes
and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005. The Company will adopt the
provisions of SFAS No. 154 effective Janua‘ry 1, 2006. The impact of SFAS No. 154 will depend on the accounting

change, if any, in a future period. .‘\

(2) Recapitalization |

HealthSpring, Inc. was formed in October 2004 in connection with a recapitalization transaction involving
NewQuest, LLC and its members, certain investment funds affiliated with GTCR and certain other investors. The
recapitalization was completed on March 1,‘\2005 Prior to the recapitalization, NewQuest was owned 43.9% by its
officers and employees, 38.2% by the non- ehployee directors of NewQuest, and 17.9% by outside investors.

‘\

In connection with the recapitalization, HealthSprmg, Inc., NewQuest, LLC, the members of NewQuest, LLC,
GTCR, and certain other investors entered into a purchase and exchange agreement and other related agreements
pursuant to which GTCR and certain other investors purchased an aggregate of 136,072 shares of HealthSpring,
Inc.’s preferred stock and 18,237,587 shares’of HealthSpring, Inc.’s common stock for an aggregate purchase price
of $139,719. The members of NewQuest, LLC exchanged their ownership interests in NewQuest, LLC for an
aggregate of $295,399 in cash (including $17 200 placed in escrow to secure contingent post-closing
indemnification liabilities), 91,082 shares of HealthSpring, Inc.’s preferred stock, and 12,207,631 shares of
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HealthSpring, Inc.’s common stock. In addition, upon the closing of the recapitalization, HealthSpring, Inc. issued
an aggregate of 1,286,250 shares of restricted common stock to employees of HealthSpring, Inc. for an aggregate
purchase price of $258. HealthSpring, Inc. used the proceeds from the sale of preferred and common stock and
$200,000 of borrowings under new credit facilities to fund the cash payments to the members of NewQuest, LLC
and to pay expenses and certain other payments relating to the transaction. Immediately following the
recapitalization, HealthSpring, Inc. was owned 55.1% by GTCR, 28.7% by executive officers and employees of
HealthSpring, Inc., and 16.2% by outside investors, including HealthSpring, Inc.’s non-employee directors.

Prior to the recapitalization, approximately 15% of the ownership interests in two of NewQuest, LLC’s
Tennessee management subsidiaries and approximately 27% of the membership interests of NewQuest, LLC’s
Texas HMO subsidiary, Texas HealthSpring, LLC, were owned by outside investors. Contemporaneously with the
recapitalization, HealthSpring, Inc. purchased all of the minority interests in the Tennessee subsidiaries for an
aggregate consideration of approximately $27,546 and a portion of the membership interests held by the minority
investors in Texas HealthSpring, LLC for aggregate consideration of approximately $16,812. Following the
purchase, the outside investors in Texas HealthSpring, LLC owned an approximately 9% ownership interest. In June
2005, Texas HealthSpring, LLC completed a private placement pursuant to which it issued new membership
interests to existing and new investors for net proceeds of $7,875, which was accounted for as a capital transaction
and no gain was recognized due to the fact that it was an integral part of the recapitalization. Following this private
placement, and as of December 31, 2003, the outside investors own an approximately 15.9% interest in Texas
HealthSpring, LLC. The minority interest was automatically exchanged for shares of the Company’s common stock
immediately prior to the initial public offering transaction completed on February 8, 2006,

The recapitalization was accounted for using the purchase method. The aggregate transaction value for the
recapitalization was $438,576, which reflected a multiple of operating earnings and was substantially in excess of
NewQuest, LLC’s book value. The transaction value included $5,295 of capitalized acquisition related costs and
$6,366 of deferred financing costs. In addition, NewQuest, LLC incurred $6,941 of transaction costs which were
expensed during the two-month period ended February 28, 2005 and the Company incurred $4,000 of transaction
costs which were expensed during the ten-month period ended December 31, 2005. As a result of the
recapitalization, the Company acquired $438,576 of net assets, including $91,200 of identifiable intangible assets,
and goodwill of $315,057. Of the $91,200 of identifiable intangible assets recorded, $24,500 has an indefinite life,
and the remaining $66,700 is being amortized over periods ranging from two to fifteen years.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair value of the net assets acquired:

CASN ..ot $ 75,441
Other CUITENE ASSELS ...cvvvviiiiieiiieceeie et eiecbectae e e sre e eae e sreeesaaeerees 38,704
Property and qUiPMEnt...........cooeeiiieiinireinenine e 3,249
INVESTMENT SECUTIIES ..evvvviiiveeesieceeeeeeeee ettt err et sre e v e srnssnteesares e 31,782
OUNET BSSEES.....veeieeeiie ettt et ee e nere s 2,293
Identifiable intangible assets .......cccooreviriinreienennnen e 91,200
GOOAWHL. ..ttt s e 315,057
TOLAL ASSELS 1.vvveiiiierie it e ettt r ettt a e e reas 557,726
Current liabilities aSSUMEd .....cc.coovveviiiviiiieeeeec e 80,199
Long-term liabilities assUMed ...........cccoveriirririicreienncrerennenienenes 38,951
Total HADIIIEICS veereiieciei ittt etr et ere e e e 119,150
Net assets ACQUITEA ......coviecerriieie et ee st et soneens $ 438,576
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I
A breakdown of the identifiable intangible assets, their assigned value and expected lives is as follows:
|

¢ Expected Life
: Assigned Value (Years)

Trade NAME ..o e $ 24,500 indefinite
Noncompete agreements.... 800 5
Provider network ............... ‘ 7,100 15
Medicare member network...l. ..o 48,500 12
Customer relationships .......... betere et aben e s er e 10,300 2to 10
Total amount of identified intangible assets............... $ 91,200

(3) Investment Securities

There were no investment securities cla[ssiﬁed as trading as of December 31, 2005 or 2004.

Investment securities classified as avaiitzmble for sale by major security type and class of security as of
December 31, 2005 were as follows:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
| Cost Holding Gains Holding I.osses Fair Value
Repurchase agreements ..........cococeeveeniiinnecreene 3 8,646 — — 8,646

i
Investment securities classified as avail%:lble for sale by major security type and class of security as of
December 31, 2004 were as follows (Prede$essor):
I

| Gross Gross

\\‘ Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
}‘w\ Cost Holding Gains Holding T.osses Fair Value
Repurchase agreements.......c...cceeeveennnsy T § 8.460 = = 8,460

Investment securities classified as held t“o maturity by major security type and class of security classified as
current assets as of December 31, 2005 were as follows:

Gross Gross
‘} Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
| Cost Holding Gains Holding L osses Fair Value
U.S. Treasury SECULIties........cocverveeriveircnne bevrreererennns $ 743 — 2) 741
Municipal bonds.............. reereereennaes 11,348 — (64) 11,284
Government agencies .........coceovveeeereecerneesbovscinenens 800 — 2 798
Corporate debt securities .........cooceevvvcereieen i, 1.422 — (6) 1.416
$14,313 — (74) 14,239

Investment securities classified as held t(ES maturity by major security type and class of security classified as long-
term assets as of December 31, 2005 were aé follows:

i Gross Gross
. Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
; Cost Holding Gains Holding Iosses Fair Value
U.S. Treasury securities $ 149 — 2 147
Municipal bonds .............. 20,924 — (185) 20,739
Government agencies.......... ! 711 — % 702
Corporate debt SECULTIES .oovoeveciioiecrcnriiiies | 1,209 — (13) 1,196
$ 22,993 — (209 22,784
|
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Investment securities classified as held to maturity by major security type and class of security classified as
current assets as of December 31, 2004 were as follows (Predecessor):

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated

Cost Holding Gains Holding Losses Fair Value
U.S. Treasury SECUIItIS ..oouiiiieirimverveeceirsrenaereens $ 1,167 — — 1,167
Municipal bonds ........ccoccrverinrennces 5,041 10 (37) 5,014
Government agencies 1,480 — (16) 1,464
Corporate debt securities 1,622 — a7 1,605
Foreign bonds .......vcccovviiniieiiiccines e, 103 — 2 101
$ 9413 10 (72) 9,351

Investment securities classified as held to maturity by major security type and class of security classified as long-
term assets as of December 31, 2004 were as follows (Predecessor):

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Holding Gains Holding Losses Fair Value
MURICIPRL BORGS ..o es e § 18,905 21 1) 18,835
Government agencies........... 510 — ® 502
Corporate debt SECUTILIES ..ov.vvvvvreiieeinrnrosicnnninenne, 833 — (1) 822
$ 20,248 21 (110) 20,159
Maturities of debt securities classified as held to maturity were as follows at December 31, 2005:
Amortized Estimated
—Cost __ Fair Value
Dule Within ONE YA ....c..iii ittt g st sae b eaba e $ 14,313 14,238
Due after one year through five years........ccooo v 20,195 20,026
Due after five years through ten YEars .......co.eeviiriiviriirienene i 854 8347
DUE EET EI1 YEATS ..ivviviiteiiirtiee e este et er e s e e aasbe st be b e b e saeaba et bmt b s e atsentas e s anbe s 1.944 1,912
$ 37,306 37,023

Gross unrealized losses on investment securities and the fair value of the related securities, aggregated by
investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position,

at December 31, 2005, were as follows:

Less Than More Than
12 Months 12 Months Total
Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair
Losses Value Losses Value Losses Value
U.S. Treasury SECUTILIES .. .coveverirererieraeererecriereniens $ 4 888 — — 4 888
Municipal bonds...........cocoovvveioiiniiieicie e 102 15,269 147 16,754 249 32,023
GOVernment agencies ..o verercreercreeievieneecennens 7 796 4 704 11 1,500
Corporate debt SeCUrities .. oovirerieeieeeierieninreeeenee. 19 2,612 — — 19 2612
TOMAL .o eeeee e $ 132 19,565 151 17,458 283 37,023

Gross unrealized losses on investment securities and the fair value of the related securities, aggregated by
investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position,

at December 31, 2004, were as follows:

Less Than More Than
12 Months 12 Months Total
Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair
Losses Value Losses Value Losses Value
Municipal bonds......cccovceeeicincniicinen $ 127 16,307 — — 127 16,307
GOVErnIMEnt aZETCIES ..vvveovrererveiieeceierirrrnererinnes 24 1,814 — — 24 1,814
Corporate debt securities 29 1,638 — — 29 1,638
Foreign bonds.........ccocoervvinnee 2 103 — P _2 103
TOUBL ..o eeeeeoese e e ereer e S 182 _19,862 = = 182 19,862
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i
Municipal Bonds and Government Aéencies: The unrealized losses on investments in municipal bonds and
government agencies were caused by inteﬁest rate increases. The contractual terms of these investments do not
permit the issuer to settle the securities at a price less than the amortized cost of the investment. Because the
Company has the ability and intent to hol d these investments until a market price recovery or maturity, these

investments are not considered other-than ”temporarlly impaired.

Corporate Debt Securities: The unreahzed losses on corporate debt securities were caused by interest rate

increases. The contractual terms of the bor‘:\ds do not allow the issuer to settle the securities as a price less than the
face value of the bonds. Because the dEChI”le in fair value is attributable to changes in interest rates and not credit
quality, and because NewQuest has the intent and ability to hold these investments until a market price recovery or

maturity, these investments are not considéred other-than-temporarily impaired.

I

(4) Property and Equipment
A summary of property and equipment‘j“ at December 31, 2005 and 2004 is as follows:

I Predecessor
i 2005 2004
Furniture and eqUIPIENT .......cccovrsimrirernennrieeeseeterieasse e eiesie et saese s $ 35,066 3,603
COmMPULEr SQUIPINEIL .....eiiiiiiciie et ettt et neeee s 9.723 5.988
“\ 14,789 9,591
Less accumulated depreciation and amortlzatlon ......................................... (10,502) (7.715)
3§ 4287 1,876
(5) Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Goodwill and intangible assets at becember 31, 2005 and 2004 consist of the following:
‘ Predecessor
‘ 2005 2004
GOOAWIIL ..ot bttt $ 315,057 6,478
Intangible aSSets........ccevvvcerircenrieinenens S PPN 87.675 350
TOtal oo e e $402.732 6,828
I
|
Changes to goodwill during 2005 and 2?04 are as follows
|
Predecessor: 11
Balance at December 31, 2003 “ ........................................................................................ $ 7,395
Reduction in deferred income tax valuatlon allowance for preacquisition net operating loss
carryforwards .......ocooeeieiiiieiee g ........................................................................................ {917)
Balance at December 31, 2004 ............. ““ ....................................................................................... 3 6478

There was no change in the Predecessor’s goodwill during the period from January [, 2005 to February 28, 2005.

HealthSpring, Inc.: .
Recapitalization transaction “ $ 315,057

........................................................................................................ SIEIE

Balance at December 31, 2005
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A breakdown of the identifiable intangible assets, their assigned value and accumulated amortization at
December 31, 2005 is as foliows:

Gross Carrying Amount  Accumulated Amortization

Trade Name .......cccoovvveeviiiiee e 3 24,500 —
Noncompete agreements............covvevenen 800 133
Provider network ........ccocevevviieeicierieenn. 7,100 394
Medicare member network ......c...ccoooeen, 48,500 3,368
Customer relationships ..........ccoceevvenene 10,300 1,132
Management contract right .................... 1.554 52

$ 92,754 5,079

Amortization expense on identifiable intangible assets for the ten months ended December 31, 2005, the two
months ended February 28, 2005, and the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 was $5,027, $52, $250 and $63,
respectively. Amortization expense expected to be recognized during fiscal years subsequent to December 31, 2005
is as follows:

2006 oo et e —er e et e— e ettt esaa bt e ea— e e e it teaa vt e s eaaaeeeraae s $ 7,450
200 e e et — e i e e s ettt e e e bt ea——— e e i b et aaanatbte e e et e e ranaeeaatbeeeernnasaarases 6,146
2008 et ettt te ettt ar et e at e ae et e e e e e et e e etbeartsentbaenree s 5,494
2000 ettt et e et e e et e —e e e e ra e — e e tne st e s ae e s atne s e e aeeas 5,494
2000 ettt e et te e e et et ean e e e ia e e et e e et atasobeeaaaeeres 5,361
B TS o100 TR OO TN TP USSP 33.230

Total $ 63175

(6) Restricted Investments

Restricted investments at December 31, 2005 and 2004 are summarized as follows:

Gross
Unrealized
Amortized Holding Estimated
Cost Gaing Losses Fair Value
December 31, 2005
Certificates of dePOSit .....oocevii e $ 2,563 — — 2,563
U.S. governmental SECULILIES ....ccveuvrirrirrceririiereerieeer e 3.089 _ S5 3.034
TOtAL oo $ 5,652 _ (55 5,597
Predecessor:
December 31, 2004
Certificates 0f deposit ....ccoccvie it $ 2,400 — — 2,400
U.S. governmental SECUITHES ...c.cooueeirevrieieiirceiceineie e 2919 At — 2.930
TOaL oo e $ 5319 _11 — 5,330

The unrealized losses on investments in government securities were caused by interest rate increases. The
contractual terms of these investments do not permit the issuer to settle the securities at a price less than the
amortized cost of the investment. Because the Company has the ability and intent to hold these investments until a
market price recovery or maturity, these investments are not considered other-than-temporarily impaired.

(7) Related Party Transactions

Renaissance Physician Organization (RPO) is a Texas non-profit corporation the members of which are
GuifQuest L.P., one of the Company’s wholly owned HMO management subsidiaries, and 13 affiliated independent
physician associations, comprised of over 1,000 physicians, providing medical services primarily in and around
counties surrounding and including the Houston, Texas metropolitan area. Texas HealthSpring, LLC, has contracted
with RPO to provide professional medical and covered medical services and procedures to members of one of the
Company’s Medicare Advantage plans. Pursuant to that agreement, RPQ shares risk relating to the provision of such
services, both upside and downside, with the Company on a 50%/50% allocation. Another agreement the Company
has with RPO delegates responsibility to GulfQuest L.P. for medical management, claims processing, provider
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relations, credentialing, finance, and repqning services for RPO’s Medicare and commercial members. Pursuant to
that agreement, GulfQuest L.P. receives a management fee, calculated as a percentage of Medicare premiums, plus a
dollar amount per member per month forI\RPO s commercial members, plus 25% of the profits from RPO’s
operations. Both agreements have a ten yFar term that expires on December 31, 2014 and automatically renews for
additional one to three year terms thereafter, unless notice of non-renewal is given by either party at least 180 days
prior to the end of the then-current term. The agreements also contain certain restrictions on the Company’s ability
to enter into agreements with delegated physrcran networks in certain counties where RPO provides services.
Likewise, RPO is subject to restrictions regarding providing coverage to plans competitive with Texas HealthSpring,
LLC’s Medicare Advantage plan. .

For the ten months ended December 31, 2005, the two months ended February 28, 2005 and the year ended
December 31, 2004, RPO paid GulfQuestle P. management and other fees of approximately $11,359, $2,060, and
$10,412, respectively. In addition, Texas HealthSprmg, LLC paid RPO approximately $67,172, $11,398, and
$53,846 for the ten months ended December 31, 2005, two months ended F ebruary 28, 2005 and the year ended

December 31, 2004, respectively, to prov1de medlcal services to its members.

The Company provides management sérvices to its subsidiaries. For providing management services, the
Company is paid a monthly management fee which is calculated based on each HMO’s total membership
enroliment. Prior to consolidating Healtth)rmg Management, Inc. (HSMI), the Predecessor recorded management
fee revenue of $153 for the three months ended March 31, 2003. See Note 9. The Predecessor had a note payable to
a minority investor in HSMI that had a balance of $5,475 as of December 31, 2004. In connection with certain
agreements made by RPO and its related plu]yswlan groups as a condition to the recapitalization, the Predecessor and
RPO agreed to the issuance to RPO of approximately 1% of the common equity in the Company following the
recapitalization. It was understood and agr#ed that this equity would be issued based on RPO achieving certain
performance goals over the five year period following the recapitalization. In February 2006, the Company and RPO
negotiated a settlement of the obligation byﬂ a cash payment to RPO which would eliminate the future performance
requirements. See Note 23. The Company accrued an additional transaction expense of $4.0 million in the ten

month period ended December 31, 2005 relatmg to this commitment.

Under a professional services agreemen\t, dated March 1, 2005, between the Company and GTCR, the Company
engaged GTCR as a financial and management consultant. Two of the Company’s directors are principals of GTCR.
During the term of its engagement, GTCR dgreed to consult on business and financial matters, including corporate
strategy, budgeting of future corporate investments, acquisition and divestiture strategies, and debt and equity
financings for an annual management fee of $500, payable in equal monthly installments, and reimbursement for
certain related expenses. GTCR was paid approx1mately $375 under this agreement through December 31, 2003.
Additionally, GTCR was paid a placement fee of approximately $1,341 under the professional services agreement in
connection with the sale of the Company’s securltles in the recapitalization. The placement fee was included in
capitalized transaction expenses in connecnon with the recapitalization. The professional services agreement was
terminated in connection with the IPO in February 2006.

‘\
!\
|
\
The Company leases certain facilities and equipment under noncancelable operating lease arrangements with
varying terms. The facility leases generally contam renewal options of five years. For the ten months ended

December 31, 2003, the two months ended February 28, 20035, and the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003,
the Company recorded lease expense of $3, 274 $501, $2,746, and $3,188, respectively.

(8) Lease Obligations

Future payments under these lease obligations as of December 31, 2005 were as follows:
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(9) Consolidation of HSMI

Through March 31, 2003, the Predecessor owned 50% of HSMI and accounted for it under the equity method.
On April 1, 2003, the Predecessor exercised its option agreements to acquire an additional 33% interest in HSMI for
$620. As a result of this transaction, the value of the HSMI net assets acquired exceeded the purchase price by
$4,641, which represented negative goodwill. The amount of negative goodwill was allocated as a reduction to
property and equipment and certain other long-term assets acquired. As a result of the acquisition, NewQuest, LLC
held 83% of the ownership in HSMI and consolidated the assets and liabilities of HSMI as of April 1, 2003 and the
results of its operations for the period from April 1, 2003 through December 31, 2003. Also, on December 19, 2003,
HSMI redeemed approximately 1.5% of its outstanding ownership interest for $1,133, which brought the
Predecessor’s ownership to 85% of HSML

The following table summarizes the value of HSMI’s assets and liabilities consolidated by the Predecessor on
April 1, 2003.

A Lottt et eat e abe ettt e te e bt eab e s e e e et e bt eabeaabeen e nta s eaeeneeaneans $ 38,592
OTNET CUITENT @SSELS ..viiiiieiiiiiicititieeiiieeeiteeaesibeaastcteesaaetrassabneasassteeranerenesestneasanssbesenebeessebeesasssneeseans 10,734
Property and SQUIPIMENE ..........couiiierrire ettt st eb e s e b e st r st et a et sans e a s et e ranas 373
(@075 o 1011 SRR SN U U U OO U U 4,139
Total assets CONSOIIAAEA. ........ioviii ittt r e e e e e b e et s et s e asetre s s etneesaebaesaeasbeeesebases 53,838
CUITENT HHADIIITIES ©oiieviii ettt e e et e e e r e b e e ee b e e s e st eeses e obbesaseeesbbeenbeenssesenbeessnes 37,270
LOME-EIIT AEDBE...o.vieiecviie ettt sttt st b e 1,759
Total liabilities CONSOIAAEd ... ....ocviiieiiiii et stbe et a e s tae e e stneaeacna e 39,029
Net assets CONSOHAAED .......ooiriii et et bt e e e e vt e e et et e ereea e saainasentneeenehe $ 14,809

The condensed results of operations of HSMI for the period from January 1, 2003 through March 31, 2003
are summarized as follows (unaudited):

Revenue:
Premium
MEQICATE PIEIMMUITIS ...c.vv.veveeivreeecetieeeeeisee et atesteta s et eteseet st se st e seseetasseer et ateseetsebeseetesbeneeteneenea $ 58,794
COMMETCIAL PIEIMIUIMS ..ovvviiiitierietiiet ettt ettt et et et s s s re b saeebe bt s b sers e bebestneneseeseenenes 20,187
TOLAL PIEMIIINIS 1. svesisveie sttt e ss et sb et e nr e sen e sen e b seenssa e s st 78,981
FOO TEVEIMUE ....viticeiieiiectie e et saia s as e e b e staesae e srs et e eab e st e et e er et e be e s e et mab e sar e et e en b e sbesanesanesenenabeniae (52)
TNVESHMENT TNCOINIE 1euvievveiiieriireiteenieesteonteeeeesreasaesarestsseensceateenneesnesesesteeemaesnessbeesnesanenebessnesroevenenenes 136
TOLA] TEVEIUE 1oeviiiie it ettt ettt et sttt e s s aas e s e aasasts et e e ssasusaransaasaaesnnees 79,065
Expenses:
Medical expense:
IMEAICATE EXPEISE ... vvvreeerirtere it etcateieeeetaeseseeteeseeaebeseeasebesssessesess e bems e sere e et csceaeaseneeseaseeeeasancs 51,385
COMMETCIAL EXPRIISE +..vivviretirteeieriic ettt seeee et sttt st bttt et ettt et st ete e eassaereobenie e 15,772
Total MEdICal EXPETISE ..ioveiiiiiiiieiieie ettt st eaceebeer et st e b e s 67,157
Selling, general and adMINISIIALIVE .........ocovvviiiiiee s s erenee et s st ss s e 7,507
Depreciation and amOrTIZATIOM .....c..ciiiieiiiireertere et e sve et etreetes s sene s e sevesaeabeis 412
TOLAL EXPEINISES 1ovviniieeieetieiie ettt ettt e et e bt btk b e bt st e net et s b st b st b sttt nanes 75,076
INEE ITICOIMIE .ottt ettt ettt et ettt e esae et e e bbeeteesbe et e e st easmbeasteansaneaeebaesa e seenneanbaesbe e $ 3,989

(10) Acquisitions
On September 1, 2003, the Predecessor acquired 100% of the outstanding shares of Signature Health Alliance, a

preferred provider organization, for the purchase price of $1,802. The Predecessor recorded $761 of goodwill as a
result of this acquisition.
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The following table summarizes the, estimated fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
September 1, 2003:

Property and equipment...................... O USROSV SUPOTSUPOUPN
GOOAWIIL L et
Total assets acquired
CUITENE HADIITIES ...veiviii it ceese vt r et es ettt aceaae s et ot eae s et b emsseeeebs st s neesaseebesbeesenreanens
Deferred tax liabilities .....................
Total liabilities assumed
Net assets acquired

Also on September 1, 2003, the Predec?ssor acquired 100% of the outstanding shares of Community PPO, a
preferred provider organization, for the purchase price of $643. The Predecessor recorded $170 of goodwill as a
result of this acquisition. i

The following table summarizes the estimated fair value of the Community assets acquired and liabilities
consolidated at September 1, 2003: |

Other current assets acquired
GoodWill ..o
Total assets acquired..........c.occeernenas U PO TP U U O UO PO OU ORI OO
Current liabilities assumed....................] L et e et re e tee e ae et et b e e e reeRs gkt asbana bt e te et eaeetaeerae s s ransbsetbestaeeraeeeas
Net assets acquired

(11) Long-Term Debt

Predecessor
2005 2004
§ 152,625 —
35,901 —
— § 5475
188,526 5475
Less current portion of long-term debt .............................................. 16,500 700
Long-term debt less current portion “\ ................................................ § 172,026 § 4,775

In connection with the recapitalization, the Company entered into a senior credit facility and issued senior

subordinated notes. The borrowings under thHe senior credit facility and proceeds from the issuance of the senior
subordinated notes, net of $6.4 million of fee‘s recorded as deferred financing costs, as well as proceeds from the
issuance of the preferred and common stock were used to fund the cash payments to the members of the Predecessor

in the recapitalization and for other related eﬁpenses and payments.

The senior credit facility provided for borlrowmgs in an aggregate principal amount of up to $180.0 million,

which included: \

* A senior secured term loan facility in ﬁm aggregate principal amount of up to $165.0 million, (the term loan
facility), which had $152.6 million principal amount outstanding as of December 31, 2005, and which was

repaid with proceeds from the IPO in February 2006 and terminated; and

+ A senior secured revolving credit facxlulty in an aggregate principal amount of up to $15.0 million, none of
which had been drawn as of December 31, 2005.
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Following the initial public offering, the senior secured revolving credit facility remains in effect, under which
the Company may borrow up to $15.0 million aggregate principal amount, which amount may be increased by up to
£25.0 million, subject to certain conditions, through March 1, 2010. The obligation under the senior credit facility is
guaranteed by the Company and all of its non-HMO subsidiaries and is secured by substantially all of the
Company’s assets.

Amounts borrowed by the Company under the term loan facility bore interest at floating rates, which could be
either a base rate, or, at the Company’s option, a LIBOR rate plus, in each case, an applicable margin. On July 1,
2003, the Company elected the base rate option and amounts borrowed under the term loan facility bore interest at
an annual rate of 6.66% for the period through December 31, 2005 and 7.53% from January 1, 2006 until it was
repaid in February 2006. As required by the term loan facility, the Company entered into an interest rate swap
agreement in July 2005, pursuant to which $25.0 million of the principal amount outstanding under the term loan
facility would bear interest at a fixed annual rate of 4.25% plus the then applicable margin (3.00%) for the period
from January 1, 2006 to June 30, 2006. The swap does not qualify for hedge accounting and accordingly, the
Company recorded the change in its fair market value as a component of earnings. At December 31, 2005, the swap
had a fair market value of $51. This swap was settled in connection with the IPO and the Company received a
“breakage” payment of $54 in February 2006.

The senior credit facility contains various financial covenants, including covenants with respect to leverage ratio,
interest and fixed charge coverage ratio, and capital expenditures, as well as restrictions on undertaking specified
corporate actions including, among others, asset dispositions, acquisitions, payment of dividends, changes in control,
incurrence of additional indebtedness, creation of liens, and transactions with affiliates. The Company was in
compliance with these financial and restrictive covenants as of December 31, 2005.

The senior subordinated notes, issued by the Company, bore interest at an annual rate of 15%, 12% of which was
payable quarterly in cash and 3% of which accrued quarterly and was added to the outstanding principal amount.
Approximately $35.9 million aggregate principle amount and $368 of accrued and unpaid interest was outstanding
at December 31, 2005. These amounts, together with a prepayment premium of approximately $1.1 million were
repaid with proceeds from the initial public offering. The notes were guaranteed by the Company and its non-HMO
subsidiaries on a basis subordinated to the senior credit facility. The agreements governing the notes contained
financial and restrictive covenants substantially similar to those of the senior credit facility.

At December 31, 2004, the Predecessor had an unsecured note payable to the minority investor in HSMI totaling
$5,475 bearing interest at 2.2% plus 30 day LIBOR (or an aggregate interest rate of 4.04% at December 31, 2004),
payable monthly with principal, through July 1, 2007. This note along with all accrued interest was repaid in
conjunction with the recapitalization.

Future payments on the debt as of December 31, 2005 were as follows:

Total debt
Less current portion.......cccevveeierineeconeereomneeansieniane
Long-term debt, less current portion

(12) Medical Claims Liability

Medical claims liability represents the liability for services that have been performed by providers for the
Company’s Medicare Advantage and commercial HMO members. The liability includes medical claims reported to
the plans as well as an actuariaily determined estimate of claims that have been incurred but not yet reported to the
plans, or IBNR. The IBNR component is based on our historical claims data, current enrollment, health service
utilization statistics, and other related information.
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The following table presents the components of the medical claims liability as of the dates indicated:

i December 31,

2008 2004

(in thousands)
Incurred but not reported (IBNR) .................................................... $ 74,393 50,432
Reported Claims.......cooovivereiieiiec e 8.252 2,755
Total medical claims llablhty..\. ..................................................... 3 82,645 53,187

‘.
The Company develops its estimate for IBNR by using standard actuarial developmental methodologies,
including the completion factor method. Thls method estimates labilities for claims based upon the historical lag
between the month when services are rend“ered and the month claims are paid and takes into consideration factors
such as expected medical cost inflation, seasonahty patterns, product mix, and membership changes. The completion
factor is a measure of how complete the cl‘mms paid to date are relative to the estimate of the total claims for
services rendered for a given reporting penod Although the completion factors are generally reliable for older
service periods, they are more volatile, and hence less reliable, for more recent periods given that the typical billing
lag for services can range from a week to z%s much as 90 days from the date of service. As a result, for the most
recent two to four months, the estimate forjincurred claims is developed from a trend factor analysis based on per
member per month claims trends experienéed in the preceding months. The liability includes estimates of premium
deficiencies. At December 31, 2005 and 2004 the Company had estimated premium deficiency liabilities of

approximately $1,460 and $1,129, respectwely

Each period, the Company re- exammes) the previously established medical claims liability estimates based on
actual claim submissions and other relevant changes in facts and circumstances. As the liability estimates recorded
in prior periods become more exact, the Co”mpany increases or decreases the amount of the estimates, and includes
the changes in medical expenses in the perl‘od in which the change is identified. In every reporting period, the
Company’s operating results include the effects of more completely developed medical claims liability estimates
associated with prior periods. \1

The following table provides a reconcﬂ]\anon of changes in the medical claims liability for the ten-month period
ended December 31, 2005 and the Predecessor for the two-month period ended February 28, 2005 and the years

ended 2004 and 2003: H

|

i Predecessor
Ten moﬁthperiod Twoe month period Year ended Year ended
ended December ended February 28, December 31, December 31,
31, 2005 2005 2004 2003
i‘ (in thousands)
Balance at beginning of period......... $ — 53,187 47,729 7,661
Purchase of NewQuest, LLC............ 59,016 — — —
Consolidation of HSMI ......c.ccecoone. —I1 — — 32,367
Incurred related to: |
Current period......oooiverveeriiennns 576, 180 97,843 467,289 295,864
Prior period ......ococoeveriiiie { 6,84,41 {7.000) (3.914) (4.332)
Total incurred........ccocvvevrvennennns, 569,33 90.843 463,375 291,532
Paid related to: 1\
Current period .......ccccvvvercrnccrcnnnne 493,902 44,397 415,136 253,682
Prior period ........ococevveirveiieen, 51,806 40,617 42.781 30,149
Total paid ......ccccoveeeineiiiiernn 545,708 85.014 457917 283.831
Balance at the end of the period........ $ 82,645 59,016 53,187 47,729
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(13) Income Taxes

Income tax expense (benefit) attributable to income before income taxes consist of:

Current Deferred Total

Ten-month period ended December 31, 2005:

U.S. Federal ..ottt et r e ebe e e rb e eb s seaa e £17,396 (1,127) 16,269
State and 10CAL.......oiiiie et 808 67 875
$18204 (1,060 17.144
Predecessor:
Two-month period ended February 28, 2005:
LS. FOABTAL ..o ettt ettt e nea e $ 2,108 122 2,230
State AN LOCAL.....oeiiriiiiieiie ettt e es 427 29 398
§ 2,535 93 2,628
Year ended December 31, 2004:
LS. FOACIAL ... ittt e s ettt tan et eannae e $ 5390 2,225 7,615
StAte ANA LOCAL ...oeviieiie e e ettt r et e raaa s 1,640 (62) 1,578

$ 7,030 _2.163 9,193
Year ended December 31, 2003:

ULS Federal. .o e $ 4,716 (1,011) 3811
State ANA 10CAL....ovreeeevieeicrececeeeec ettt 1,480 232 1,606
$ 6,19 (779) _5417

Income tax expense attributable to income before income taxes differs from the amounts computed by applying
the applicable U.S. Federal income tax rate of 35% as follows:

Predecessor

Ten month Two month
period ended period ended
December 31 February 28  Year Ended December 31,

2005 2005 2004 2003
U.S. Federal statutory rate on income before income taxes ................ $ 15293 1,867 11,729 8,566
Income not subject to federal income tax due to
PAINEISHIP SLALUS ..ovv.oooooveeeereeeseeess e sesse s sesessseess e — 423 (4,316) (4,928)
State income taxes, net of Federal tax effect........oceviveiiieniininens, 569 259 1,026 1,044
OMNET oottt sttt e st et e b e st ess et asserastarseneans 1,282 79 754 735
Income tax eXPense......ccocvoiiiiiiiicic $ 17,144 2,628 9,193 5417

During the period from March 1, 2005 to December 31, 2005, we recorded deferred tax liabilities of
approximately $25,064 related to the net assets acquired in the recapitalization of the Company. This resulted int a
corresponding increase in goodwill. Additionally, an income tax benefit of $295 was recorded related to the change
in tax status of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries.

78



———

i

i

HEAL"THSPRING INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except unit and share data)

The tax effects of temporary differenLes that give rise to significant portions of the deferred income tax assets
and deferred income tax liabilities at December 31, 2005 and 2004 are presented below.

! Predecessor
' 2005 2004
Deferred tax assets:
Medical claims liabilities, principally due to medlcal loss reserves discounted for tax
DUIPOSES c.nveeerreevevereersaessetesestesserstsuesentabasins etet et ot etenteteses s eeabe s ed i ss st esesbes e bntenesaenesmasassnencensns $ 1,098 823
ATNOTHZALION +eviiiiciitint it ettt e eb et bttt bkt b et e sttt ber st ereaca b i et e it eees — 238
ProPerty and @QUIPIMEN .......cv..vvivuiiivessinied e 1,809 1,583
Accrued COMPEnSation ... ..ocvoveireveereieenneenslis 3,031 28
Lease agreements .........ccccocvvveecnccinnnnn. 123 30
Allowance for doubtful accounts 137 33
Alternative minimum tax credit .................. LU P USRS UTOTTRORRPRTO — 396
Federal net operating loss carryover 2,872 2,137
State net operating 10SS Carryover................ et b s 260 216
Unearned revenue due to differences in tlmmg of recognition for income tax purposes............... 26 41
Other liabilities and accruals.,............A........\,‘ ................................................................................. 703 125
Total gross deferred tax assets 10,059 5,650
Less valuation allowance .................c..... (734) (1.811)
Deferred tax assets......ccovoureiiacirrunccarnones L ettt e e e et erte e tseanteer b eata e aaasas b s ent e taeesbesasrats e anssenaeenraas 9,325 3,839
Deferred tax liabilities: ]
Income from SUDSIAIArY .......cociiriiiiiin diiii ittt e e e — (116)
AMOTtIZatIoN «.c..vevevevceccenei e (32,494) —
Prepaid contract COSt ......cccevvervrecrirniienne ‘ (83%) (536)
Net deferred tax (liabilities) / assets $ (24,004) 3,187

Deferred income taxes were allocated on t}%e balance sheet at December 31, 2005 and 2004 as follows:

\‘l‘ Predecessor
‘u 2005 2004
Current assets.....n...“................j\ ...................................... $ 5,778 868
Long-term assets........c..c..c......d LR — 2,319
Total deferred tax assets ......... ..................................... 5,778 3,187
*\
Long-term liabilities ‘\ ..................................... 29,782 —
Total deferred tax (liabilities) aissets ............................. 3 (24,004) 3,187

In assessing the realizability of defé;rred income tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely
than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred
tax assets is dependent upon the generation %f future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary
differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected
future taxable income, and tax planning stratuegles in making this assessment. Based upon the level of historical
taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods which the deferred tax assets are
deductible, management does not believe that it is more likely than not the Company will realize the benefits of all
these deductible differences. As of Decembe“r 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company carried a valuation allowance
against deferred tax assets of $734 and $1, 81{1 respectively. This amount relates principally to the deferred tax
assets at the Alabama HMO and HSMI. The changes in the valuation allowance during 2005 and 2004 were
(81,077) and ($917), respectively, which relates primarily to changes in the expected utilization of net operating loss

carryforwards, \

(14) Retirement Plan \

Until December 2003, certain sub31d1ar1es of the Predecessor maintained defined contribution plans for all
eligible employees. Contributions were discretionary and were allocated based upon a fixed percentage of annual
compensation plus a fixed percentage of voluntary employee contributions. Employees were eligible to contribute
immediately and were eligible for employer conmbutxons after six months of service. During December 2003, these
plans were combined to form the NewQuest 401K plan. In total, the Company contributed approximately $898,
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$111, $961, and $456 to the defined contribution plans during the ten months ended December 31, 2005, the two
months ended February 28, 2005, and the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Employees are
always 100% vested in their contributions and vest in employer contributions at a rate of 50% after each year of the
first two years of service.

(15) Statutory Capital Requirements

The HMOs are required to maintain satisfactory minimum net worth requirements established by their respective
state departments of insurance. At December 31, 2005, the statutory minimum net worth requirements and actual net
worth were $8,055 and $16,204 for the Tennessee HMO; $1,112 and $2,918 for the Alabama HMO; and $4,871 and
$40,450 for Texas HMO, respectively. Each of these subsidiaries were in compliance with applicable statutory
requirements as of December 31, 2005. The HMOs are restricted from making dividend payments to the Company
without appropriate regulatory notifications and approvals or to the extent such dividends would put them out of
compliance with statutory capital requirements. At December 31, 2003, $148.2 million of the Company’s $161.7
million of cash, cash equivalents, investment securities and restricted investments were held by the Company’s
HMO subsidiaries and subject to these dividend restrictions.

(16) Commitments and Confingencies
Legal Proceedings

The Company is from time to time involved in routine legal matters and other claims incidental 1o its business,
including employment-related claims, claims relating to our relationships with providers and members, and claims
relating to marketing practices of sales agents that are employed by, or independent contractors to, the Company.
When it appears probable in management’s judgment that the Company will incur monetary damages or other costs
in connection with any claims or proceedings, and such costs can be reasonably estimated, liabilities are recorded in
the financial statements and charges are recorded against earnings. Although there can be no assurances, the
Company does not believe that the resolution of such routine matters and other incidental claims, taking into account
accruals and insurance, will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position or
results of operations,

Reinsurance Arrangements
Alabama

The Company’s Alabama HMO has a reinsurance agreement with Munich American Reassurance Company which
is administered by Reinsurance Managers & Underwriters. HMO-related services are reinsured to $2,000 per
member per year in excess of maximum loss retention of $175 for hospital services per commercial member per
year. The maximum lifetime reinsurance indemnification for each member is $5,000. HealthSpring of Alabama
paid reinsurance premiums of approximately $242 for the ten-month period ended December 31, 2005, $52 for the
two-month period ended February 28, 2005 and $416 and $459 for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. Reinsurance recoveries were approximately $4 for the ten-month period ended December 31, 2005
and $490 and $83 for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Tennessee

The Company’s Tennessee HMO has a reinsurance agreement with Companion Life which is administered by
Reinsurance Managers & Underwriters. HMO-related services are reinsured to $2,000 per member per year in
excess of maximum loss retention of $200 for hospital services per commercial member per year. The maximum
lifetime reinsurance indemnification for each member is $5,000. HealthSpring of Tennessee paid reinsurance
premiums of approximately $487 for the ten-month period ended December 31, 2003, $80 for the two-month period
ended February 28, 2005 and $416 and $459 for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
Reinsurance recoveries were approximately $133 for the ten-month period ended December 31, 2005 and $1,065
and $781 for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in tﬁousands, except unit and share data)

(17) Concentrations of Business and C%edit Risks
'\

The Company’s primary lines of busmess operating health maintenance organizations and managing
independent physician associations, are s1gn1ﬁcant1y impacted by health care cost trends.

The health care industry is impacted by health trends as well as being significantly impacted by government
regulations. Changes in government regulatlons may significantly affect management’s medical claims estimates
and the Company’s performance. ‘

j
Most of the Company’s customers are llocated in Tennessee, Texas, Alabama, and Illinois. Concentrations of
credit risk with respect to commercial premlums receivable are limited as a result of the large number of customers.
Approximately 84.7% and 74.7% of premlum revenue was received from CMS in 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Financial instruments that potentially SLijCCt the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist prlmarlly of
investments in investment securities and rewcewables generated in the ordinary course of business. Investments in
investment securities are managed by professional investment managers within guidelines established by the
Company that, as a matter of policy, limit the amounts that may be invested in any one issuer. Receivables include
premium recetvables from individual and L‘l‘ommermal customers, rebate receivables from pharmaceutical
manufacturers, receivables related to prepayment of claims on behalf of customers under the Medicare program and
receivables owed to the Company from prov1ders under risk-sharing arrangements. The Company had no significant

concentrations of credit risk at December 31 2005.
\

(18) Fair Value of Financial Instruments
\\

The Company’s consolidated balance sk\‘\leets include the foliowing financial instruments: cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable, mvestment securities, restricted investments, accounts payable, medical claims
liabilities, and long-term debt. The carrymg amounts of accounts receivable, accounts payable and medical claims
liabilities approximate their fair value becapse of the relatively short period of time between the origination of these
instruments and their expected realization. The fair value of the investment securities and restricted investments are
presented at notes 3 and 6. The carrying valtie of the long-term debt is estimated by management to approximate fair

value based upon the term and nature of the\‘\‘obhgatxons.

!
(19) Phantom Membership Agreements \\‘1
\

The Predecessor entered into Phantom ﬁembership Agreements in 2003 for the benefit of certain officers and
senior executives of the Predecessor. Pursuant to the Phantom Membership Agreements (Agreement) executed with
each participant, the officers and senior executives would generally only receive a benefit, which benefit was
required to be settled by the Predecessor in éash if the Predecessor had a change of control as defined in the
Agreement or upon an initial public offermg\of the Predecessor. On November 10, 2004, the Predecessor entered
into the recapitalization agreement with Hea&thSprmg, Inc., see Note 2. In connection with the recapitalization, the
parties to the Agreements agreed to convert t‘hmr phantom membership units (and forfeit their cash-based right in the
event of a change of control) into actual membershlp units of the Predecessor as of December 31, 2004.
Accordingly, the Predecessor recognized $24 200 of compensation expense related to the conversion of the phantom
shares into the Predecessor Series D membelﬂshxp units and the subsequent cancellation of the Agreements. The
conversion ratio and related compensation expense was determined based on the proposed per unit value of the

recapitalization transaction. !

As part of the cancellation of the Agreem%nts NewQuest loaned the phantom members, which included a
number of officers and directors or the equlvalent an amount of money sufficient to pay the tax liability incurred as
a result of the conversion. Each phantom member signed a promissory note in the amount of the tax liability (and
related interest thereon) to be paid by the Pregiecessor on their behalf. These loans totaled $8,900, and were subject
to repayment as of the closing of the recapital“ization transaction, which occurred on March 1, 2005. Each of the
loans has been repaid in full subsequent to the transaction closing.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS !
(in thousands, except unit and share data)

(20) Preferred Stock

In conjunction with the recapitalization, the Company sold 227,200 shares of preferred stock to GTCR, members
of the Predecessor, and certain other new investors. The holders of the preferred stock were entitled to an 8%
cumulative dividend per year, which accrued on a daily basis and accumulated quarterly commencing on March 31,
2005 on the sum of §1 per share plus all accumulated and unpaid dividends. The dividends were to be paid when
declared by the board of directors, provided that these dividends accrue whether or not they have been declared. As
of December 31, 2005, accrued but unpaid dividends totaled $15,607. The preferred stock and accrued but unpaid
dividends thereon were converted into 12,522,905 shares of the Company’s common stock on February &8, 2006 in
conjunction with the initial public offering, see Note 23.

(21) Restricted Stock and Stock Options

As of December 31, 2005, the Company had sold (net of repurchases) 1,638,750 shares of restricted common
stock to certain employees at a price of $0.20 per share, the same price at which the GTCR Funds, an unrelated party !
at the time, purchased 17,500,000 shares of the Company’s common stock in connection with the recapitalization. ‘
Each employee’s shares of restricted common stock are subject to the terms and conditions of a restricted stock
purchase agreement. The restrictions on these shares lapse based on time and in the event of certain changes in
control. All the outstanding shares of restricted stock have the same voting and dividend rights as the other holders
of common stock. Pursuant to the restricted stock purchase agreements, the Company has the right to purchase all or
any portion of an employee’s restricted stock if his or her employment 1s terminated. The purchase price for
securities purchased pursuant to this repurchase option will be:

+ in the case of shares where the restrictions have not lapsed, the lesser of the original cost and the fair market
value of such shares; and

+ in the case of shares where the restrictions have lapsed, the fair market value of such shares; provided that, if
employment is terminated with cause, then the purchase price shall be the lesser of the original cost and the
fair market value of such shares.

Based on a valuation completed shortly after the recapitalization, the Company determined that the fair market
value of the common stock on the dates of purchase of the restricted stock was $1.58 per share. The difference
between the $0.20 per share purchase price and the $1.58 per share fair market value totaled $2,261 and was
recorded as unearned compensation as a component of stockholders equity. The unearned compensation is
amortized as compensation expense over a period of four to five years (the period over which the restrictions lapse),
as applicable. The Company recognized $377 of compensation expense associated with the restricted stock
agreements, included in selling, general, and administrative expense, for the ten months ended December 31, 2005.

The Company adopted the 2005 Stock Option Plan on March 1, 2005. Nonqualified stock options to purchase an
aggregate of 195,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $2.50 per share were outstanding under the
2005 Stock Option Plan at December 31, 2005. These options vest and become exercisable based on time, generally
over a five-year period. In the event of a change in control of the Company, all options shall immediately vest and
become exercisable in full. None of the options were vested at December 31, 2005. No additional options may be
granted under the 2005 Stock Option Plan. See Note 23 regarding the Company’s 2006 Equity Incentive Plan.
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|
(22) Quarterly Financial Information (:unaudited)

Selected unaudited quarterly financial datLt in 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

\\

Pre\!edecessor HealthSpring, Inc.

For the Two Month For the One Month For the Three Month Period Ended
Perlod Ended Period Ended June 30, September December 31,
Febru' ary 28, 2005 March 31, 2005 2005 30,2005 2005
Total revenues .......ccoevveeviieenns $ 119,390 61,947 196,243  $233,121 246,062
Income before income taxes.... | 5334 482 15,581 14,638 12,993
Net inCOME ..ooccvvereeieirrenen | 2,706 (635) 4,325 4,113 3,140
Income per share — basic ......... $ “ — 0.02) 0.13 0.13 0.10
Income per share — diluted....... $ ‘ — (0.02) 0.13 0.13 0.10
|
Income per unit — basic............ $ 1 055 — — — —
Income per unit — diluted......... $ w 0.55 — - — —
1
" Predecessor

For the Three Month Period Ended
March 31, 2004 June 30, 2004 September 30, 2004 December 31, 2004

Total revenues...........ooceoeecveeeieiieeeeeeee b, $ 138,609 147,990 153,587 159,229
Income before income taxes...........o...co......... 16,237 14,347 14,165 (11,239)
Nt iNCOME ..o 13,673 12,075 11,925 (13,356)
Income per unit—basic......................‘.......“: ..... § 299 2.64 2.60 2.92)
Income per unit — diluted ... o 5299 2.64 2.60 (2.92)

{23) Subsequent Events (unaudited)

Initial Public Offering

On February 8, 2006, the Company completed an initial public offering of its common stock. In connection with
the initial public offering, the Company soﬂi 10,600,000 shares of common stock at a price of $19.50 per share. Net
proceeds to the Company were $188.8 mllhon following payment of $17.9 million of offering expenses and
underwriting commissions. Additionally, the Company issued 12,552,905 shares of common stock in exchange for
all of the outstanding preferred stock, mcluamg cumulative dividends. From the proceeds of the offering and
available cash, the Company repaid all of its long-term debt and accrued interest, including a $1.1 million
prepayment penalty, totaling $189.9 millior{.

H

The Company also issued 2,040,194 shares of common stock in exchange for all the minority interest in the

membership units of its Texas HMO sub51d1ary The total value of the purchase of the minority interest was

approximately $39.8 million, which resulted in additional goodwill of approximately $27.9 million.

2006 Equity Incentive Plan A

The Company adopted the 2006 EQUIW’IHCGDUVC Plan effective as of February 2, 2006. A total of 6,250,000
shares of common stock are available for 1ss\:uance under the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan. Nonqualified stock options
to purchase an aggregate of (i) 2,065,500 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $19.50 per share were
issued in connection with the IPO and (ii) 1(%1 500 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $22.15 per share
were issued in March 2006. These options vest and become exercisable based on time, generally over a four-year
period. ,“

Also, in connection with the [PO, the Company issued 2,500 restricted shares to each of its five non-employee
directors, or an aggregate of 12,500 restricted shares. These restricted shares vest on the first anniversary of their
grant date.
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Related Party Transactions

In connection with certain agreements made by Renaissance Physicians Organization (RPQ) and its related
physician groups as a condition to the recapitalization, the Company and RPO agreed to the issuance to RPO of
approximately 1% of the common equity in the Company following the recapitalization. It was understood and
agreed that this equity would be issued based on RPO achieving certain performance goals over the five year period
following the recapitalization. In February 2006, the Company settled this commitment by a cash payment of $4.0
million, all of which had been accrued during the year ended December 31, 2005.
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SCHEDULE I - CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT
‘ BALANCE SHEETS
| December 31, 2005 and 2004

! (in thousands)

i

Predecessor
] 2005 2004
| Assets
Current assets: ]\
Cash and cash equivalents................... ettt ettt $ 3253 10,827
Accounts receivable......cccoovvirivenrirenn, \.‘ ............................................................................. — 9,249
Prepaid expenses and OtHer CUITENT ASSELS ............rvvveceereorerereeroeseeeroseeeeereesemsreesesenreree 1.908 352
Total current assets...........ccc.oeevv.nnn ] \ \\ ............................................................................. 5,161 20,428
Investment in SUBSIAIATIES. .....vevveiii e ettt 263418 43,957
Property and equipment, net................... Dot 231 —
Goodwill and other intangible assets....... D e r e 668 3,291
TOtal @SSELS vvvvvevrvreerenerrreneesresrereers L seceecne s e $ 269,478 67.676
Liabilities and Stockholdﬁrs and Members’ Equity
Current liabilities: |
Due to related parties.........cccoeeveevernenenn. ettt ettt s e e s e at st a e naesareetnenhae s eans $ 4989 3,772
Accounts payable and accrued expenses oo eseseemaeeseseses e seneee e enee s 3,336 4,511
Short-term notes payable.............cc.c...... Lo seree s — 500
Total current HADILILIES ........ocoiviiii et 8,325 8,783
INOTES PAYADIE ..vvovieeiereiee e ettt e, — 3,458
Deferred tax Habiliies .......ccccovirniie it 609 —
Total liabilities ............c.rvererrerrrrecrrcre! et s 8.934 12.241
Stockholders’ and members’ equity: \\\
Founders’ and membership units........... ettt sttt b s et — 31,787
Redeemable convertible preferred stock\ ......................................................................... 2 —
Common Stock.........cocoovvnieciii \ .......................................................................... 322 —
Additional paid in capital \‘ .......................................................................... 251,202 —
Unearned compensation ........... e e s e et e {1,885) —
Retained €arnings .........coeeeevvevveneennn.) e 10,943 23,648
Treasury Stock....ccoovivininiiiis SO U STOOU USRS (40) —
Total stockholders’ and members’ equ1‘ty ...................................................................... 260.544 55.435
Total liabilities and stockholders’ and members EQUILY teverireeceiee et st $ 269,478 67.676

See accompanying reppn of independent registered public accounting firm.
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SCHEDULE I - CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(in thousands)

Predecessor
Ten months Two months
ended ended
December 31, February 28, Year ended December 31,
2005 2005 2004 2003
Revenue:
Management fees from affiliates ...........ccoconrneennn, $ —_ 122 793 2,683
Investment INCOME ......coeeeiieiivieiieeercriie e srressiene s — 16 48 8
Total FEVENUE.....c.vevviirieciiiiei e aeeae e — 138 841 2,691
Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits...........ocovvieiieciieeeere e 377 1,261 24,236 847
Administrative eXpenses.......cuceveereerrrioreenrennnnenes 6,577 5,760 611 1,184
TAtEreSt EXPENSE ...vvrviriiererieririereiiener e srenaenn — 30 151 176
Total operating eXpenses.........cccvvivvirmeeeerenrenien, 6.954 7.051 24,998 2,207
(Loss) income before equity in subsidiaries’
earnings and INCOME taXeS .......covvvrervecreerverrenene, (6,954) (6,913) (24,157) 484
Equity in subsidiaries’ earnings.........cccccovnnrierenene, 31,070 9,623 48,286 18,662
Income before income taxes.....ccoeveveevvveenvneeveneen. 24,116 2,710 24,129 19,146
Income tax benefit (expense).......ccooervnieciincincnn, 2434 4) 188 (86)
NELINCOME oottt ettt ete e 26,550 2,706 24,317 19,060
Preferred dividends........c.c.ocovvvviiiiiineececieceee e, 15.607 — — —
Net income available to common stockholders
and MEMDETS .......coceeviivireeiii e e ere s 3 10,943 2.706 24,317 19,060

See accompanying report if independent registered public accounting firm.
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SCHEDULE 1 - CONDIUENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

i (in thousands)

! Predecessor
]‘\ Ten months Two months
ended ended
l December 31, February 28, Year ended December 31,
‘\\ 2005 2005 2004 2003
Cash flows from operating activities: !
NELINCOME ..ot et 26,550 2,706 24,317 19,060
Adjustments to reconcile net income to nét cash provided by
(used in) operating activities: 1
Depreciation EXPenSe ........c.cveuierrreerrieribiniieieinees e 189 — — —
Compensation expense related to phantom stock plan
CANCEIlALION ....cveiiiiiiri e e — — 24,200 —
Equity in subsidiaries’ earnings.............. l\ ........................................ (31,070) (9,623)  (48286)  (18,662)
Amortization of unearned compensanon‘\ ........................................ 377 — — 197
Increase (decrease) in cash equivalents due to change in:
Accounts receivable I — €))] (9,249) —
Interest receivable oo, — 2 C) —
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (1,908) (178) (480) 213
Due to related Parties........ccoovorerrerrrarsbiercrieeeerees v seeesr s 89,959 (5,597) 4,575 1,677
Accounts payable, accrued expenses, and other current
B@bIHHES v L e 3,336 8,335 3,853 (245)
Other long-term liabilities ST PO 609 — — —
Net cash provided by (used in) operatmg ACtiVIties ......coenuenee. 87.542 (4.356) (1.079) 2.240
Cash flows from investing activities: ‘
Distributions received from subsidiaries ....h. ...................................... —_— 15,851 31,546 8,182
Purchase of property and equipment ..........L....cocvvivivreree e, (420) — — —
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired.............. ﬂ ...................................... (219,958) — — —
Net cash (used in) provided by mvestmg activities ......coeveenn (220.378) 15.851 31,546 8.182
Cash flows from financing activities: ll‘w
Payments on notes payable to members......c.oeiveeverieieerievieiieennns (3,958) (83) (500) (500)
Proceeds from issuance of common and preferred Stock .o 140,087 — — —
Purchase of treasury stock ........coceeerinnnnns L s (40) — — —
Distributions to members ..................ccee.. \j ...................................... — — (19,546) _(10,878)
Net cash provided by (used in) ﬁnancirll\,g activities ....oovvevcevennn, 136.089 (83) (20.046) _(11.378)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents................. 3,253 11,412 10,421 (956)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe“nod .............................. — 10,827 406 1,362
Cash and cash equivalents at end ofperlod...\.\ ..................................... § 3253 22,239 10,827 406

. \ . . . .
* See accompanying rq‘port if independent registered public accounting firm.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Our senior management carried out an evaluation required by Rule 13a-15 under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), under the supervision and with the participation of our President
and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFQO”), of the effectiveness of our disclosure
controls and procedures as defined in Rule 13a-15 and 15d-15 under the Exchange Act (“Disclosure Controls™).
Based on the evaluation, our senior management, including our CEQ and CFO, concluded that, subject to the
limitations noted herein, as of December 31, 2005, our Disclosure Controls are effective in timely alerting them to
material information required to be included in our reports filed with the SEC.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal control aver financial reporting identified in connection with
the evaluation that occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 2005 that has materiaily affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls

Our management, including our CEO and CFO, does not expect that our Disclosure Controls and internal
controls will prevent all error and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can
provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the
design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must
be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of
controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, with the Company have
been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty and
that breakdowns can occur because of simple error and mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the
individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people or by management override of controls.

The design of any system of controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of
future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all
potential future conditions; over time, a control may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-
effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and may not be detected.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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“ PART III

|
Item 10. Directors and Executive Ofi‘icers of the Registrant

:I

Information with respect to the dlrec:tors of the Company, set forth in the Company’s Definitive Proxy

Statement for the Company’s 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on or about June 6, 2006 (the “Proxy
Statement”), under the caption “Election|of Directors,” is incorporated herein by reference. Pursuant to General
Instruction G(3), information concerning executive officers of the Registrant is included in Item 1 of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K under the caption ‘ﬁExecutive Officers of the Company.”

Information with respect to compllance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, set forth in

the Proxy Statement, under the caption “Sectlon 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance,” is
incorporated herein by reference. |

Information with respect to our code ;‘of ethics, set forth in the Proxy Statement, under the caption “Code of
Conduct,” is incorporated herein by referénce.

Item 11. Executive Compensation I‘l

Information with respect to executivenofﬁcers of the Company, set forth in the Proxy Statement, under the
caption “Executive Compensation,” is incorporated herein by reference.

t
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certam Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters \\

i
1
Information with respect to security ownershlp of certain beneficial owners and management and related
stockholder matters, set forth in the Proxy Statement, under the captions “Stock Ownership” and “Equity

; |
Compensation Plan Information,” is mcorﬁorated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Information with respect to certain relq‘tionships and related transactions, set forth in the Proxy Statement, under
the caption “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions,” is incorporated herein by reference.
t
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information with respect to the fees pald to and services provided by our principal independent registered public

accounting firm, set forth in the Proxy Statement under the caption “Fees Billed to Us by KPMG LLP During
2005,” is incorporated herein by reference. .
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules
(1) Financial Statements are listed in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements on page 56 of this report.

(2) Financial Statement Schedules are listed in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements on page 56 of
this report.

(3) Exhibits - See the Exhibit Index at end of this report which is incorporated herein by reference.
(b)  Exhibits
See the Exhibit Index at end of this report which is incorporated herein by reference.
(¢) Financial Statements

We are filing as part of this report the financial schedule listed on the index immediately preceding the
financial statements in Item & of this report.
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| SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be 51gned on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

| HEALTHSPRING, INC.

Date: March 31, 2006 i By /s/ Kevin M. McNamara

]\ Name: Kevin M. McNamara

Title: Executive Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer, and Treasurer

Pursuant to the requirements of uthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
\

Signature | Title Date
I I
Chairman of the Board of Directors, President and
Chlef Executive Officer (Principal Executive
/s/ Herbert A. Fritch Ofﬁcer) March 31, 2006
Herbert A. Fritch i
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
and Treasurer (Principal Financial and Accounting
/s/ Kevin M. McNamara QPfﬁcer) March 31, 2006
Kevin M. McNamara :
h
/s/ Martin S. Rash Director March 31, 2006
Martin S. Rash 5\
!
/s/ Joseph P. Nolan Director March 31, 2006
Joseph P. Nolan “\
ﬁ
/s/ Daniel L. Timm D\irector March 31, 2006
Daniel L. Timm !
i
|
/s/ Russell K. Mayerfeld D\i\rector March 31, 2006
Russell K. Mayerfeld

!
/s/ Robert Z. Hensley Director

! March 31, 2006
Robert Z. Hensley b




INDEX OF EXHIBITS

Exhibits Description

3.1 Form of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of HealthSpring, Inc. (1)

32 Form of Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of HealthSpring, Inc. (1)

4.1 Reference is made to Exhibits 3.1 and 3.2

4.2 Specimen of Common Stock Certificate (1)

4.3 Registration Agreement, dated as of March 1, 2005, by and among HealthSpring, Inc., GTCR Fund
VL L.P., GTCR Fund VIII/B, L.P., GTCR Co-Invest II, L.P., and each of the other stockholders of
HealthSpring, Inc. whose names appear on the schedules thereto or on the signature pages or joinders
to the Registration Rights Agreement (1)

4.4 Amended and Restated Stockholders Agreement, to be entered into by and among HealthSpring, Inc.,
GTCR Fund VIII, L.P., GTCR Fund VIII/B, L.P., GTCR Co-Invest II, L.P., and each of the other
stockholdets of HealthSpring, Inc. whose names appear on the schedules thereto or on the signature
pages or joinders to the Stockholders Agreement (1)

10.1 Purchase and Exchange Agreement, dated as of November 10, 2004, by and among NewQuest, LLC,
HealthSpring, Inc., NewQuest, Inc., the stockholders representative and each of the other
stockholders of HealthSpring, Inc. whose names appear on the schedules or signature pages thereto,
as amended (1)

10.2 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 1, 2005, among GTCR Fund VIII, L.P., GTCR Fund
VIII/B, L.P., GTCR Co-Invest II, L.P., and each of the other stockholders thereto (1)

10.3 Form of HeaithSpring, Inc. Amended and Restated Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement* (1)

10.4 HealthSpring, Inc. 2005 Stock Option Plan* (1)

10.5 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (Option Plan)* (1)

10.6 HealthSpring, Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive Plan* (1)

10.7 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (Equity Incentive Plan)* (1)

10.8 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement (Equity Incentive Plan)* (1)

10.9 Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (Employees and Officers) (Equity Incentive Plan)* (1)

10,10 Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (Directors) (Equity Incentive Plan)* (1)

10.11 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between Registrant and Herbert A. Fritch* (1)

10.12 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between Registrant and Jeffrey L. Rothenberger* (1)

10.13 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between Registrant and J. Murray Blackshear* (1)

10.14 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between Registrant and Kevin M. McNamara* (1)

10.15 Form of Indemnification Agreement (1)

10.16 Contract H4454 between Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services and HealthSpring of Tennessee,
Inc. (1)

10.17 Contract H4513 between Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services and Texas HealthSpring I, LLC
(1)

10.18 Contract HO150 between Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services and HealthSpring of Alabama,
Inc. (1)

10.19 Contract H1415 between Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services and HealthSpring of Illinois (1)

10.20 Contract H4407 between Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services and HealthSpring of Tennessee,
Inc. (d/b/a HealthSpring of Mississippi) (1)

10.21 Amended and Restated IPA Services Agreement dated March 1, 2003 by and between Texas
HealthSpring, LLC and Renaissance Physician Organization, as amended (1)

10.22 Full-Service Management Agreement dated April 16, 2001 by and between GulfQuest, L.P. and
Renaissance Physician Organization, as amended (1)

10.23 Agreement dated May 28,1993 between the Baptist Hospital and DST Health Solutions, Inc. (f/k/a
CSC Healthcare Systems, Inc.), as amended (1)

10.24 Master Service Agreement dated June 13, 2003 between OAQO HealthCare Solutions, Inc. and
TexQuest, LLC, on behalf of GulfQuest, L.P. (1)

10.25 Credit Agreement dated as of March 1, 2005 among NewQuest, Inc., as borrower, HealthSpring, Inc.

and the other guarantors party thereto, the lenders party thereto and UBS Securities LLC, as lead
arranger and sole bookrunner, General Electric Capital Corporation, as syndication agent, LaSalle
Bank National Association, as documentation agent, Bank of America, N.A., as documentation agent,
UBS AG, Stamford Branch, as issuing bank, administrative agent and collateral agent, and UBS Loan
Finance LLC, as swingline lender (1)
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10.26 Stand-Alone PDP ¢ontraet between Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services and HealthSpring,
Inc. and HealthSpring of Alabama, Inc.
10.27 Stand-Alone PDP Contract between Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services and Texas
HealthSpring [, LLC
10.28 Stand-Alone PDP Contract between Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services and HealthSpring of
Mississippi \\
10.29 Stand-Alone PDP Contract between Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services and HealthSpring of
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10.30 Executive and DlI‘eCtOI’ Compensation Summary*
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23.1 Consent of KPMG ILLLP
24.1 Power of attorney (included on the signature page)
31.1 Certification of President and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002
31.2 Certification Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1 Certification of President and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002 \
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Certification of Chxel\c Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

* Indicates management contract or comp\ensatory plan, contract or arrangement.

(1) (Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Company s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-128939),

filed October 11, 2005, as amended)




SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Herbert A. Fritch, Chief Executive Officer of HealthSpring, Inc., certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of HealthSpring, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the
registrant and have:

(a)

(b)

(©

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls
and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
prepared,

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth
fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal contro! over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a)

(b)

March 31, 2006

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of
internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who
have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Herbert A. Fritch

Herbert A. Fritch

Chairman of the Board of Directors, President, and
Chief Executive Officer




SECTION 302 CE%(TIFICATION BY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, Kevin M. McNamara, Chief Financial \;\Ofﬁcer of HealthSpring, Inc., certify that:
\\

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of HealthSpring, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were mac‘ie, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my know%edge the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and \lfor the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining

disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢)) for the
registrant and have:

|

L

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating
to the registrant, mc%udmg its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, partrcrlarly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Evaluated the effectweness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this rep?n our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the\\ end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

h

|

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting

that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

|

. b .

The registrant’s other|certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent
evalnation of internal control over ﬁnancial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee
of the registrant’s board of directorf (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

.. L : . : . .
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial {eportmg which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or aother employees who have a

significant role in the r?gistrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

1
March 31, 2006 |

/s/ Kevin M. McNamara
\\ Kevin M. McNamara
|

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,
w and Treasurer




CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of HealthSpring, Inc. on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 2005
(the “Report™), I, Herbert A. Fritch, Chief Executive Officer of HealthSpring, Inc., certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
0of 1934; and
2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and

results of operations of the Company.

/s/ Herbert A. Fritch

Herbert A. Fritch

Chairman of the Board of Directors, President and Chief Executive Officer
March 31, 2006




FERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
| 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
| AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of HealthSpring, Inc. on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 2005
(the “Report™), I, Kevin M. McNamara. \Chlef Financial Officer of HealthSpring, Inc., certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies w1th\ the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934; and

I

The information contained in thl‘\e Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

¥
1

!
/s/ Kevin M. McNamara “0

Kevin M. McNamara “

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer
March 31, 2006

|
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Herbert A. Fritch

Chairman, President &
Chief Executive Officer

HealthSpring, Inc.

Robert Z. Hensley (1) (2)

Private Business Owner

(publishing and real estate development)
Former Audit Partner

Ernst & Young LLP

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Herbert A. Fritch
Chairman, President &
Chief Executive Officer

Jeffrey L. Rothenberger
Executive Vice President &
Chief Operating Officer

J. Murray Blackshear
Executive Vice President & President,
Tennessee Division

CORPORATE OFFICES
HealthSpring, Inc.

44 Vantage Way, Suite 300
Nashville, Tennessee 37228
(615) 291-7000

TRANSFER AGENT AND STOCKHOLDER

ACCOUNT ASSISTANCE

American Stock Transfer & Trust
Company

59 Maiden Lane - Plaza Level

New York, NY 10038

(718) 921-8360

For address changes, registration
changes, lost stock certificates, or if you
are receiving duplicate copies of the
Annual Report, please contact American
Stock Transfer & Trust Company at the
address or number listed above.

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTING FIRM
KPMG LLP

Nashville, Tennessee

Russell K. Mayerfeld (1) (3)
Managing Member
Excelsus LLC

(advisory services)

Former Managing Director
UBS Investment Banking

Joseph P. Nolan (2) (3)

Principal

GTCR Golder Rauner I1, L.L.C.
(private equity fund)

Kevin M. McNamara
Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer & Treasurer

J. Gentry Barden
Senior Vice President, Corporate
General Counsel & Secretary

Pasquale R. Pingitore, M.D.
Senior Vice President &
Chief Medical Officer

SECURITIES COUNSEL
Bass, Berry & Sims PLC

Nashville, Tennessee

ANNUAL MEETING OF
STOCKHOLDERS

The Company will hold its annual
meeting of stockholders on June 6,
2006, at 10:00 a.m. local time, at the
Company's headquarters, 44 Vantage
Wiay, Suite 300, Nashville, Tennessee
37228. Stockholders of record as of
April 24, 2006, are invited to attend

this meeting.

STOCK MARKET AND OTHER
INFORMATION

The Company's common stock is listed
on the New York Stock Exchange under
the symbol HS. At April 24, 2006, the
Company had approximately 5,000
stockholders, including approximately
260 record shareholders.

The Company completed its initial
public offering in February 2006 and its

Martin S. Rash (2) (3)

Former Chief Executive Officer
Province Healthcare Company
(non-urban acute care hospital operator
acquired by LifePoint Hospitals in 2005)

Daniel L. Timm (1)

Principal

GTCR Golder Rauner I, L.L.C.
(private equity fund)

(1) Audit Committee
(2) Compensation Committee
(3) Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

Craig S. Schub
Senior Vice President &
Chief Marketing Officer

David L. Terry, Jr.
Senior Vice President & Chief Actuary

shares of common stock began public
trading on February 3, 2006. No trad-
ing prices are available for the two-year
period ended December 31, 2005.

The Company currently anticipates that
it will retain any future earnings to support
its operations and the development and
expansion of its business. Accordingly,
the Company does not anticipate paying
cash dividends in the foreseeable future.
Any future determination to declare and
pay dividends will be at the discretion of
the Company's Board of Directors and
will depend on many factors including
debt covenants, available cash and
surplus, and regulatory restrictions.

The Company has included as Exhibit
31 to its Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2005,
as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, a certificate of
its Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer as to the quality of the
Company's public disclosures.
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